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Welcome to our
annual report

London Stock Exchange Group (LSE L) sits at the heart of the world’s financial
commumty The Group cperates a broad range of internationat equity, bond and
derwatives markets, including London Stock Exchange, Borsa Italiana, MTS, Europe’s
leading fixed income market, and Turquotse, offering UK and Russian derwatives
trading and pan-European it and dark equity trading Through its markets, the
Group offers mternational businesses unrivalled access to Europe’s capital markets

The Group provides risk management and clearing services, as well as settlement
and custody operations through 1ts Itahan post trade businesses

The Group 15 a leading developer of high performance trading platforms and capital
markets software and offers 1ts customers around the world access to an extensive
range of real-time and reference data products and market-leading post trade
services The Group 1s also home to a world leading index provider, FTSE, which
creates and manages over 200,000 equity, bond and alternative asset class indices

Headquartered in London, United Kingdom, with significant operations in Italy,
and Sn Lanka, at year end the Group employed around 2,000 people

Further information on London Stock
Exchange Group can be found at

www iseg com

London Stock Exchange Group plc
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 7LS

Telephone +44 (0)20 7797 1000

Registered in England and Wales
Mo 5369106
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HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highhights

Adjusted Total Income (+5%) Adjusted Operating Profit* (-3%)
€ million € mitlion
gi14g 8529 4419 4302
6714 gogy 6740 3407 3411
2803
2009 2000 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Adjusted Basic Earnings per share* (+5%) Dividends per share (+4%j}

pence pence
1053
100 6 2813 295
244 24 4 28
742 737
601

2009 2010 2001 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Year ended 31 March 2013 012 vanance %
Adjusted total mcome* £852 9m £814 Bm 5
Adjusted aperating profit* £430 2m £441 9m (3)
Operating profit £348 4m £358 5m (3)
Adjusied pioht before tax* £380 7m £400 6m (5)
Profit before tax £298 9m £6397m {53)
Adjusted basic earnings per share* 105 3p 100 6p 5
Basic earmings per share 80 4p 193 6p (58)

*L ondon Stock Exchange Group uses non CAAP performance measures as key inancial indicators as the Board believes these
better eflect the underlying performance of the business Adjusted operating proftt adjusied total income adjusted profit
before lax and adjusted basic earnings per share all exclude amortisation of purchased intangibles goodwill impatrment
ard non recurring tems
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The Group made good progress in delivering on 1ts strategy, leveraging its range of products
and services and further diversifying its offering through new product development and
strateqic mvestments A few examples of this successful execution are highlighted below
Capfital Markets Group Adjusted Total Income by segment b
— New High Growth market segment was announced to meet £ million E
the needs of fast growing compames m
w
— Elte aprogramme to prepare SME cormpantes for a future r:g
listing on Borsa Italiana s markets reached 100 chents ® Capital Markets 2675 < B
providing a good potentiat pipeline of 1IPOs o Post Trade Serces 2085 z
— MTSlaunched a daily Repo Euro index sernes ® Information Servces 3063
— The Group signed an International Board agreement with "
Singapore Stock Exchange to enable the trading of both Technology Services %61
markets largest stocks on each exchange + Other 145

~— Euro denominated FTSE 100 Mini-futures and AGRE X durum
wheat futures were launched n lLialy

Post Trade Services

— Comptetion of the acquisition of a majority stake in LCH Clearnet
1N May 2013 providing the Group with an increased stake in
cntically impoitant nsk management and CCP services in the
UK Contirental Europe and the US

AINUNHIAQD

— Monte Titol was affirmed as a furst wave participant in the
£CB s TARGET2-Secunties pan-European settlement project

— Monte Titoh alse launched 'X-COM  a new service for trn-party
collateral management

Information Services

— Inthe US Vanguard selected FTSE as emerging markets index
benchmark provider for US $170 billion of assets under management —
the largest ever switch of an international mdex benchmark provider

— FTSE entered a JV to form FTSE TMX Debt Capiial Markets —
combiming FTSE s UK gilt market products and TMX s Canadian
fixed income services makuig the new venture a major
international fixed incorne index provider

Technology Sevvices

SLNIWILYLS TVIINYNIL dNOUD

— The Group acquired a majorty stake i GATElab a provider of capital
markets software ~ in conunction with MiflenmumIT this enhances
our trading and connectity technology capabilties

— MillenniumiT s trading platform went kve at Borsa ltaliana as well
as at Johannesburg Stock Exchange the Mongolian Stock Exchange
and Oslo Bors Bursa Malaysia went hve with MillenmiumiT s
Survellance system software

NOLLYWHOINI HIATOHIUTHS
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GROUP AT A GLANCE

London Stock Exchange Group 1s a leading diversified exchange business, incorporating Borsa

Italiana, London Stock Exchange, FTSE International and MillenmumlIT The information below

and on the next page provides an outhne of our business model

Total income contribution Sub-segment

Main types of revenste

Capital Markets

At the heart of what we do are

our multi-asset markets providing
capital formatwon for compames
tracing in London and Italy — and
ncreasmgly throughout Europe

31%

Group total incorne

® Pimary

Adrmission fees for imtiat listing of raising
further capital
Annual fees for secunties traded on our markets

¢} Secondary

=
S

£267 5m
2012 £3019m

Fees based on value traded (UK equities and
Government bonds) or number of trades
(ltalian equities retall bonds and dernvatives)

Other

Mermbership fees to access our trading markets

Post Trade Services

We offer open accessand
efficient cleanng settlement
and custody services Our post
trade business supports cash
equity denvative commodity
and fixed mcorme markets

24"

Group total iIncome

® Cleanng

Fees based on trades or contracts cleared and
Central Counterparty {CCP) services provided

O Net treasury

Net mterest on cash and securibies held for
margn and default funds

Revenue mostly from the settlement of equity
and fixed income trades

income
£208 5m Settlement
2012 £228 5m

Custody

Fees are charged on the ssuance of an equity or
fixed income asset, when dmdend and interest
payments are made and on any corporate action

Information Services

we sell real time price information
and a wade range of cther
information senaces from indices
to post trade analytics

#& Data charges

Fees primarily based on number of terminals
taking our real tirme price and trading data

o FTSE — Subscription fees for data and analytic services
3 60/0 — Licence fees for passwe funds tracking indices
] £306 3m Other — Fees vary based on the nature of service
Group total ncome 2012 £2189m information provtded for example alicence fee1s pad
i to gain access o the SEDOL secunties
numbernng system
Technology Services ® pillenniumIT — Sales of capital market solutions
Our businesses and customers ’ — Provision of enterprise sales and IT
depend on our secure technology mfrastructure services in Sr Lanka and to
that performs to high levels of international capital markets customers
avatability and throughput
0 N © Technology — Fees for network connechions server hosting
’ /0 ™o and systems supphed by Group businesses
I £56 1m
2012 £52 6m

Group total income

Note Other income £14 5m 2% Group tatal income Group total income 1s shown on an adjusted basis
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Customer profile Highlights KPIs E i
z
Companies from 70 countries around the world 12} new cornpanies joined our markets in the year Number of companies Capital raised by new s
have comne to our rmarkets to raise money for ncluding 36 nternational companies onour markets and further issues =1
growth together with 1ssuers of bonds ETFs 2,746 £18bn b
and other assets 2012 2845 2012 £34bn 2 i
Banks and brokers worldwide trading on the Share of order book trading increased during the Average number of equity  Average equity value traded
Groups equities denwatives and fixed incomne year to 65 3 per cent in UK equities and 85 3 per :::‘Tfa'lbm“ tadesperday  per day w London
tracing platforms cent in [talian equiltes 4
MTS Repo term adjusted fixed income volume _312232;?::? 54.2?:1
traded up 14 per cent 12 &47bn
Banks and brokers worldwide Integration of London and ltalian markets has Member firms connected to our markets g
f %
acllitated cross-rmembership 477 g :
2012 509 &1
z B
e
1244 members mainly banks and brokers over CC&G commiadity clearing includes electncity Number of equity and dertvalive contracts cleared
40 per cent of which are based outside italy and durum wheat futures 94.7m
2012 1170m
Clearing mernbers Growth 1n collateral held inked to increased fixed Average mital margin held
ncome trading €10.1bn
2012 €94bn
Wide range of Italian and international banks Settlement rate of 99 4 per cent of trades Settlerment instructions handled
and brokers for both on market and OTC trades 55.3m
an settle '
Europe ment standards exceeded 2012 682m
[ssuers of equity and fixed income products Government and corporate bond 1ssuance Monte Titelss custody assets under managerment
(tahan and internationat) remamed at igh levels €3.23tr

2012 €3080

SLNIWILYLS IVIINYNIL dNOUD

Direct to banks and 1o senace providers such Direct billing enterpnse licence and non-display Numier of professiona) terminals taking group
as Bloomberg and Thomson Reuters that tanff mitatives data (84 000 London data 137000 Htahan data}
incorporate our data with other information 221,000

and sell 1t on to users 2012 229000

w
21
Asset managers active and passive buy-side Vanguard swatch $170bn assets to FTSE benchmarks  ETF assets hnked to FISE B
firms and exchanges 1o form new fixed income mdex busmessin Canada $143bm % :
2012 $5500 E
Our customers vary based on the service provided  UnaVista expansion continues TRS customers Unavista number of transaction reports processed x
including fund managers traders retau brokers integrated and technology upgraded 879m E
and market makers ©
2012 552m =
-
g -
London Stock Exchange Group divisions other MillenmumiT technology went live at three Latency on UK trading platform (January to March § :
exchange groups and capital market chents exchanges on three contnents in one month at average of 99th percentile) :
banks 1T and large St Lankan cornpanies Borsa Itahana Johannesburg SE and Mongohan SE 106 microseconds

2012 128 ricroseconds

Banks trading firms and depositories i Europe Majority stake acquired N GATElab a provider Availability of UK equdy market duning the year
Morth Amenca Afnca and Asia-Pactiic region of capital markets software 100% uptim e

2012 100%
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WHAT WE DO - BUSINESS MODEL

We provide services to a broad set of customers on an international basis, across
a dverse range of asset classes Our business activities fall into three areas

— Capital formation (Capital Markets)
— Risk management (Post Trade Services)
— Intellectual property (Information Services and Technology Services)

CAPITAL MARKETS

PRIMARY SECONDARY
MARKETS MARKETS

— Listing and — Cash equities
capital rawsing — Derwatives
- Equity — Fixed mcome
— Debt/fixed income — Funds/specialist
products
— Commedities/power

TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES

— Trading systems

POST TRADE
SERVICES

CUSTOMERS

Issuers

- Clearing/CCP services

— Market survelliance — Intermedianes/banks/raders — Settlement
— Post trade services — Asset owners/managers — Custody
— Smart order routing — Data vendors/ information

and market data providers

solutions — Thud party trading venues/
— Data centre and exchanges and cther capital

network services markets companies

INFORMATION
SERVICES

— Real time data
(prices/trading)
— Indices/benchmarks
— Other information
- reference
— transaction
reporting/matching
news/workflow

More information

- See the Segmental Review
{pages 19-32) for an update
on developments in each
mam business area and for
more informaticn on KPIs
see previous page

— Read the Ainancial Review
{pages 34-39) for details
of business performance
over the past year

— See Market Structures
{pages 110-111) foran
overview of the services
provided by exchanges
MTFs and clearing houses




Overview What we do — Business model

CAPITAL MARKETS

Our central econorme function s to bring together comparies and
ather 1ssuers seeking capital with investors from around the world

Primary market

Our pnimary markets in London and Italy provide compames and
other 1ssuers of equity and debt from around the globe with cost
efficient access to some of the worlkd s deepest and most haud
pools of capital

Secondary market

Our systerns provide fast and efficient trading giving investors
and institutions access to UK and Italian equities pan-European
equities (through Turquoise} nternational depositary receipts
(on our Internationat Order Bock) European corporate and
government bonds {fixed income) and equity and ndex
derwvatwes (Italian Norwegian Russian and UK)

TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

All of our busimesses depend on technology that 1s secure stable
and performs to high levels of availability and throughput

with continued demand for new functionality and highly automated
trading we are mvesting to ncrease the capabilities of our rading
services With MillenmumiT we bave an agile efficient in-house

IT development capability to serve the Group s various businesses
MillenniemiT also sells and licenses the same exchange related
technology and services to over 30 capital markets businesses
acioss the globe

INFORMATION SERVICES

Real time data

We supply real tume prices and trading data creating the transparency

and hquidity that are essential for market users

This data s of high value and is used and referenced by market
participants and trading services As well as providing feeds directly
to chents we also distribute through providers such as Bloomberg
and Thomson Reuters These providers incorporate our data with
other information and sell it to trading firms investors and
nstrtutions arcund the world

Equities

Our prnimary markets are home to a wide range of companies
from global and well known to small and medium size enterprises
Our systerns allow our members to electronically trade equities
listed on our markets The rmajonity of trading takes place on

our Mawn and AIM markets both in London and Italy Through
Turquotse traders can also access pan-European equities

Fixed Income
The Group s MTS MOT and ORB markets piowvide platforms for
the trading of European Government and corporate bonds

Derivatives

0ur success In Tunning primary markets has enabled us to develop
denvative markets for the trading of emerging market equity
derwvatwves particularly Russian denvatives [DEM s our dervatives
market for Itallan equities Turquose trades International Order Book
denvatives and has also launched FTSE 100 Index Futures and Options

POST TRADE SERVICES

The Group offers a full range of post trade services providing nsk
management and efficiency for traders Based in ftaly CC&G provides
clearing services to a nurnber of Group and other trading venues

Monte Titoll a centrat securities depositary enables securibies to
be processed settled and held in custody

Fallowing completion of the acquisition of a majority staken
LCH Clearnet in May 2013 the Group now has majonty ownership
of clearing services In the UK continental Europe and the US

This business will be reported as a separate segment i future

Indices

Through FTSE a global leader in the calculation and provision of
indices we assist asset owners and managers and other market
users to benchmark investment performance

Other information services

To facilitate efficient trading on our markets we have developed
anumber of other reference desktop and workflow products
whichwe provide to 1ssuers investors traders retail brokers
and market makers These services include

— SEDOL — umque secunty wentifier numbering system

— Unawvista - transaction matching and reconcihation service
— RNS - Regulatony News Senvce

— Proquote —market data system

M3IIAYIAO
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MARKET POSITION AND OUTLOOK

The Group's three core business areas provide a wide range of services necessary to help
support the effective functioning of global capital markets

-]
Capital Formation

— Access to pnimary sources of equity and debt finance
for companies of all sizes from all over the world

— Secondary markets for price formation and trading

Risk Management

— Post trade services to mitigate counterparty nsk maximise capial
efficiencies for customers support the safe transfer of secunties
and optirmse cash flows for efficient collateral management

Intellectual Property

— Market data and information to icrease knowledge and transparency
as well as accessibility through the calculation of indices

— Technalegy selutions to enable markets to operate rehably
responstvely and efficiently

The markets we operate in are impacted by a wide range of factors
including structural shifts in the global economy the geopolitical landscape
and ongoing regulatory changes For an overview of market structures

see pages 110-111

Economic conditions

The past year was again shaped by market uncertainty In Europe continued
slow growth was fuelled by the sovereign debt crisis in the Eurozone and
renewed fears of a financial ¢nsis In the United States uncertainty was
dnven by the presidential and congressional elections Washington s inability
to reach consensus on the US fiscal chiff and the impending implementation
of Dodd-Frank Conversely the outlook for most emerging economies
rernaned relatively strong throughout the year with swft structural reforms
and growing domestic consurmption Downward Tevisians to the global
economic outlook coupled with continued fiscal tensions in developed
countries high volatility across all asset classes and lower tradng volumes
resulted in a challenging enviroriment for most global financial nstituticns

Alsgn the past year more European countries have introduced austerity
programmes to improve public sector inances France and Ttaly have
implemented transaction taxes on cash equity instruments as part of

an ongong process by a total of 11 EU countries that 1s expected to introduce
a financial transaction tax framework through a mechamsm of enhanced
cooperation Furthermore parhamentary elections in Italy resulted in
heightened political uncertainty while the recent banking crisis in Cyprus has
renewed fears of a full-blown European cnisis as well as questions around the
European Central Bank's roorm to manoetvre with regaid to further simulus
In spite of these factors many European stock markets have rallied since
January 2013 retail sales in Britan and Germany have risen above market
expectations and market reaction to the Cypriot events and subsequent
bailout provide sorme basis for cautious optimism

Against ths backdrop we strongly believe that the increased diversification
and balanced income streams of the Group are critical elements n
countering any macro economic headwinds Our results which include
growth in our Informalton Services and Technolagy busmesses are evidence
of the effectiveness of our approach dunng the past year Furthermare
performance in our primary and secondary markets improved during the
second half of the financial year and although there are reasons to reman
cautious renewed IPO actvity and increased investor confidence inour
markets are signalling a petential improvement in markel conditions
London s position as a inancial hub means that the Groups strategecally
well placed to support capital forrmation and provide companies listed on
our markets with dverse sources of equity caputal as well as benefiting
nvestors looking to take full advantage of changes i market sentiment
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FTSE 100 Despite a difhicult trading emvironment. our focus on client relationships o
and high performance trading technology has successfully delivered a gher @

share of equity trading compared with the previous year Share of equity z

7000 trading for UK cash equities and ltalian order book trading averaged 65 3 a
6500 per cent and 85 3 per cent respectively (excluding trading on Turquoise) -]
Onapan European basis the share of trading for the Groups equity order =

5,000 books (Including Turquoise) was 27 1 per cent versus 25 5 per cent in 2012 £

5500 During the sarme pericd principal global indices continued to be highly
volatite the FTSE 100 fimshed the financal year up 11 per cent while the

5000 FTSE MIB declined by four per cent
4500
4000 Regulatory changes also continue to shape the environment in which
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar  weoperate Further detalls are provided on the next page
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 20F2 2012 2012 2012 2033 2013 2013
Qutlook g :
For the year ahead we beheve that customer dermnand requlatory changes a
FTSE MIB and evohing market conditions will continue to shape our business and z |
allow us to explore and create new opportunities Our acquisition of a 5 .
majornty stake in LCH Clearnet which completed in early May 2013 15 a R

20 000 vitally important development that will play a crucial role in helping us to
further develop our clearing and risk management services across multiple

18 000 asset classes and geographes enhancing our honzontal open access

16 000 business model This transformative transaction positions the enlarged
Group well for a long lerm leading role in global market infrastructure

14 000 It also remforces the Groups diversification strategy encompassing both
product and geographic expansion while allowing us to work more

12000 closely with our clents

10 000

Apr May Jun Ul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jar  Feb  Mar
2012 2012 2032 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2312 2013 2013 2013

Lendon Stack Exchange order book vatue traded and share
of trading of UK equities

SLNIWILYLS TYIINYNIL dNOUD

® Average daily value traded = Share of Lit total orderbook trading
9 90%
g 8 £ £ £ 2 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ am
E, 2 2 2 3 %2 8 %5 5 6 2 8 3 0w
§ g - — T T T 60%
% 5 50%
24 40%
5 L]
5 3 = e 30%
4 o~ o Lt
2’ 2 - ™ 20%
1 10%
0 - . - - - 0%

Apt May Jun Jul Aug Sep ©Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013
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MARKET POSITION AND OUTLOOK

Regulation continues to shape the landscape

Financial markets continue 1o be at the centre of regulatory change Many
of the operations of the Group are subject o regulatory oversight and as the
Group expands {for instance by taking a majority stake in LCH Clearnet) it
will be subject to further inancial market regulationin multiple junsdiciions

Many aspects of capital markets are global in nature Until the anticipated
requlatory changes discussed below are fully implemented and thew impact
fully realised 115 difficult to predict whether the markets will continue

this global trend or will retrench However the rapid pace of technologicat
development which supports globalisation in al sectors andas key n
hnancial services shows little current sign of slowing

The flow of regulatory muatives and regulatory change has continued
unabated Despite the time that has elapsed since the real onset of the
financtal ensis i 2008 the continued difhicult econormae cimate has
meant that the direction of travel remains towards increasing reguiation
for the time being at least

Indeed the application of requlation 1s being extended into areas of financial
services and related activity that mtherlo were not subject to requlation
For mstance as a result of the disclosures in summer 2012 around the
manipulation of LIBOR the actmity of subrmission to and adrinistration
of specified indices {namely LIBOR) are as from 1 April 2013 regulated
actmities 1n the UK and are most likely to be subject to similar measures
under proposals due to be published by the European Comimission by
surmimer 2013 The Eurcpean Commission and 105C0 are also contmuing
to work on possible measures related to what they term “shadow banking™
or market based finance which are likely to extend sorme measure of
regulation 10 the activities of money markelt funds and stock lending

G20 goals

Policymakers high level goals remam establishing harmonised regumes
to rummise the scope for regulatory arbitrage increasing the scope for
regulatory intervention and introducing further measures to ensure
hinancial stability so as te rminirrise the nsk of taxpayers being requued
o underwrite falled institutions and/or market nfrastructure (all the more
wnportant given the G20 commitment in Pittsburgh in September 2009 to
ncrease the level of trading that shoutd be traded on venues and/or cleared
n clearing houses)

In the US and EU delvery of the Pittsburgh G20 commitments has been a
pronity In the US the key measure 15 the Dodd-Frank Act a wide-tanging
act that facilitates an extensive set of rule making by supervisory bodies
on regulatory structures bringing OTC derwatives on to trading verues and
nto clearing ncreased regulation on the establishment and operation of
CCPs and tools for resolving failled investment frms and banks These rules
will also apply to LCH Clearnet LLC a DCO (derwatwes cleaning orgamisation)
n the US

In the EU dehvering the G20 agenda has resulted i a number of key
measures being proposed by the European Commssion including EMIR
(rading and clearing of OTC derwatves CCPregulation and introduction of
Trade Repositories) CRD IV (capital requirements diuective and rernuneration
policy) MIFID {trading obligation for some OTC denvatives) and CRAR
(brmqing Credit Rating Agencies within the scope of regulation)

A regulation has also been proposed relaton to Central Securties
Deposiiones (CSDs} with measures te harmeomise the authonsation and
operation of central secunties depositones and certamn aspects of securities
settlernent i the EU including settlement penods and settlement disciphne
This will open the CSDs to competition across the EU presenting both
opporturaties and nsks to the Group Inaddition there have been measures
on short selling {and settlernent disciphine) and reviews of regulations 1n

the areas of market abuse prospectuses and 1ssuer transparency Inmany
cases the pnimary or Level | measure has been agreed and the process of
developing the Leve! [T requiations 1s underway The newly created ESAs
{European Supervisory Authonties) play a key role in this process

The other key EU mitiative 1s T25 (TARGET2-Secunties) a project of the
ECB (European Central Bank) which aims to facihtate cheaper cross-border
settlernent across Europe after earlier delays the implementation date

of phase 1 has been set for June 2015

UK Regulatory Structure

Inthe UK the Financial Services Act passed into law m December 2012
and the UK financial services indusiry has been operating since 1 April
2013 under a new regulatory structure The FSA has been replaced by two
new regulators and one existing body (1) the PRA (Prudential Regulatory
Authonty) 1s part of the Bank of England and 15 responsible for micto
prudential regutation (2) the FCA (Financial Conduct Authority) 1s responsible
for conduct markets (including London Stock Exchange plc) and consurmer
protection and (3) the Bank of England 1s responsible for regulating UK
€CPs (including LCH Clearnet Limited) and payment systems There s

also a Financial Policy Commuttee (FPC) to advise on macro systermc nisk
which may lead to a more proactive approach to the regulation of financial
stability for those entities regulated by PRA FCA and the Bank of England

Future measures

Apart from the regulations and measures to wnplement the exsting
legislation the European Compmission has biought forward proposals

for an FTT (Financial Transactions Tax) under the enhanced co-operation
procedure asonly 11 member States have currently ndicated an interest
n such a measure (France and Italy have already implemented their
own versions of an FTT) It 1s also expected to propose the regulation

of submussion to and admmistration of “benchmarks™ — key indices

such as LIBOR regulation on secuniles law inctuding securities holding
accounts and stock lending (as part of the measures around so-called
shadow banking) enhanced corporate governance and gender balance
requirements and arrangements for resolving failed non-bank market
infrastruciure (specificalty CCPs instially) all of which may affect

Group operations to some extent

In the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section (page 43) we set out
the potential imphications for the expanded Group of the key measures
we have identified
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Overview of regulatory landscape
The broad scope of regulation its developing reach and the expansion of the Group 1o include further clearing and other regulated businesses mean that
regulation will nevitably have a growing impact on the Group and its activities We set out below sorme of the key areas where there is hikely to be some

impact or opportunity

LSEG Division & Business Area

Legislation/measure

Scope

CAPITAL MARKETS

Primary markets

MIFID (Commuission proposal
under negotiation}

SME (Small and Medurn Sized Enterprises) Growth Market proposals —
to support SME funding and markets

Secondary (tradung) markets

FTT {non UK but i Italy
France} (Comimission
proposal under negotiation)

To wnpose transaclion tax on trades in equity and dervative markets

MIFID (Commussion proposal

Reguirements for trading venues to give access 1o competing providers

under negotiation) n ordar to promote further competition and for non-exclusive hicensing
of benchmark indices
SME Growth Market
Increased pre and post trade transparency for all non-equity asset classes
ncluding bonds and dernvatives
Increased regulatory requirernents for high frequency trading strategies
and propnietary trading
MAD/MAR (Commission index mampulation and non-listed 1ssues within Market Abuse requme
proposal under negotiation)
POST TRADE
CCPs EMIR {Level Il under Mandate CCP clearing for a wide range of eligible denvatives contracts
implementation) Mandate the reporting of dervative trades to Trade Repositories
Establish harmonised requirements for CCPs and Trade Repositones
s0 that they can demonstrate safety soundness and efficiency
EC reqime for resclution for Commussion hkely to propose recovery and resolution measures n Q4 2013
banks and CCPs {awaiting for CCPs and CSDs
Commussion proposal) May provide regulators with expanded powers (o ntervene at an early stage
including the power to require an entity to implement measures under s
recovery plan
Resolution authorities will also be provided with wide range of resolution tools
UK Financial Services Act Amends UK Banking Act to introduce recovery and resolution regime for UK CCPs
2012 (umplemented)
Settlement CSDR (Commmission proposal The Cornmisston has proposed measures (o barrmorise
Monte Titoli under negotiation) — the authonsation and operation of central secunties depositories
— certain aspects of secunties settlernent in the EU including settlernent
penods and settlement discipline
T2S (ECB praject) The implernentation date for phase 1 of the European Central Bank s 725
project aimed at facilitating cheaper cross border settlernent across Europe
has now been set for June 2015
In Novernber 2011 the ECB agreed the Frarework Agreement which sets out
the contractual nghts and obligations of the Eurosystem and each contracting
CSD Monte Titoh has already signed the Framework Agreement reconfirming
Its positioring 1n the first wave of the project
INFORMATION SERVICES
FTSE Index Regulation - EU & Requlation of specified indices
UK (awatting Commisston
proposal already n UK law)
MIFID (Commmssion proposal Access under MIFIR ATt 30 —requires non-exclusive licensing of benchmark
under negohation)
Market data MIFID {Commission proposal Post trade consolidated tape (CT) - likely troduction of requirements for

under negotiation)

harmomnsed post trade data and serme sort of “consolidated tape” process
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

“Our diversification strateqy
has radically transformed
the Group and we have
achieved much in a relatively
short period of time. We are
now a more international,
diversified, multi-asset class,
multi-market business.”

Overview

Expenience stabihty and trust are cornersiones of our industry and

London Stock Exchange Group has a long and distinguished history of
aperating systemically important financial infrastructure Our role has
been unequwocal and unwavering it remains our belief that strong capital
markets infrastructure 1s fundamental to any thrving and successful
economy Throughout our history we have facilitated the raising and
allocation of capilal and the promotion of efficient markets that support
growth and econormic prospertty Theimpact of the financial cnsis continues
to be felt across the world and with it there 1s a renewed focus on the need
for systermically sound strong financal infrastructure to support the

global financiai markets business development and growth Many of the
changes we are seeing 1n global pohey and regulation reflect this landscape
and the Group has never been more certain of the cnitical role 1t can play

in these changing times

Our diversification strategy has radically transformed the Group and we
have achreved much n a relatively short period of e We are now a more
nternaticnal dwersthed mult asset class mult-market business The
tradilienal notion of the Group as a domestic equities business 1s outmoded
Yet our core funclion of matching buyers with sellers and providing access
to funding remains we have simply added to1it

Supporting the long term development of the whole funding ecosystem
particularly for SMES remains a passion for us Only when small and medium
sized fast growing businesses can successfully and efficiently tap wnto the
means by which to fuel thetr growth will we see real economic prospenty
Equity capitat1s often the most suitable form of iinance for these fast growing
companies be it seed capital business angel investment venture caputal

of the public markets 1t 1s cnitical to get the whole funding chain working
better The Group put together a package of 1ts own measures to support
SMEs across Europe and we very much welcome recent moves by the UK
Government 1n particular to create anenvironment to support cur best and
brightest businesses including policies to help facilitate ncreased investment
n AlM-listed companies through the abolition of stamp duty on AIM shares
This wall help mobilise a wider poot of capital dedicated to SMEs and we
remnain committed to working with poticymakers and market participants

to ensure the future of these innovative and high-growth cormpanies

Strategic dellvery

In May 2013 we completed the acquisition of a majonty stake n LCH Clearnet
which receved the overwhelming support of both sets of shareholders The
stratequc 1ationale for the deal is very clear and delivers aganst many of our
geals and specifically to develop our post trade offering The transactionis

a crucial step in securing the enlarged Group s fong term role i the operation
of nternatonal capital markets and delvers opportunities for further
miternational expansion especially in the US and Asta

The first full-year benefits of the FTSE transaction are reflected m our
financial performance This s an example of how the Group 15 expanding
1ts global footprint
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Our wider role

The Group s scale and reach continue to grow and with 1t we are acutely
aware of the role we play 1n the cormmunmities i which we operate The Group
donated £1 193 000 1n the past year of which £716 000 was donated through
the Group s charitable Foundation: The opportunity to create a lasting

legacy through the work of the Foundation is reflected i a focus on youth
development In addition to the ongoing support of the Groups partner
charities Fnendship Works In-Presa UNICEF and Habitat for Humanity
London Stock Exchange recently joined Ladder for London s apprenteship
scheme and has welcorned its first mntake of apprentices Thisis i addition
to the Group s successful graduate recruitment scherne We summarise

our Corparate Responsibility actwaties on page 33 and ina fuller carporate
report which can be accessed from our website

Financial performance and dividend

The transformation of the Group ts reflected in our fimancia! performance
Despite the prevailing challenges of current market conditions we delivered
agood financial performance Another measure of the successful detvery
of our strategy has been our sustaned stiong share price performance
both relatwe to our global peer group and to the FTSE 100 ndex

The Group 1s therefore proposing a four per cent increase in the final dwdend
to 19 8 pence per share resulting i a full year dvidend of 29 5 pence per
share a four per cent nise The final dvidend will be paid to shareholders
onthe seqister as at 26 July 2013

Board changes

Doug Webb stepped down as Chief Finanaial Of ficer after four busy years
intharole He played a significant part in the recent strategic dversification
strong financial performance and growth of the orgamsation and the Board 1s
grateful for s contnbution over this time  Dawvid Warren Joined the Group as
CFOm July 2012 bringing a wealth of sentor level expenence bothin finance
and n running exchanges tncluding nine years as CFO at Nasdaq OMX

We welcorne Jacques Aigrain to the Board of Drectors following the
completion of the acquisition of a majority stake in LCH Clearnel Jacques
brings extensive expenence particutarly n nsk management and 1 look
forward to working with hum more closely i the coming months

During the period a nurmbet of senior management changes and
appointments were announced details of which are included in the
Chief Executive s statement

Conclusion

This year marks the tenth anniversary of my chairmanship of the Group

It has been an exciting decade Tamneredibly proud of the business we are
today and | beheve thal our core values have never been more relevant We
are aninternational company diversified and ambitious We remain firmly
focused on executing our strategy capitalising on the many opportunities
that are avallable to us particularly with vegard to LCH Clearnet and on
creatng long term value We are looking forward to anothet rewarding

year ahead

VRS ZJ%Z”

Chris Gibson-Smith
Charrman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

“Today, the Group has a strong,
complementary portfolio of
global brands, services and
products. Through our offering,
we look to partner with our
customers, helping drive
their, and our, success across
different markets, asset classes
and geographies. Capital raising,
risk management, intellectual
property and technology
provide some of the most
exciting opportunities for us.

It is these areas in particular
that continue to be a core
focus for us.”

Overview

This has been another sigmficant year of progress for the Group We ate fast
becorning a truly mtesnational organisation and this year we have continued
tonnovate and build our global reach delivering against our dversification
strategy and reporting a good financial performance

Today the Group has a strong complementary portfolio of glabal brands
services and products Through ouwr offering we lock to partner with our
customers helping drive thewr and our success across different markets
asset classes and geographies Capital raising rnisk management
intellectual property and technology provide some of the most excibing
opportumties forus It 1s these areas in particular that continue tobe
acore focus forus

Quality and excellence

As aGroup delivering quatity and excellence is embedded m all that we
do MillenmumlIT our world-class proprietary technology business 1s now
provding market infrastructure technology to over 30 compantes around
the world Itslow cost high speed proven technology delivers best in
class capital markets technology and three years smce joing the Group
MillenmurniT has more than fulfilled our expectations The successful
migrations of Borsa Raliana Oslo Bers and Johannesburg Stock Exchange
1n 2012 have enabled us to fully decomrmssion our legacy platform and
are textbook examples of how this low cost flexible resilient technology
1s changing the ndustry Locating our technology locally helps support
both customers and regulators and we continue to build on our success
competing for and winning new business including contracts with HieX
LME and a new partnership with Botsa de Valores de Lima We also
continued to develop our technology skl set through mmovation and
partnerships and we recently completed the acquisition of a majoriiy
stake in GATElab a highly complementary technology business

The Group s ability to attract companies domestic and international

small and large to hst onits markets 1s reftected m a number of igh profile
offerings in the past year including Direct Line Sberbank and esure in
London and Brunello Cucinelh and Moteskine in Milan The Group has been a
long term advocate of the need for a fundamental rebalancing of our global
econormy away from an excess of bank finance and debt towards a more
stable system where equity plays a greater role in funding growth Earher this
year London Stock Exchange announced plans to launch a new ‘High Growth
segment on 1ts Main Market to meet the needs of fast growing companies
Acting as a launch pad this segment wilt help companies aspiring to seek a
prermum Mam Market listing The Group warmly welcomed the aboliton of
stamp duty in the UK on AIM shares in tms year s budget and continues to
work with Government and other stakeholders in promoting and supporting
policies that will help mnovative high growth blue chip comparies of
tomorrow to thrive

Private mvestor dermand for access to fixed ncorme has been reftected

n the performnance of the Group s retail bond platforms MOT 1 Italy and
ORB 1n the UK MOT has over 1 100 histed bonds and regularly sees €1 billion
of trading a day A new professional segment on ExtraMOT dedicated to
the trading of debt mstruments 1ssued by both listed and unlisted Itahan
companies has provided comparnes with a flexible and accessible source
of finance without an overly extensive hsting process

Over £3 bilion has been raised on ORB in the three years since it was
launched and the new FTSE ORB Index which is the first performance
benchmark for retail bonds trading on ORB sigrufies the increasing
matunity of the market and growing secondary market hquichty
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Qur fixed incorme platform MTS has responded to the regulatory dnive to bnng
efficient transparent access to European fixed income markets MTS Credit

a poneening new electromc platform for the trading of euro-denominated
non-government bonds has signed its first pnme bank to the serace MTS
atso launched a new dauy repo index RepoFunds Rate

In denvatives our innovative new dertvatives market for durum wheat AGREX
commenced trading on our IDEM platform The Group continues to develop its
position as a leading marketplace for Russian index and equity dervatives

The International Beard wich we announced last year has begun trading in
collaboration with owr first partrer Singapose Stock Exchange The new trading
imitiative wall extend trading hours for the most actively traded secuntiesin
both markets to around 15 hours each day providing more opportuntties

for investrment tradmg and risk management for participants i London

and Singapore Over tirme we believe it could enable the development of
24-hour global trading in cash equities

Partnership and {innovation

The acquisitions we have made over the past four years have helped to
transform the Group Mast notably MillenniumIT FTSE and more recently
the purchase of a majonty stake in LCH Clearnet completed in May 2013
Each of these offer long term diversification hewghtened opportumities for
collaboration and strong growth prospects

We do not believe in a one size fits allmodel  Rather we beheve that our
offering needs to be tallored for different custorers markets and geagraphies
This 1s particularly true m technology where we locate our technology
infrastructure close to our customers and regulaters delwering cost oversight
and commercial advantages to both This approach differentiates the way we
operate and has partnership and innovation at its core We think this offers the
optimum product and service for our customers the optmum strategy for our
bustness and the optimum opportunity for us 1o deliver value for investors

LCH Clearnet brings to the Group greater breadth and depth of offering new
customers new skills and expertise but above all it champions a custormer
preferred model in mulli-asset multi-veriue cleanng and rnsk management
services The open access horizontal model1s umque in our industry and
promotes customer chaice and collateral efficiency partnersmp and
collaboration The model 15 structured n such a way as to give regulators and
the rmarket enhanced levels of comfort from the greater systernic resikency
that open access ultirnately prowides Better more efficient risk management
15 a key dniver of change 1n our industry and we beleve that LCH Cleamet

will be the first choice for a host of new and existing trading venues resulting
from the implermentation of Dodd-Frank in the US and EMIR n Europe for
the simple reason that mest cormpetitors operate closed vertical silos

Iwould like 1o warmly welcome Jacques Aigramn ian Axe the LCH Clearnet
management tearn and staff across the world to the Group We very much
look forward to workang together

We continue to see the benefits of the full inctusion of FTSE m the Group FTSE's
successful track record of winning new business by competing on product
attractiveness service and innovation was ighlighted by Vanguard s selection
of FTSE as the index benchrark provider for six of thewr international equity
index funds [t marked the largest ever international index benchmark provider
switch and underlines FTSE s continued growth as a global brand FTSE further
remnforced its global business development ambitions with a Jont venture
with TMX Datalinx which will see it become the third largest fixed income ETF
wndex provider globally wath over US$1 trillion in assets under managerment

In a natural extenston to its existing product offering UnaVista has apphed to
becorne a Trade Repository With the increased requlatory obligations coming
into force Unavista will be able to provide customers with a simple one-stop
reporting solution for both EMIR and MIFID

Management
We have further strengthened the Group s executive management team aver
the past year o reflect cur increased diversification and international presence

Dawd Warren and Alexander Justham have both joined the Group bringing
a wealth of expenence in financiat markets to thewr respective roles as
Group Chief Financial Officer and CEO of London Stock Exchange plc
Antoine Shagoury also tock on the role of COO 1n addition to s role as CIO
and David Lester was appointed Group Director of Strategy Mark Makepeace
Joned the Executve Commitiee as Group Director of Information Services

The Group has also taken steps reflecting the expanding and changing nature
of the Group to significanily strengthen its audit and nsk management
capabilites with the appomntments of a new Chief Risk Gfficer Dhane Cote
and a Head of Internal Audit Diane Céte and 1an Axe CEO of LCH Clearnet
joIn the Executive Committee following the year end

Outlook and priorities

The Group has conttnued to make s)gmficant stndes forward in the execution
of its stated strateqy The imtiatves we have undertaken over the past few
years to become more efficient and to diversify our business have laid the
strong foundations or which to build and dnive the Group forward Our industry
rermnains subject to widespread structural change but the strength and breadth
of our business make us well pasitioned to benefit from these changes as
well as the opportumties presented by an improving economic environment
In the year ahead we will remain frmly focused on achieving the expected
benefits from recent transactions and investment i new products as well

as continung to seek new growth opporturities

Our active engagerment with policyrmakers around the wosld promoting safe
transparent and successful competitive markets 1s dernonstrating the vital
role that strong capital market infrastructure plays The Group s place in
soclety has never been more relevant from job ereation by impraving access
to equity financing for SMES 10 the provision of criical nisk managerment
infrastructure through LCH Clearnet 1115 our behef that strong capital
markets infrastructure 1s a bedrock of econamic prosperity

The transformational changes we have made to the Group would not have
been possible without the enthusiasm and dedication of our staff across the
globe and I thank them for their unrelenting cornrmitment e the delivery of
ourvision The coming year will see us consclidate on the progress we have
made As ever there 1s alwaus more todo but we are optimistic about the
year ahead and we will contiue to focus on building best in ciass capabihties
extending our global footprint and o developing opportunities now with
LCH Clearnet as part of the Group

~A A

Xavier Rolet
Group Cheef Executive
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

As we continue to execute our successful expansion and dwversification strategy,

our focus remains consistent increasing efficiencies, internationahsation and developing
growth opportunities In particular, we made good progress n the last year on integrating
our strategic acquisitions, diversifying our service offering by product and asset class,
and further developing our strateqic customer relationships Exceptional people, a
commmtment to nnovation and partnership and high performing technology continue

to underpin the delivery of our strategy

ACTION

Building best in class
capabilities

— Invest in skills and infrastructure

— Implement high performance and
cost-effective technology

— Stnict cost control
— Strong risk management oversight
— Excellent custormer service

— Extend sales and distnbuton capabilibes in Asia
and the US

— Establish and develcp partnerships in key geographies

Creating a
global business

~— Contimue to build a pesition in attractive high growth
emerging markets

Partnerships with clients

Developing
opportumties

— Invest n post trade and risk management services
to deliver new and added value to customers

Innovative products and services

~ Dwersify offering into new asset classes and
chent segments and create innovative solutions
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Income by product / geography — diversification of income over
PROGRESS last 10 years
2004 £237m* 2013 €853m?

Product

We have bullt a strong and efficient business
— Three year, Group-wide technology upgrade completed

putting cost-effective technology at the heart of

the business }
— Integration of acquired businesses 1s strengthening

our skill set and our pool of management expertise

— {ost base held flat\n 2013

FINUNUIAQYD

® Capitat markets 50% @ Capital markets 1% S -
- @ Information services 37% @ Post trade services 24% % !
Our fOOt'pﬂ'I'lt is global ® Technology & other 4% @ Information services [excl FTSE)  20% -
® FISE 16% z
— With LCH Clearnet we now have arcund 2,800 employees @ Technology services % g
n
based in 13 countnies, delivening services worldwide Gther 2% =~
B
— Qver 50 per cent of Group revenue was generated outside ]
the UK Geography E -
~— Bulding profile n North Armmenca wath FTSE s Vanguard E .
index win and fixed income index IV .
— MillenmumiT partnenng with global clients Mongolian SE, }
Johannesburg SE and Borsa de Valores de Lima g
x
~ T
We are successfully diversifying to take b g
advantage of growth opportunities ouK fo% @ UK 5% m
— Assel class dwersification FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital © Other 12% @ laly 18% ?,
Markets V commodity denvatives isted on AGREX and Other e g
IDEX (durum wheat and energy futures), FTSE Clirex ,z,
currency mndices 1 2004 higures prepared under UK GAAP g
2 Adjusted total income z

— Developing European SME franchuse by improving access
to capital for SMEs and investrnent opportumties for retail
nvestors AIM, AIM Italia, Elite, ORB, MOT

— Dwaersifying services offered in post trade with
LCH Clearnet, Monte Titoh and UnaVista

— Developing strong buy-side and asset owner relatonships
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STRENGTHENED SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The business 1s managed on a day-to-day basis by an Executive Commuttee The team meets
regularly to review business and financial performance, develop Group strategy, review project
development, set targets and agree actions

The Executive team (Isted below} was further strengthened dunng the year with Dawid Warren joiming as Chief Finanaial Officer and Alexander Justham
becormng Chief Executive Officer London Stock Exchange plc These new appointments reflect the growing international profile of the Group and the increasing
regulatory oversight of parts of our business Dawvid brings expenence from many years working in international capital markets and Alexander provides expertise
n financial markets regulation

Mark Makepeace also joined 1he Executive Committee heading the Group s Information Services segment which includes the FTSE Group

For further information on Xavier Rolet David Warren and Raffaele Jerusatmi who are also members of the Board of Duectors see ther biographies on page 48

k2]

Be. 1

Xavier Rolet Alexander Justham Tony Weeresinghe

Group Chief Executive Chief Executive Officer London Stock Exchange Director of Global Development and CEQ of
plc Jowned the Group n 2012 from the Financial MillennierniT Joined the Group in 2009 Prior to
Services Authority (FSA) where he was Direclor founding MillenmumIT W 1996 he was Head of
of Markets Prior to the FSA he warked at the Open Systems Division of Computerl.and
JPMorgan for 17 years where he held a number and Country Manager of Oracle in S Lanka
of roles latterly as a Managing Director at
JPMorganCazenove

Raffaele Jerusalmi David Lester Antoine Shagoury

Chef Executive Offrcer of Borsa Itahana Group Director of Corporate Strategy Joined the Group Chief Operating Officer and Chnef

and Director of Capital Markets Groupn 2001 He has over 23 years experience inforration Officer Jomed wn 2010 from the
in financial markets including with Thomson Amernican Stock Exchange (now part of NYSE
Financial Accenture and XPMG Eurcnext) where he was C10 Prior to tus role at

the Amex/NYSE Antoine held several executive
technology positions over the prececing 10 years
at Instinet most recently as CTO of Instine!
Services He has over 20 years of technology

and financial services expenence

David Warren Mark Makepeace

Chuef Financial Officer Group Director of Information Senvices and Chief
Executive of FTSE Group Founding Director of
FTSE Group 1 1995 and joned the Group in 2012
Mark has over 15 years expenence of developing
successful joint ventures and has forged aliances
wath stock exchanges acadermics and leading
industry groups

Post year end lan Axe CEQ of LCH Clearnet and Diane Cote Chief Risk Officer also joned the Executive Comrmittee
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INTRODUCTION TO SEGMENTAL REVIEW

MITAHIAAD

Adjusted total income o
£ millron g
1617 1 5
15 2 b
x
2
:.5 g
1 6
!
T ¢
Year ended 11 Mareh 2013 § B
® Capital Markets im H
1 Annual fees 385 %
2 Adrmission fees 323 E
3 Cash equities trading UK 799
4 Cash equities trading italy 246
5 Derwvatives trading 134 I
& Fued income trading 34 4
7 Other capital markets 444
2675
® Post Trade Services \
8 Clearing 361 o8
9 Net treasury income through CCP business 1167 2] ‘
10 Settlement 15 5 by
11 Custody and other 402 z
2085 5|
®_Information Services zi
12 FTSE 1341 b
13 Real ime data 969 E
14 Other information 751 E k
3063 al
® Technology Services :
15 MillenmumiIT 269
16 Technolegy 292
561
+ Other
17 Other revenues 14 5
8529
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CAPITAL MARKETS

Revenues

—

\

£267.5"

2012 £3019m

Introduction
London Stock Exchange Group provides unnivalted access o capital for a wade
range of domestic and international businesses

Our range of primary markets provides a choice for 1ssuers and investors
enabling companies to raise caputal efficiently depending on their indmdual
financing needs as well as increasing therr visibiity with a wade group of
custormers and nvestors Our secondary markets create a deep pool of
liquicity and allow active and effcient trading through our lughly
competilive trading platforms

Capital Markets revenues decreased by 11 per cent to £267 S milion (2012
£301 9 milhon) Primary markets saw revenues decrease by seven per cert
on lower 1PO and further 1ssues activity and secondary rmarket revenues
dechined by 15 per cent on lower cash equity and equity dernvative

® Primary trading volumes
Secondary
O Other Primary Markets

Year ended 31 March

Varkines at
constamt

Duning a year of challenging market conditions we listed or admitted to
trading 121 new comparmes on our markets (2012 160) A number of notable
high profile UK businesses were floated on our Main Market this year including
the insurers Direct Line London s largest UK capital raising of 2012 and esure
both of which had a good level of retail as well as institutional snvestor support
Other 1ssues ncluded Crest Nicholson a leading resudential developer and
Countrywide the residential estate agency and properly services group
Inltaly seven comparues listed including Brunello Cucinell

Our markets also remain an attractive venue for international businesses

with ning international companies joining cur Main Market dunng the year
Sherbank London s largest capttal raising of the year Megafon and KCell all
raised sigmficant amounts of capttal mghlighting that London remans the

Number of companies listed — Group

2013 2002 Varlance currency
Revenue £m tm »
3304
Primary Markets 3046 2938 2845 e
Annuat fees 385 395 (3) {n
Admussion fees 323 3t (13 {12)
B 708 765 ] _®
Secondary Markets
Cash eguities UK 799 95 4 (16} (16)
Cash equities ltaly 246 314 (22) (17) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Dernvatives 134 167 {20) (16)
Fixed income 34 357 (4) 1
152 3 1792 (15) 13}
omer T akn 462 - “ - Market capitalisation — Group
Total revenue 2675 3019 11} (9) £ biflion
2300 2440 5ggy 2399
1497

i
L

2009 2010 2011 20012 2013
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Equity money raised - Group
£ bilhon

100

17

o 34

13

. 1

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Exchange Traded Products —- number listed - Group

1885
1 661

1345

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

international listing venue of choice for companies from around the globe
We continue to support the capital raising efforts of compamies m the SME
space with 74 companies adrmtted to AIM in the UK duning the year (2012
89) Among the notabte listings were WANdisco Blur Group Chmgen and
Retroscreen Virology highlighting AM s appeal to nnovative companies
AIM also continued to attract international 15suers with 26 such companies
admitted during the year many from Asta and Afnica To further support
and meet the needs of fast growing compantes we announced our new
High Growth segment acting as a stepping stone for compamies aspirng
to alisting on the Prermium Segrment of the Main Market 1n the UK

The total amount of capital raised across our equity markets both through
1P0s and addwtional Ainancing was £18 0 billion (2012 £33 8 ilion) Difficulk
econormic conditions continued io weigh on markets but the higher number
of listings in the second half of the year 15 a positive sign of improved market
conhdence and prospects for the 1PO pipehne which rermains strong

MOT our Italian bond platform continued to bulld on last year s successful
‘BTP Halia bond 1ssues The Italian Treasuny again chose to use MOT s
extensive electronc distribution network to access online traders with further
1ssues InOctober the third issue of the BTP 1talia bond was the largest ever
bond 1ssue in Europe with more than €18 billion rawsed in four days This
was followed by the fourth tssue of the BTP Italia bond in April 2013 raising
€17 billion in two days The success of these bond 1ssues 1s testament to the
efficiency of MOT and the widespread distnbuton network of Borsa Itahana
ExtraMOT Pro the new Professional Segment dedicated to listing of bords
commercial paper and project bonds was launched in February This new
segment offers ta corporates and in particukar to SMEs a national flexible
and cost-effective market in which to take advantage of the opportumties
and tax benefits anstng from the new regulatory framework

In the UK our Order book for Retail Bonds (ORB) continues to perform well
raising over £3 2 bilhon through 35 1ssues since its inception in 2010 Over the
past year there were 17 ORB1ssues helping an increasingly diverse range of
crganisations raise over £1 7 billion by accessing the retait investor market
The success of the market 1s mghhghted by some 1ssuers returring to raise
further capital emphasising ORB s role as a reqular source of funding for
compamnes Notable sssues include EnQuest the first ol producer to launch
onORB and London Stock Exchange Group's own setail bond raising £300
rmillion in Novernber

We continue to help 1ssuers gain access to a large and diverse range of
institutional investors and private client brokers in order to boost thewr
capital raising potential In the past year we have held 14 Capital Markets
Days both on aregional and sectoral basis These included a Mongohan
Investment Summit a Lebanese Capital Market Day and our second FT/LSE
African Investment Summit highlighting the oppertunities for nvesting in
these reqions and the capital raising potentiat of companies based in these
countries Additionally we held “Raising caputal in Londen™ sermnars 1 our
domestic markets as well as in Vietnam Malaysia Kazakhstan and Taiwan
plus other events involving comparves from China and Russia and from
sectors including ol gas mining and cleantec

As part of the Mongolian Strategic Partnership agreement the Mongchan
Stock Exchange successfully rmgrated to the new MillenmumiT trading
platformn July 2012 As well as signthcantly improving the market s
technology we helped in the education of market participants and worked
with the Mongohan Government in 1ts rewritng of the country s capital
markets regulations and securities law

we continued our dnive to improve access to equity iinance for SMEs
and have engaged extensvely with policymakers We welcome the UK
Government s decision to abolish stamp duty for compames quoted

on growth markets such as AIM and HM Treasury s proposals to make
companies adrmtted to growth markets ehgible for stocks and shares ISAs
We beleve these moves will help to boost investment in growth market
shares and reduce cost of capital for the UK s fast growing job-creating
busmesses Our AIM and AIM Italia markets High Growth Segment and
STAR segment we beheve are of signihcant importance to ecohomic
growthin terms of providing funding epportunities particularly at

a time when bank credit remains restricted

In italy our SME offeningis further enhanced by our ELITE programme
which in April 2013 reached its goal of admitting 100 compares The
programme s aimed at providing suppert to fast growing 1tahan SMEs
allowing thern to boost their appeal and vistbility to potential snvestors
The STAR Conferences held in London and Milan were also highlights
providing histed and non-listed Itakan cosmpantes with opportunities

to increase thew exposure among the investor community
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CAPITAL MARKETS
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Secondary Markets

Equity trading

UK cash equity trading expenenced a weak envionment in the first mne
months of the year as markets traded in a narrow 1ange However trading
increased in the fourth quarter as confidence drove indices higher Itahan
markets continued to be volatile reftecting general econormic uncertainty
Inthe UK the average daily value traded was down 15 per cent to £4 0 bithion
(2012 £4 7 illion) i Ttaly the average daily number of trades was down

14 per cent to 223 000 {2012 260000}

Turquorse is our pan European MTF cash equity platform offering fast
competitive trading in European cash equities The platform has shown
good growth and since we acquued amajonty stake in 2010 Turquoise s
share of European equity trading has nsen from 3 O per cent 1o an average
of 56 per cent (2012 54 per cent) ending the year at 8 1 per cent for March
Turquoise continues to build the infrastructure to offer a pan-European
alternative platform including adding another cleanng service to provide
achotce of four CCPs for 1ts participants Amid lower trachng values across
Europe trading on Turguoise was down 15 per cent to €432 9 billion

{2012 €509 7 bilhon)

Qur International Order Book enables mvestors to gain access to international
1ssuers secunties via depositery receipts from a wide 1ange of developing
nations including those in Central and Eastern Europe Asia and the Middle
East Reflecting widespread slowdown across many international markets
value traded dectined by 32 per cent to US$202 billion (2012 US$296 bilhion)

During the year welaunched our International Board with Singapore Stock
Exchange The agreement allows the largest and most achively traded stocks
on each exchange to be traded by their respective member fums

Among other developmenis we also launched the Closing Price Crossing
Session in the UK which provides a further opportumity to execute business
at the days closing price inan additional continuious trading sessicn that
lasts up 1o five minutes

The London Investor Show was held in October 2012 and was spensored
by the Group for the second time continuing our cormmitment to further
the understanding of financial markets by retai investors Additionally we
launched our Private investor magazine which 1s downloaded by around
30 000 investors

Listed products

Our ETF market won the title of Best European Exchange for Listing ETFs at
the ETF Express Awards 2013 and was recogmsed as the leading exchange
n Europe for ETF trading by number of trades at the 9th Global ETF awards
In the fousth quarter the Groups share of ETF trading i Europe stood

at 35 4 per cent an increase of 4 6 percentage pownts compared with the
equwvalent period last year making us the leading venue for ETF trading

n Europe by value traded Total ETP value traded in the past year reached
£102 hillron (2012 £130 bilhon) the reduction reflecting the weak market
conditions The total number of ETPs hsted on our markets increased by
13 per cent to 1 885 (2012 1661)
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Denvatives

Global denvatwves volumes dechined in financial year 2013 largely as a result
of lower volatility Over the past year the number of contracts traded on
Turquolse Dervatives reduced by 41 per cent to 24 million (2012 41 rmullion)

IDEM the Groups Itahan dervatives market continued to expand its product
offering with the launch of Euro-denominated FTSE 100 rmm-futures
designed to appeal to private investors AGREX a new segment of the market
dedicated to agneultural commedities denivatives was also launched The
first products avadable for trading are durem wheat futures (pnmanily used
to produce pasta and couscous) with the European Union being the largest
dururmn wheat producer in the world This launch complernents IDEM Equities
and IDEX a platform for trading electnicity futures While the total number
of contracts traded in IDEM decreased 23 per cent to 359 rmillion (2012

46 7 million} stronger trading was seen in FTSE MIB futures which
Increased by 9 per cent

Fixed ncame

MTS 15 a leading regulated electronic tracing platform for intermedianes
trading European whaolesale Government Bonds and other types of fixed
Incorme secunties This past year saw volurnes increase by 14 per cent on
MTS Repo to €69 1 tnlhon (2012 €60 7 tnlhon) volume traded on MTS Cash
and Bondvision was broadly stable at €2 4 trilion (2012 €2 4 trilion) with
MTS cash volume dechining six per cert offset by a 17 per cent increase
at MTS Bondvision Impending regulatory change means that increasing
trading volumes are expected on electronic platforms as participants are
ncreasingly fecused on access to lquidity better price discoveny more
certanty post trade transparency and full straight through pracessing
MTS contmues to grow globally In the US it has been granted a
broker/dealer icence enabling MTS Markets International Inc to

offer Bondvision in the US for US treasurnes and other US & European
fixed ncome products In Apnl MTS launched the RepoFunds Rate
ndex with Brokertec remnforcing the Group s approach to bullding
quality product offenings through partnerships

We currently have 176 bonds trading on ORB (2012 152) including

111 corporate bonds four supranational bonds and 61 gilts The past

12 months have seen good growth in on-book trading as the service
starts to gam traction We now have nine dedicated ORB market-makers
praviding continuous two-way tradable prices and 30 speciahst retatl
brokers as ORB members

Traching on MOT 1n Ttaly the most hquid and heawly traded retail fixed
income platform m Europe beat the record volumes of 2012 wath an
11 per cent increase n total trades to &6 22 milkon (2012 5 59 millon)
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POST TRADE SERVICES

Income

® (leaning

Net treasury iIncome
@ Settlement
O Custody & other

£208.5"

2012 £228 5m

Year ended 31 March Variance st
constant

2013 2012 Verlance st curTency

Revenue tm tm

Clearing 361 411 (12) (7)

Settlement 155 189 {18) {13}

Custody & other L A02 46 3 2

Total revenue 918 101 6 (10) (&)

Met treasury income

through CCP business 116 7 1269 (8) {4)

Total income 2085 2285 9 (4)

Introduction

Paost Trade Services are crucial to the secunties trading industry Our

post trade businesses Monte Titol and CCE&G provide the markets with
depository custody risk and collateral managernent cleanng and central
counterparty services in order to rmtigate nisk and ensure the efficient
running of capital markets

The post trade regulatory landscape s undergemng significant changes
emphasising the importance of the role of Central Secunities Deposidaries
{CSDs) and clearing houses in post-crisis financial markets It also creates
opportunities for growthin this area as more reliance s placed on post
trade infrastructure providers Our continued strong service in volatile
market conditions emphasises the tigh quality of our nisk management
and post trade processes

Total incorne (incluchng net treasury income} for the Post Trade Services
division fell by mine per cent to £208 5 million (2012 £228 5 million)

CCRG

CC&aG provides nisk management open access cleanng and central
counterparty (CCP) services for 14 markets including services to non-Group
markets and has over 140 clearing members CCaG elminates counterparty
nsk acting as buyer foward the seller and vice versa becormng the guarantor
of the final settlement of the contracts CC&G provides serices actoss a
diverserange of asset classes including cash equities dernvatives closed-

end funds fixed income energy products and most recently agncultural
commodity denvatives

As aresult of lower trading volumes in equities and dervatives clearing
revenues fell by 12 per cent to £36 1 million (2012 £41 1 rmillion)

CC&G generates net treasury income by imvesting the cash margin it

holds Average daily imtial margin rose by seven per cent to €10 1 bilon
for the penod (2012 €9 4 billion) Net treasury income was down eight per
cent to £116 7 millton (2012 £126 9 million) as CC&G began investing 1ts
cash margin on a fully collateralised basis as part of the process to meet
new requlatory technical standards for the impending Eurcpean Market
Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR} This requirernent is expected toreduce
CC&G s net treasury income from its elevated levels in the Group s financial
year ended 31 March 2014

Given the importance of the role of CCPs in post-cnisis financial markets
regulatory requirements of CCPs have come under scrutiny and increased
rinumurn capital levels will be dermnanded when EMIR comes into effect
CC&G already meets these new regulatory capital levels through exisiing
capital resources and current year profit generatien and ts well positioned
for when the proposed regulation comes into force

CC&G extendedits cleanng service to AGREX a new segment on IDEM and
the only ltahan dervatives market dedicated to agnculturai commodities
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Monte Titoll

Morite Tatoh our CSD 15 a leading provider of efficient and secure pre-
settlement settterment custody asset servicing and collateral management
services It is the third targest CSD in Europe with over €3 2 tnilllon in assets
under custody and 1s a top 10 ranked international depository by Thomas
Murray the specialist custody rating nsk management and research firm
with an AA 1ating

In the past year Monte Titol processed 55 3 million settlement nstructions
down 19 per cent on the previous year reflecting lower trading levels in

the Italian equity and fixed income markets (2012 68 2 milhon) Monte
Titeh continued to provide a low cost and efficient settlernent system

with a settlement rate of 99 4 per cent of trades Monte Titoh s settlement
rate exceeds the Eurcpean settlernent standards

In Septernber 2012 Monte Titol launched X-COM This platform provides
anew service for tr-party coflateral managemnent allowing customers
to manage thew invesiment strategies and fnancing more efficiently

It offers an efficient rehable and cost-effective spectrum of semaces
enabling Monte Titoh s chients to collateralise ther exposure regardless
of secunty type nationalty or cunency

Monte Titolt has signed the TARGET2 Securities Framework Agreement

and will participate wn the first wave of 72S scheduled to go-live in 2015

725 will be the new centralised settlement platform for securities developed
and operated by the Eurosystern (the European Central Bank and the national
central barks of the Eurozone) created to provide settlement services for
any type of transaction 1n Central Bank money Monte Titoli 1s the largest
€SD entering m the fust wave and will be able to offer major European
plauers access to settle cross-border contracts as if they were domestic
eliminating probems such as delays and errars in the nteraction of

different settlement systems

Monte Titolt has an extensive customer base of over 370 banks brokers CCPs
trading venues and rore than 2 100 1ssuers and 1t provides asset servicing for
awide range of inancial instruments  Assets held under custody at Monte
Titoh increased by five per cent to €3 23 tnllion (2012 €3 08 tnilion)

Settlement instructions
millten

839
720 508 68 2
»3

2009 2010 2011 2002 2013

Average assets under custody

€ tnllion
323
302 308
269 287

2009 2010 201 2012 2013
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CASE STUDY

LCH.Clearnet

On 1 May 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of a majonty stake in LCH Clearnet

This transaction 1s hugely significant, ncreasing the Group's cleanng and risk managerment
capabilities and providing opportumties for growth The financial performance of LCH Clearnet
will be included n the Group's financial reporting from the date of completion By way of
background to this important new part of the Group, an introduction to LCH Clearnet 15
provided over this and the next page

Introduction

LCH Clearnet 15 a leading multinational cleanng
house with clearing operations in the UK, the
Eurozone the US and an expanding presence in
Asia LCH Clearnet provides services through which
counterparty nsk s mitigated across multiple
asset classes for sell-side clearing members and
buy-side clients in conjunction with trading
venues globally

As a central counterparty {CCP) LCH Clearmet
sits in the middle of a trade as the buyer to every
seller and the seller to every buyer If either party
defaults on the trade LCH Clearnet owns the
defaulter s nisk and becomes accountable for

s habihties During the hfe of a trade or that of
a portfolo of trades tCH Clearnet processes all
cash flows and continuously marks the trade

or book to market catling vanation and imitial
margin n relation to prevailing nsk of the

overall portfolio

Fundamental to LCH Clearnet s nisk process 1s
its collection of quality collateral from cleanng

mernbers and clients as insurance to unwind
the trades in the event of a default

OTC derivatives

SwapClear 15 the world s leading interest rate
swap clearing service clearmng more than half of
allinterest rate swaps and more than 90 per cent
of cleared swap trades The value of notional
outstanding on SwapClear stood at $371 trillion as
at the end of March 2013 ayear on yearincrease
of 29 per cent Clhient clearing for asset managers
hedge funds pension funds and banks 15 growing
rapdly with $11 9 trihon notional cleared in
calendar year 2012 atready overiaken with over
$15 tnllion cleared i the first three months of
2013 Growth of SwapClear s US business will be
aided 1n 2013 by LCH Clearnet s acquisition of
IDCG renamed LCH Clearnet LLC SwapClear has
8t cleanng members as at the end of April 2013

ForexClear was launched in March 2012 cleanng
nterbank foretgn exchange (FX) non-delverable
forwards (NDF) i six currencies It expanded to
11 currencies 1n June 2012 Itisrecogmsed as

371"

notional vatue of outstanding on
SwapClear as at 31 March 2013

€143"

normnal value cleared of fixed ncome
n the 12 months to March 2013
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the leading FX clearing offering with 14 clearing
members and strong interest from potential
chents The worldss first 24-hour OTC FX cleanng
service has seen volurmes grow contmuously with
cleared notional value of $686 billlon and 55 000
tickets since launch to the end of March 2013

CDSClear offers industry leading default
management provisions and clears the broadest
set of European credit indices 1ts mternational
service was launched in May 2012 wiich added
10 new sell-side participants to its existing
domeshic French service [t has cleared €140
bilhon nottonal value to end March 2013 with
open Interest standing at over €13 billlon

Fixed income

LCH Clearnet's RepoClear one of Europe s largest
clearers of fixed ncome plays an important role

n the facilitation of interbank hiquidity The 12
months to March 2013 saw €143 trilhon n nominal
value cleared

commoedities and listed derivatives

LCH Clearnet provides clearing services for nterest
rate and equity devvatives as well as a range of
commodities markets including power and
associated energy markets base and precious
metals and agricultura! products 1t also pravides
clearing for OTC forward fresght agreements for
the most actely traded routes

Cash equities

LCH Clearnet provides cleaning services for a
number of European listed cash equity markets
and multilateral trading facthties It has been at
the forefront of industry imibiatives to ntroduce
competition and provide cost efficiences for users
of the European cash equities markets through the
implementation of interoperable arrangements
with other CCPs

MNet investment income

Net investment mcome 1s the result of revenue
earned on assets posted to the cleaning house
less interest pawd to the members on ther imbial
margin and default fund contributions The
primary role of the mvestment function 1s the
protection of client assets Prudent investment
and robust kquidity nsk management remain at
the core of LCH Clearnet s investment strategy
with nisk parameters set by independent

nsk cormmittees

Looking ahead

The Dodd-Frank Act in the US and EMIR i Europe
will have a sigmifhcant iImpact on the role of CCPs
Atthough yet to be inalsed one particular
implication of the regulations 15 that more OTC
dervatives are iikely to be required to be centrally

Business profile

Main types of income

OTC - SwapClear —
World s leading interest rate swap
cleanng service —

Annual clearimg member fee o1

an alternative per trade tanff

Chent cleaning up front booking fees
and mamnenance fees per trade

OTC —ForexClear —_
world s first global FX clearing service —
covering non deliverable forwards in

11 currency parrs

Annual cleaning member fees

Client clearing fees based on notional
cleared each month once client sgrvice
launches i Q3 2013

OTC ~CDSClear _
Clears the broadest set of European
credit indices —

Annuat cleanng member fees or
fees based on gross notional cleared
Clent clearing being prepared for
launch in 2013

Fixed income — RepoClear —
Market leading setwice cleanng
cash bond and repo trades across —
a number of European markets

Cleaning member fees per repo
based on nornal value and term
Clearing member fees per cash
trade based on nominal value

Commodities —
Clears a range of commodities markets —_
including metal power and assoclated

energy markets and freight

Clearing member fees per lot
Exercise and assignment fees per lot

Listed derwatwves —
Clearing services for interest rate —
and equity derwatives

Cleanng fees per contract cleared
Exercise and assignment fees per lot

Cash equities —
Leading European central

counterparty for equities and

equity equivalents such as ETFs

Cleanng fees based on the number
of trades cleared

cleared leading to ligher clearing volumes

for CCPs In partrcular the increased volume

of cleared OTC interest rate swaps could be
significant due to the vast scale of this market
LCH Clearnet s SwapClear business 1s well placed
to capitalise on this regulatory change as the
market leader i clearing interest rate swaps

LCH Clearnet s open access honzonial clearing
model brings with 1t the prospect of ngher
clearing volumes as the nature of the model
mnakes 1t possible that the number of trading
venues that clear through LCH Clearnet wall
increase n the future An example of this potential
for expansion 1s the agreement for LCH Clearnet

to provide clearing services for Nasdaq s new
European NLX platform

As the CCP with the largest global reach

{CH Clearnet 1s also well posittoned to further
expand geographicaily and thus attract more
clearing members and increase clearing
revenues In the future
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INFORMATION SERVICES

Revenues

£306.3™

2012 £2189m

® FTSE

Datacharges
O Dther nformation

Year ended 31 March

Dvganic and
constant
CUTTRNCY
2013 2012 Yarlance varfance!
Revenue £m tm %
FTSE revenue 1341 374 259 11
FTSE royalties - 131 {100) -
Real ime data 969 1028 {6) {4)
Qther information services 753 656 __15 13
Total revenue 3063 2189 40 4

1 Orgamic growth includes FTSE and TRS on a like for bke basis with prior year

Introduction

Our Infarmation Services division meets the needs of financial market
partictpants for fast rehable and accurate information as well as offering
awide range of other services such as post trade analytics and global
benchmarking index solutions i the form of FTSE

This year we have focused on integrating FTSE into our business as well as
expanding the product offerings and qualtty of our existing information services

In the past year the Information Services division increased revenue by

40 per cent to £306 3 rmillon (2012 £218 9 million) The strong performance
largely reflects the fullinclusion of FTSE revenues Reat ime data revenue
dechined six per cent to £96 9 milion (2012 £102 8 rmithon) but our other
Information Services products performed well with revenues up by 15 per
cent mn difficult market condihions to £75 3 milhon (2012 £65 & milhon)

FTSE

FTSE 15 a leading worldwide provider of information solutions helping

users benchmark the performance of ther investments and make informed
investment decisions Tt 1s a igh growth lugh quality glebal index business
with over 200 000 indices calculated acrass 80 countries and 15 the number
three provider of mdices worldwide by revenue Custormers are typically both
active and passive asset managers consultants asset owners sell-side firms
and vanous other users ranging from data vendors to service providers

The FTSE imdex business has performed well this past year despite difficult
market conditions with revenues up mne per cent to £134 1 milhon (2012 pro
farma £123 6 million) Subscription revenue increased by 13 per cent to £86 1
mmilion wath high renewal rates of 94 per cent and hicensing fees increased
two per cent to £48 0 mithon Since acquiring the remaining 50 per cent of
FTSE that we did not own in December 2011 we have made good progress
towards integrating FTSE into the Group and we are on track to achieve the
targeted cost savings

In June 2012 FTSE partnered with Curex Group to launch the FTSE Clrex FX
Index Series an innovative range of real time independent time-stampead
valuation metrics to support the creation of currency mvestment products
hedging tools and overlay strategies The mdices are calculated in real ime
and are available 24 hours a day five days a week and provide benchimarks
for 199 currency pairs and eght benchrmark currency baskets

FTSE has alsc entered into an agreement with the Shenzhen Secunties
Information Co Ltd a subsidiary of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange to
undertake new mdex telated research and to create specialised A Share
indices with a focus on alternative weighting methodologies and
environmental social and govesnance (ESG) benchmarks

In October 2012 Vanguard selected FTSE as the index benchmark provider
for s international equity index funds with aggregate assets of Us$170
billion This represents the largest ever international ndex provider switch and
rarses FTSE s profile in the US as well as further establishing the business as a
truly global equity index provider In Novernber 2012 Lyxor the third largest
ETF provider in Europe by assets under management chose FTSE as the
index provider for its Global Real Estate ETFs

In April 2013 FTSE and TMX Datalmx announced that they had completed a
transaction to combine their fixed wncorne busimesses 10 a new joint venture to
become FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets This new business becomes
the third largest fixed income ETF index provider globally FTSE owns a 75
per cent majority stake in the joint venture with TMX Group holding a 25

per cent stake This transaction increases FTSE s profile in
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North Armerica and also stiengthens its posiion i fixed income the fastest
growing asset class i the ETF and mutual fund segments

FTSE continues 1o expand its global presence not only in North America

but also in Asia bullding partnerships with exchanges ncluding Singapore
Malaysia and Tawan The world s largest China ETFs are also inked to FTSE S
ndices i New York London and Hong Kong with potentially sigmficant
growth opportunities in this area as China 1aises the investment quotas

for foreign mnstitutional investors

Real Time Data

Our Real Time Data service provides the primary reference data for UK and
Itahan equities delivered by our advanced market data platform This data
15 used by traders brokers and fund rnanagers around the globe

The number of professional users accessing real tme data across our direct
network or through 200 network service providers and market data vendor
partners decreased by seven per cent to 84 000 for London Stock Exchange
(2012 90000) and by one per cent to 137 004 for Borsa ltahana (2012 139000}
These falls were targely the result of headcount reductions and general cost
cutting in the sector The performance of our non display data business

has been strong and has helped to offset the declines 1n terrinal usage

Other Information Services

Our other Information Services offerings Include a range of reference data
processing data management connectivity and software products {0
meet client needs for enhanced and secure information services

Unavista 1s the Group’s secure hosted platform for all matching validation
and reconcihation needs It offers services for requlatory reporting trade
confirmations reconcihations and reference data Dermmand for Unavistas
product offering remains strong and we now have over 9 000 usersand a
community of over 500 chents that access arange of flexible asset-class
neutral business solutions designed toimprove the efficiency of ther
operational risk and regulation while maintaining a complete audit trait
for the trade Unavista opened its Asian office based in Hong Kong 10 2010
and has expanded its global presence into the Americas with its New York
office Unavista provides a number of regulatory services to the market
including pan European MiFID Transaction Reporting and solutions

for Dodd-Frank short-selling and EMIR Unavista also provides a trade
confirmation matching service for both equity and equity swaps helping
brokers Investment managers prime brokers and others commumcate
and match post trade data rehably and simply

SEDOL 15 our global mutti-asset class numbering system which has been
upgraded on to the latest Unavista technology platform providing reference
data and umque wentihcation codes {or global equity denvatives and fixed
income secunties The SEDOL Masterfile Sennce database provides clients
with access to reference data on over 10 rmilion hive and almest 30 million
historical instruments from over 400 trading venues across more than

120 countries

Proquote 1s our cost-effective global market data provider and offers a
wide range of trading services through its trading platform and electronic
execution gateway In the past year Proquote s new trading platform was
successfully launched and we now have 32 RSPs trading with over 100
brokers with retail flow consideration of around £3 ilon a month Proquote
has also launched mternational RSP trading to a number of venues as well
as connectwity for Uit Trust traching wath Calastone and Cofunds Proquote
has a partnership programme with other companies including factset
SunGard and Dhgitat Look offering solutions for nisk survedllance and best
execution Proquote continues to offer market data through its Proquote
Connect product set

RNS remains a leading hugh qualty service for UK real time regulatory
news announcements RNS helps companies and ther intermedianes to
fulfil thear UK and other global regulatory disclosure obhigations in the most
efficient and trusted way providing regulatory filing and press release
options for 27 stock exchanges and regulatory bodies across 23 countries
Qver 250 000 announcements were processed by RNS during the year
coverlng the majonty of all price sensitive UK company announcements

ETF assets under management benchmarked to FTSE indices
US$ atlion

143

55

2012 2013
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Revenues

a

£56.1m

2012 £52 6m
y
& MillenmumiT
Technology
Year ended 31 March Organk and
constant
currency
2013 2012 Variance vaHance'
Revenue tm £m ® %
MillenmumIT 269 222 21 34
Technology 292 304 (4) (4)
Total revenue 561 526 7 11

1 Orgamc growth exludes GATElab

Introduction

The Groups Technology Services provides high speed trading platforms
real time market data andinfrastructure products and services to our own
markets and a wide range of customers including banks specialist trading
firms and other exchanges

The Technology Services division delivered a good performance with
revenues up seven per cent to £56 1 millilon (2012 £52 6 million)

Exchange technology

We have now migrated our Itahan cash market and MOT fixed income market
on to the Millennurn Exchange trading platform and relocated the matching
engine and co-location services to Milan This rmigration has hetped reduce
our cost base for these markets and increased opportumties for custormers

to benefit from enhanced functionality and further expansion of our
co-location services

Oslo Bers and Johannesburg Stock Exchange (1SE) both migrated on to
Millenmium Exchange during the year with Qslo Bars platform hosted
n London and JSE s n South Afnica Both exchanges will benefit from
Millenmumn Exchange s ultra low latency and flexible systems

The result of these rmigrations has enabled us (o retire the legacy
TradElect system and increase available resource in our data centre

Our UK cash equity and Turqueise platforms continue to exhibit excellent
techmical performance attnbutable to our Millennium Exchange technology
Our Turquoise markets have an average latency of 9 microseconds

(FY 2012 Q4 102 microseconds) remaining one of the fastest operating
trading platforms m the world On the UK cash equities platform average
latency 1s 106 microseconds (FY 2012 Q4 128 ncroseconds) shghtly hugher
than Turquoise due to the more diverse range of customers that it serves
and the advanced functionality that it offers

In Post Trade Services in preparation for the migration to TARGET2-Secunties
we have begun adapting our IT systems and processes to interoperate with
the T2S platform before testing in 2014

InDecember 2012 we launched the first phase of our Group Ticker Plant
This gh speed technolegy platform provides a single normalised real
time market data protocot for broadcast of market data from across the
Group regardless of asset class trading platform or geography The launch
represents a sigraficant stepin our technology strategy It wall allow
custorners to connect to our markets or data products including incices
via a single interface
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Wa continue to expand our co-location services with customers leveraging
the full benefits of using the Midlenmum platferm This service enables
trading clients to place their servers i our data centre and thus reduce
network latency leading to high performance trading access We have
continued nvesting n our strateqically important primary data centre

by reteasing addibional data centre capacity to support business growth
with the ability to accommaodate larger server footprints and a more
dwersified client base We are integrating FTSE nto the Groups Technology
Services Operational staff wall form a single team and work has commenced
on migrating FTSE data servers into the Group s data centre

DeKB the Austnan capital market infrastructure prowider selected the Group
as technology partner to deliver a state-of-the-art real tme solution for
clearing cash market trades This platform our first commercial CCP offenng
was successfully launched for Central Counterparty Austnia (CCP A} i April
2013 and enables CCP A to provide best practice international clearing and
niskmanagement services while rmmimising costs

In February 2013 we announced the acquisition of a 67 per cent stake In
GATElab an Itahan and UK based technology companty suppiying advanced
trading and post trade technolegy globally GATElab complernents our
current technolegy of ferings through the development of muttt asset
cross-market suites of components that fulhl the needs of buy-side

sell-side and hedge fund partners

MulenmumIT

MillenmumIT offers a leading mnovatwe capitat markets technology service
MilleninumlT s systems are live in aver 30 capital markets businesses around
the world ranging from major international markets (including our own) to
emerging and frontier markets MullennumlIT has beenr part of the Group
since 2009

MillenmumIT's suite of capital market praducts include Millenmum

Exchange our flagsmp mulii-asset trading platform Millenmium SOR

our smart order router providing cost-effective smart access to all markets
Millenmum Surverflance teal ime scalable smart market monitorng and
supervision Millenmum MarketData providing gh speed access to a world
of market data and Millenmaum NewClear bringing the Millennium advantage
to multi-asset cleanng and settlernent Millenmum!T also provides enterprise
systems integration and infrastructure services to custormers in 51t Lanka

and elsewhere

In 2013 MiltennumiIT increased revenue by 21 per cent to £26 9 milkon
(2012 €22 2 mulliony}
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Technology sales and implementation

The past year has seen many successes for MiltenmumIT Dunng the
summer 1 one month MillenmumIT technology went lve at three
exchanges on three continents

— In Europe Borsa ltaliana cash equity and MOT fixed sncome markets
rmgrated to Millenmum Exchange (and switched from London to Mtlan)

— InAfnica the Johanmesburg Steck Exchange rmigrated to Millenmium
Exchange and Surveiltance

— InAsia the Mongolian Stock Exchange went live with three MillenmumiT
platforms for trading survelllance and CSD

Other rmigrations included Oslo Bers on to Millenmum Exchange Bursa
Malaysia implemented MillenniumlT s surveillance system the Group Ticker
Plant (phase one) was launched on MillenniumniT's Market Data platform
and CCP A n Austria went ive with Millenmum NewClear

MillenmiumiT continues to service our existing chents and has also won
a number of new contracts in the past year

— The Millenmiem Smart Order Reuter prodeect as the Onon Central
Gateway platform for Hong Kong Fxchanges and Clearing Limited
to simplify 1ts market access infrastructure

— Compliance Mortoring System (CMS) for the London Metal Exchange

— 0Oslo Bers contract extended to cover acquisition of Burgundy
the Norcic MTF

— Millenmum CSD technology for the Colornbo Stock Exchange

— Smart Order Router technology for TMX to aid compliance with
Canadian best execution regulation

Exchange partnerships

In 2012 the Mongohan Stock Exchange (MSE) completed the migration

on to MiltenmumlT s trading survelllance and settlement systems as part

of a project 1o modermse the country s capital markets infrastructure The
Group not only helped with the technology aspects of the modermsatton but
has also worked with the MSE to introduce new rules aligned to internaticnal
standards and move the market from a pre-funded to a T+3 settlernent cycle
The Group has also delivered a wide-ranging education programme for
Mongohan market participants Dunng the year Mongoha was mncluded

n FTSE's Frontier market Watch List

InJanuary 2013 we entered into a technology partnership with Bolsa de
Valores de Lima the Peruvian Stock Exchange MiltenmumiIT will provide
state-of-the-art trading and Smart Order Routing technotogy to Peru s
markets via its ultra low latency mghly scalable trading platform

This strategic alhance will allow Bolsa de Valores de Lima to keep up with
the growing Peruvian economy cne of Latin Amenica s fastest growing
economies by creating a robust and vibrant capital market mfrastructure

UK equity trading platforms
milkiseconds

12 410

Trading sysiem latency (milliseconds)

- Turguoise

Tradelect (Jun 07}
TradElect {Oct 07)
TradElect (Sep 08)
TradElect (May 09)
TradElect {Jul 09)
TradElect {Mar 10)
Millennmum Exchange
Millenmum Exchange

- Londan Stack Exchange equity
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OUR WIDER RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has significant corporate responsibilities We play a vital economic role
by enabling companies to access funds for growth, while tooking to run our own

business responsibly

Below we surnmarise our approach and outhne some of our key
achievernents dunng the year We have also produced a detalled corporate
responsibitity (CR) report which can be downloaded at www isegq com/
corporate-responsibility/corporate-responsibility htm

Our economic role

The Group s business diecty promotes econonmc activity Our capital
markets enable companies to access funds to grow creating Jobs and
encouraging mnovation Our robust technology provides the infrastructure
that enables capital to flow our information services help investors and
companies create value by making sustamable decisions and our post
trade services help manage systemic nsks in financial markets

Through FTSE we provide the market with a wide vanety of data and tools

for institutional investors including those such as the FTSE4Good Index
Senes which support the integration of ervironmental social and governance
{£5G) considerations into the vestment process and stewardship activities
FTSE sits at an irmportant Juncture i the investment chain and 1s using its
influence to support mwestor corporate commurication and interaction

on ESG 1ssues for exampte through the dedicated ESG Service Urit

setupin 2012

The Group has an important pubc policy role for exarmple by making
the case for measures that increase investment in growing businesses
This helps ensure that companies can access the widest set of investors
and raise capital at an attractive cost It also provides wvestors with the
broadest range of investment opportunities

We also promote responsible corporate behaviour During the year
we took part in domestic and EU consultations and we ran corporate
governance mitwatives in the UK and Haly for example by producing
a gude to corporate governance for 1ssuers

Running a responsible business

CR helps us to be a better business and to create value for our nvestors

and other stakeholders Qur approach wentifies four key areas — commumty
people ethics and governance and erwironment —which are most ikely to
shape our developrent and where we can most successfully contnibute

Community

We aim to make a positive contnbution te the communities i which we
operate In total (including the distibution of ine income) the Group
donated £1 193000 (2012 £963 000) to chanty in the past iinancial year
of which £716 000 was donated through the Group s chantable Foundation

London Stock Exchange Group Foundation 1s our channel for chartable
gwing and a focal pownt for staff engagernent Durning the year the
Foundation focused on projects that help young and disadvantaged people
reach their potential by developing Iife skills and business enterpnse

It approved donattons to 27 chanttes 1n addition to long term suppaort

for our partner charties Fnendship Works Habitat for Humanuy SriLanka
and In-Presa

People

To remain competitive we need to attract and develop a diverse skills
base that can thrive 1n uncertain markets and identify and deliver growth
This year we have invested in developing a new behavioural framework
which focuses on behaviours that are key to our long term success

We also mvested n potential through our third graduate in-take joined Ladder
for London s apprenticeship scheme and continued to develop our staff through
appraisals and traimng

Ethics and governance

Transparenicy and trust remain vital for nspaning confidence in our markets
and for our business success We have a number of policies and guidance

for our staff toensure appropnate conduct in all that we do During the year
we reviewed and updated our Code of Conduct which sets out the behaviours
we expect from our dwectors and staff

The Board increased its focus on nsk and we introduced a new enterprise nisk
management framework which will enable us to better monitor assess and
manageour risk profile The Board views this as particutarly important followang
the LCH Clearnet transaction and the consequent increase m business
dedcated to post trade services and risk management See pages 50-59

for more detal regarcing the Board s approach to Corporate Governance

Environment

Our direct environmental impacts arise from the energy we use i our offices
and data centres from travel and from waste This was the base year for our
data collection and repor ting processes for our Group environmental data
wncluding carbon emssions Sustainability software was deployed 1o calculate
cur emissions and enable iImprovernent targets to be set for the corming year
We continuie 10 make good progress as shown by our Catbon Disclosure
Project score nising from 23 per cent to 66 per cent We also sigmficantly
mcreased recychngrates from 61 per cent 1o 84 per cent

Looking ahead

As our business grows we continue to Teview our approach to sustainability
As part of this we aim 1o develop along term CR strategy i the coming year
In the short term we have set objectives to enhance both our economic role
and our performance

we will continue to support the growth of the Cleantech sector on our markets
promote responsible mvestment wath retail inwestors and work on integrating
LCH Clearnet into our sustainability approach Additionally with the hkely
introduction of carbon reporting requirements by the UK Government we
will work with London listed chents to help them to prepare for these new
tegulations in a nanner that will be most mearungful for investors With
regard to the fow pillars of our CR approach our objectves include setung
and publismng environmental targets on our website during FY 2014 and
alhigning the Foundation s approach more directly to our overall CR strategy

Comic Rehe! opened the London market as part of the Group s anrual Chanity Tradng Day

March 2013
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Highlights

— Total revenue up seven per cent at £726 4 milhon (2012 £679 8
rmilhon) and adjusted total income up five per cent at £852 9
million {2012 £814 8 million) on an organic constant currencly
basis both were down three per cent

— Operating profit before amorbisation of purchased ntangibles
and non recurring itemns down three per cent at £430 2 million
(2012 €441 9 mulion)

— Operating proht decreased three per cent to £348 4 milhion
(2012 £358 5 mullion)

— Adjusted basic earmngs per share grew five per cent to
105 3 pence (2012 100 6 pence) including the benefit of the
one-time priar years tax adjustrment while basic earmings
per share fell 58 per cent to 80 4 pence (2012 193 6 pence)

— Cash generated from operations increased five per cent to
£487 5 millicn (2012 £462 4 milhion)

— Year end operating net debt {0 adjusted EBITDA at T 2 imes
(2012 14 times’) nsing to 2 1 tunes on an tilustrative pro
forma basis takmng into account the LCH Clearnet and FFSE
TMX Debt Capttal Markets transactions

David Warren
Chief Financial Officer

10n a pro forma basis as if the Group had owned 100 per cent of FTSE for the
entire year ended 31 Maich 2012

Vartance at

Year ended 31 March organic and
canstant

2013 012 Yarlance currency
Revenue tm £m % =%
Capital Markets 2675 3019 (11) )]
Post Trade Markets 918 1016 (10) (4)
Information Services 063 2189 40 4
Jechnology Services 561 526 7 11
QOther 47 48 @) £2)
Total revenue 726 4 679 8 7 (3)
Net treasury income
through CCP business 167 1269 18) 4)
Other income 98 81 21 23
Adjusted total mcome 8529 B14 8 5 (3)
Operating profit before
amortisation of purchase
intangbles and non-
recurring items 430 2 4419 (3) (6)
Operating profit 348 4 358 5 &3] 5
Adjusted basic earnings
per share 1053p 1006p 5
Basic earnings per shave 804p 1936p (58)

Organic growth 1s calculated in tespect of businesses owned for at least
12 menths and so excludes GATElab and presents TRS and FTSEon a
like for like basis for the periods consolidated m the prior year

Adjusted total income ¢ million
¢ Increase o Decrease

900
850
800
750 196
700
2012 FX impact 2012 Organmic  Acquisitions 2013
Orgamc and
constant

cureency
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Capital Markets
Year ended 31 March variance at
constant
Revenue ”c'ri m:’r: v“m:: i
Primary Markets
Annual Fees 385 395 3} (1)
Adnmssion Fees 323 370 [13) {12)
Total Pnmary Markets 708 %5 (. ©
Secondary Markets
Cash equities UK 799 954 (16) (16)
Cash equities Italy 246 314 (22) (17)
Dervatives 134 167 {20) (16)
Fixed income 34 4 357 {4) 1
Total Secondary Markets 152 3 1792 (19 (13}
Other b 4 46 2 (4) -
Total tevenue 2675 3019 {11) (9

The Capital Markets dwsion faced sigmficant headwinds through the year
resulting 1n suppressed markets and weaker investor conhdence Despite
this we rematned well positioned to benefit from rebounding conhdence
towards the end of the year with Q4 revenues up eight per cent on quarter
three revenues

A decline 1n annual fees was due to suppressed market capitalisations in
both the UK and Italy as well as a reduced number of companies across
all the mamm markets partly offset by pricing changes in the UK

Total money raised on our markets in the year was £18 0 bilion (2012

£33 8 bilhon) reflecting the continued dampened cenfidence for new [POs
and more signthicantty a decltne in the value of further 1ssues Admissions
to our prirary markets continued to be affected by economic uncertainty
with the nurnber of new 1ssues on the UK Main Market down 34 per cent
to 40 and on AIM down 17 per cent to 74 Despite the lower volume of new
1ssues and the reduction in further ssues admission fees declined by
only 13 per cent as the average value of new 1ssues i 2013 was higher —
particularly 1n the UK markets which were up three per cent

On our cash equities market inthe UK the average orderbock daily value
traded was £4 0 bithon (2012 €4 7 billlon) We have hetd our average yield
on the SETS order book at 0 68 basis pomts (2012 0 69 basts points) with
the share of value traded improved at 65 3 pes cent through the year (2012
average 62 0 per cent) [n Haly order book volume decreased 13 per cent
10 223 000 per day (2012 260 00C) Revenue from Turquoise equities our
pan-European equities platform also decreased due to lower value traded
caused by an overall contraction inthe market The annual average share
of European equity trading tmproved for the second successive year to
56 per cent and by the end of the year had increased to exght per cent
the lughest in three years

Dervatives revenue decreased as both IDEM volurmes shrank ard Turquoise

was affected particularty by a decrease in Russian contract volumes In Fixed

Income MOT volumes grew 11 per cent while i MTS good performance

1n our MTS Repo (volumes up 14 per cent) and Bondvision (value traded

up 17 per cent) markets was partialiy offset by a decline mn volumes in cash
markets Other capital markets revenues of £44 4 million primarily comprise
fees for membership of and connectmty to our markets

Post Trade Services

Year ended 31 March

Vastancs at
constant

Revenue n['r: 20[1': vm": s
Clearing 361 411 {12) {7
Settlement 155 189 {18} 13
Custody & other 40 2 416 (3} 2
ma_l revenue o 918 lq_lg _ {10} {&)
Net treasury mcome

through CCP business 116 7 1269 (8) (4)
Total income 208 5 2285 {9) [4)

Post Trade Services has seen srnall declines across all revenue and income
lines with a year on year decrease N ncome of mine per cent to £208 5
rmllion The European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) will come
nto effect dunng our financial year 2014 and we remaimn well placed to be
compliant by ths time

Clearing volumes in cash equities and denvatives were down i line with
lower trading in Capital Markets which pnmanly led to the overall decrease
in clearing revenues offset by growth n fixed income

Settlernent contract volurmes were negatively wmpacted by larger chents
mplementing internal netting processes as well as increased netting by
central counterparties which along with lower trading volurmes led to an
overall dechine in revenues of 18 per cent

The average value of assets under custody grew by five per cent leachng
to anncrease m year on year revenues from Custody and other on a
constant currency basis The main increase 1n assets under custody came
n Government Bonds as structural reforms n Europe led to higher 1ssues
and increase in market values in the security type
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CC&G Initial Margin € billion
# Covered by Secunties o Covered by Cash
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Net treasury ncome berefited from continued growth in fixed income
volurme through the CCP which led to average imtial margin held increasing
seven per cent to €10 1 billion (2012 €9 4 bilhor) m fne with growth trends
ovet recent years with the percentage of imibial margin held in cash averaging
80 per cent (2012 78 per cent) The continued volatiity m Italian markets

and low iguichty i the talian interbank market combined with the Group s
active treasury management largely mantained the returns made The wider
spreads i the second half of 2012 and the rmgration to secured investments
n 2013 have seen a reduction in second half revenues of 32 per cent compared
with prior year EMIR wll requure CCPs to hold 95 per cent of margin in secured
mvestments which will lead to a decline m returns made dunng the coming
financial year We remain strongly focused and dedicated to workang with
regulators and are on track to be comphiant within the required imeframe

Secured investments? %
@ Secured Cash investments
o Unsecured Cash deposits
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2 Excludes cash deposited with LCH Clearnet SA through CC&G 5 interaperability arrangement

Information Services

Variance at
Year ended 31 March arganic and
constant
2013 2012 Varlance cuTrency
Revenue tm £m % %
FTSE revenues 1341 374 259 1
FTSE royalties - 131 (100} -
Real time data 969 1028 (6) (4)
Dther information services 753 656 15 13
Total revenue 306 3 2189 40 4

The full year impact of the FTSE acquisition has led to a sigmificant increase
In revenues in the Information Services diviston FTSE s own revenue has seen
ayear on year increase of mine per cent primarly driven by anincrease in
subscription revenues from net new business and the rmigration of Vanguard
ETFsto FTSE We remain on track to achieve the three year target set for FTSE
revenue synergies with the SEDOL business benefiting in particular n 2013

Real time data revenues wete down six per cent year on year as the UK
continued o see professional terrminal decknes down seven per cent In
the year while Italy saw a move io fower value terminals

Other mformatton services performed strongly particutarly in SEDOL and
Unavista which alsa benefited frorn the full year impact of the purchase
of TRS the trade reporting mechamsm to UK requlatory authornties

Technology Services

Year ended 31 March Variance at
organic and
tanstant
2013 2012 Variance currency
Revenue £m £m % %
MillenmumiT 269 222 21 34
Technology 292 30 4 (%) [4)
Total revenue 56 1 526 7 11

MillenmumIT continued to perform well in the year As well as developing
technology for the Group MillenmumiT had key deliverables with Oslo Bers
tondon Metat Exchange and Bursa Malaysia among others MillenmumIT
revenues also benefited further from igher sevenues framits Enterprise
Service Provision division




Business review Financial review

7

Operating expenses £ mullion
® Increase ¢ Decrease

450
400
s
350 109
300
2012 FX 2012 Estim-  Orgamic  Acquist 2013
impact  Orgame ated tions
and inflation
constant
currency

The Groups Exchange Hosting service continued to perform well despite
chents consolidating space whie the ASP business continued to dehver
revenue growth through new clients and rew product hines 2013 key
achievernents included the UK eguities market go-live wath MillenmumiT
Ticker Plant the Group s new real time data services technology and

Oslo Equities markets successfully rmgrating to the Millenmium Exchange
platform Dunng the period the Group also acquired a majonty stake m
GATElab an Italy/ UK based company supplying advanced technology for
trading and post trade services around the world further complementing
existing technology capabilities and commitment to chents

Operating expenses before amortisation of purchased intangibles and
non Tecurning items were flat year on year on an orgarc and constant
currency basis taking into account esttmated nflation The acquisition
of GATElab in December and the acquisitions of FTSE and TRS in the
prior year led to a 14 per cent inCrease in year on year costs We remain
committed to mantaimng mgh levels of cost control including realising
synergles as part of the FTSE acquisition where again we are \nline to
achieve our three year target

Non-recurring costs of £11 3 millien were mainly professional fees incurred
nrelation to the LCH Clearnet transaction and FTSE integration costs offset
by non recurming other income of £18 3 million recewved from TMX Group
faltowing the termmanation of the 2010 merger agreement

Finance income and expense and taxation

Net finance costs ncreased by £6 9 milon matnly as a result of
mgher fixed interest accruals on the £300 milhon retad bond 1ssued
n November 2012

The Group s effective tax rate on profit before amortisation of purchased
intangibles and non-recurnng ttems and excluding a one-time prior years
adjustment of £14 6 milhon was 29 0 per cent 1 line with the prior year
(2012 292 per cent) as higher proportional profits n Italy which attract
hgher taxrates were offset by a reduction of UK tax rates

Cash flow and balance sheet

The Group s business continued to be strongly cash generative during the
year with cash generated ftom operations up hve per cent to £487 S million
Total investment in the year net of dividends received was £59 4 rmilhon

as the Group tnvested £14 3 milhon in the purchase of 2 3 per cent of LCH
Clearnet and the acquisition of GATElab along with £46 4 million on

camtal expenditure

Al 31 March 2013 the Group had net assets of £1 599 0 rmilllon (2012 £1 4497
millior) Intangible assets decreased by £68 1 muthon manly reflectng the
amortisation of purchased mtangible assets partly offset by goodwill and
purchased intangibles recognised from the purchase of GATElab The centrat
counterparty clearing business assets and hablities within CC&G largely
offset each other but are shown gross on the balance sheet as the amounts
recewvable and payable are with different counterparties Increased
repurchase agreement balances led to higher gross year end positions

MITAIY SSANISNA

JINYNHIAODD

SLINIWILYLS TYIDNYNIL dNOYUD

NOILLYWHOINI HIATOHIUVHS

MIIAHIAC




k1] Business review

London Stock Exchange Group plc Annual Report 2013

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Net debt, facilities and credit rating

2013 2012

Em fm

Gross borrowings 796 8 7571
Cash and cash equivalents L&62) [(2169)
Net denivative inancial assets 07) 310
Net debt 3499 538 ¢
Cash set aside 2000 1650
Operating net debt 549 9 7030

At 31 March 2013 the Group had operating net debt of £5499 nllicn after
setting aside £200 mmillion to meet regulatory clearing and commercial
requirements Following the changes to European regulaiions under EMIR
CC&G has satisfied ws regulator Bank of Italy that it willmeet the new
requirenents wath its fimancial postiion during the year underpinned

by strong orgamic profits and cash generation

The Group s gross borrowings increased by £39 7 mithon following the

1ssue of a £300 million bond to UK retail investors which was completed on

2 Novernber 2012 The pricing and size of this bond represented a milestone
n the development of that market and played a useful part 1 supporting
the growth dunng 2012 of the Group s Orderbook for Retarl Bonds platform
The new borrowing extended the average maturity of the Groups drawn debt
10 over 6 years and the proceeds aflowed the full repayment of drawn bank
faciities At 31 March 2013 the Group had drawn debt and committed crecit
Tines totalling £1 65 billion with £1 4 billion extending to December 2014 or
beyond With £850 million of undrawn bank lines avatlable together with

a strong cash position the Group had comfortable headroom ahead of the
planned completion of the acquisition of a fusther 55 5 per cent of LCH
Clearnet Group the assocated subsequent funding of LCH Clearnet Group s
ncreased requlatory capital requrermnents and separately the mvestrment
1n the FTSE TMX Debt Capital Markets joint venture

Debt maturity profile ¢ million
® Drawn O Undrawn
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The Group 5 interest cover (the coverage of net finance expense by
earmings before interest taxation depreciation and amoertisation both
before non-recurrnng iterns) reduced to 95 times (2012 11 8 times) due

to areduction m EBITDA and the cost of the longer term retail bond
ncreasing the Group s average cost of debt However the Groups cash
generation remnaned strong which resulted in a reduction in operating net
debt to adjusted EBITDA 10 1 2 times (2012 1 4 times on a pro forma basis
as 1f the Group had owned 100 per cent of FTSE for the whole year) despite
the increase in cash set aside to meet regulatory clearng and commercial
requrernents On an Mustrative pro forma basis taking into account the
LCH Clearnet transaction the enlarged Group operating net debt to adjusted
EBITDA would be 2 0 times which 1s in line with the position announced on
7 March 2013 The FTSE TMX Debt Capital Markets joint venture compteted
after the year end and would increase this ratio to 2 1 tumes on an
Mustrative pro forma basis

The Group s long term credit ratings remain at A- with Standard & Poor s

and Baa2 with Moody s Standard & Poor s concluded 1ts watch review of

the LCH Clearnet transachon by affirmmng on 3 May 2013 1its A-rating

and noting the pesitive impacts of recent mvestments made by the Group
However Standard & Poor s has assigned a negative outlook reflecting
among ather faciors the nisk that the Group underperforms agamst Standard
& Poor s leverage and debt servicing expectattons in the year ended 31 March
2014 Moodys has affirmed its rating following completion of its own review
with the movement of the outlook from negative to stable given the temoval
of a number of uncertainiies for the agency around the transaction and the
positive impact from further dversification of the business the LCH Clearnet
Group acquisition will bring
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Foreign exchange

ELx 2012

im im
Spot E/€ rate at 31 March 118 120
Average £/€ rate for the year 123 116

The Group's principal foreign exchange exposure anises as a result of
translating the Group s euro earmings assets and habilities from our hiahan
business into sterling A €5¢ movernent in the average £/€ rate for the
year would have changed the Group s operating profit for the year before
amortisation of purchased intangibles and non-recurnng items by
approximately £9 rmithon

The acquisition of FTSE has increased our foretgn exchange exposureto
the US dollar iy particular though smaller exposures exist in Asia Europe
Canada and the Middle East

Earnings per share

The Group recorded an adjusted basik earnings per share which excludes
amartisation of purchased imangible assets and non recurnng items

of 1053 pence an ncrease of five per cent (2012 1006 pence} including
5 4 pence relating to the one time prior years tax adyustrment Basic
earmings per share decreased by 58 per cent 1o 80 4 pence (2012 1936
pence} reflecting last year s non-recurnng revaluation of our existing
interest in FTSE following the acquisition of the outstanding 5C per cent
not already owned m December 2011
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RISK MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT

We are subject to a vartety of nisks which may have an impact on our ability to dehver on our
strategy As our Group has grown we have enhanced our risk management capabilities to
ensure that we can mawntamn our trajectory, while protecting the value of our business and

the integnty of our brand

The Group Enterprise-wide Risk Management Framework
During FY 2013 the Group developed and has since implemented an
Enterprise-wide Risk Management Framewoik (ERMF) This framework
1s designed to ensure that the risk assumed in executing our strategy
1s adequately managed across all levels of the business

The ERMF will also enable the Board and Executive Management to mamntamn
and annually attest to the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
and risk management as set out 1 the UK Corporate Governance Code

LSEG Governance structure

Flist Line Second Line .  Third Line

LSEG Board

Audit and Risk Cernmittee

Group C

LB

The components of the ERMF are as follows

— The Board 15 responsible for determuning the Group Risk Appetite
This defines the nature and extent of the risks the Group 1swiling
to take to achieve 1ts strategic objectives

— The ERMF defines roles and responsibilities for nsk management
oversight and activities including for the Board the Executive
Committee and sub-Committees thereof

— Three Executwe Sub-Commuitiees have recently been created covering
financial operattonal and new product {and market) nisk to provide the
appropriate level of risk oversight across the enlarged orgamsation

— The Group Riskand Audit functions have been separated and each has
been significantly strengthened The Group s risk control structure 1s
based onthe three lines of defence model

The First line 15 responsible and accountable for identifying assessing
and managing risk

The Second line 15 responsible for defining the nsk management process
and policy framework and for providing challenge to the first ine on nisk
management activities assessing nsks and reperting to the Group
Board Commttees on sk exposure

The Third tine of defence provides independent assurance over the
effectiveness of the systerns of controls and the ERMF

— Group-wide nsk pohicies have recently been enhanced acress the whole
business These pohcies define the level of nsk we are wilhing to take
n a number of risk appetite staternents They also set out the principles
mnimurm standards and risk managerment activities the Group requires
1is businesses and functions to follew to manage thew business within
the agreed nsk appetite

Strategic Risk Objectives
The Strategic Risk Objectives of the Group have been defined as follows

— Todentify and manage significant nisks to the delery of the Group s
business strategy

— Towdentify and manage signmficant nsks o the day to day operations
of the Group

— Towdentify and manage significant nisks to the reputation of the Group

— To have a clearly arhiculated Group nisk appetite from wiich nsk rnits
are denved

-— To have the necessary resources and capabilities to monitor and manage
alt of the Group s sigmificant nsks

— To have clear roles and responsibilities in respect of nsk management
across the Group

— To have an efficient decision making process which takes into
consideration a range of business conditions thai could impact
the sk profile of the Group

— Tooptimise cost of the Group s regulatory capital
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Risk assessment

The nsk identiheation and assessment process ailows for the monitonng

of risk trends and management actions at all levels and also faciitates the
decision making process The Group regularly performs bottorn up and
top-down nisk assessments with nisks wentified at business urit dwsignal
and Group levels Divisional nisk reports are reviewed by the Executive
Committee (and sub Cormmmttees) and the Audit and Risk Committee
{ARC) each quarter The Group Risk Report 1s reviewed by the Board at

least every six months

Each Group-level sk 1s owned by a member of the Executive Committee
who 15 Tespansible for managing or mitigating the sk n order to remain
within risk appetite Executwve Committee memberts present therr dvisions
nisk managernent processes and latest risk reports {6 the Audit and Risk
Commuttee once every six months on a rotational basis The Board recewes
presentations on matental nsks and related mitigants as appropriate

Significant new products and proposed imtiatives In new markets are now
reviewed by the New Product and Market Commmittee prior 10 approval by
the Executive Commitiee

The Report of the Audiit and Risk Committee on pages 57-59 provides
detatls of the work carned out to assist the Board in fulfhling its oversight
responsibiliies for nsk management and systerns of nternal control

Risk categorisation

The Group 1s subject to a variety of nsks and uncertainties which
may impact 1ts abihty to execute its strategy and delver its expected
performance Group-wide nisks are classihied into the following

three categories

— Corporate nsks Risks related to the strategy (including the
mplementation of strategic inittatives and external threats
to the achievernent of the strategy) alsorisks associated
with reputation or brand values

— Fnancial nsks The risk of financial falure repuiational loss
loss of earnings and/or value as a result of investment activity
lack of hiquadity funding o capital and/or the inappropnate
recording reporting and disclosure of financial taxation and
regulatory information

— Operational nsks The nisk of loss or other adverse consequences
to the businass resulting from adequate or faled nternal
processes people and systemns or from external events
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Overview of Principal Risks:

Corporate Risks Financial Risks Operational Risks
Global econormy Investment nsk (Cleanng) Change management
New products and markets Counterparty and market risk (Cleaning) Employees
Competition Settlerment and custodial nisks Security threats
Regulatory change and complhiance Capital management Technology

Acquisition of a majonty stake in LCH Clearnet Treasury

Corporate Risks

Risks related to our strategy {(including the implementation of strategic untiatives and external threats to the achievernent of our strateqy)

Also nisks associated with reputation or brand values

Risk description

Mitigation

Global economy

Wwithin the Eurozone the Group has ssgmhcant operations in Itaty a country
that has been severely affected by the financial cnsis As aresult the Group
has a substantial proportion of Ws assets and habilities denorminated in
euros and income arising from customers and products which are exposed
1o the Eurozone Additionally some of our technology operattons are based
i1 Sn Lanka

Low growth and high debt concerns charactensed the whole FY 2013 wiich
has affected the performance of both developed and emerging econormies
The Eurczone crists peaked last summer prompiing the intervention of the
£CB president in August 2012 Since then a series of actions by central
authonties such as the launch of the Eurcpean Stability Mechamsm (ESM)
and the agreement over the banking surveillance system al European level
has stabihsed the ervironment There have been several credit downgrades
of European countnes European countries remam exposed lo adverse
shocks and a weak banking sector

The Group performs regular analyses to monitor the markets and the
potential impacts on the business Actwilies include tracking Key Risk
Indicators stress testing currency hedging and frequent laison with
the Group s financial achasers

LSEG established a Eurozone working group that met regularly during the
year and closely monttored and analysed multiple market scenarios and
action plans 1n order to munimise the potential impacts stemming from a
detenoration of the macro economic emvironment The Eurozone cisis s
now a standing item on the agenda of the newly formed Group Financial
Risk Commuttee To the extent possible by the Group vanous rmitigating
actions were taken throughout the year

InSnLanka the Group mantains regular contact with key governmentat
parties and has appropriate contingency plans in place to ensure key
technology operations are not dependent on a single geography Business
Continity Managermnent {BCM) and crisis management procedures would
be invoked to manage the response 10 an unexpected event

For imote Information see Market positton and outlook pages 8-11 and Financial nsk management pages 84-87

Competition

We operate i a highly competitive industry Continued consohdation
has fuelled competition including between companies i different
geographical areas

Inour Capital Markets operations there 1s ansk that competitors will
improve thewr products pricing and technology in a way that erodes our
busmesses There s increasing competition for pnmary kstings from other
global exchanges and regienal centres The financial cnsis made maore
severe by the possibiiity of default of certan penpheral countries has
generated market instability which potentially could have a negative
wmpact on market trends new hstings and new products

In Post Trade Services the consolidation of clients has led (o a concentration:
of revenues Any future loss of hgudity or reduction in volumes on exchanges
may Impact clearing revenues

In Information Services FTSE 1s currently the third targest ndex provider
and consohdation within the industry 1s expected aver the next three to
five years Chent migration to competitors could lead to a loss of revenue

In Technelogy Services there 15 intense competition across all actwities
and there are strong and established market players in some areas where
we are establishing a presence

Compelitive matkets are by thew very nature dynamic and the effects
of competitor actvity can never be fully mitigated Semor management
are actwvely engaged with clients and the Group undertakes constant
market momitoring to mitigate nsks Cornmercial mitiatives are aligned
with our major ciients and this 1s complemented with an ongotng focus
on new techhology deptoyment and cost reduction

Wwe maintain a dedicated international marketing team focused on
key target markets The team pramates the benefits of ksting on our
markets to International 1ssuers the global advisory community and
gther stakeholders
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Risk description

Mitigation

Regulatory change

The Group and its exchanges CCPs and other regulated entities operate
mindustries that are ighly and increasingly regulated by governmental
competition and requlatory bodies at European federal national and
provingial levels

Delivery of the G20 agenda n the EU has resulted in a large number

of measures which may impact our business directly or indirectly The
European Commission has also brought forward (or 15 likely to) proposals
for a vanety of regulations in the future including a Frnancial Transactions
Tax and arrangernents for resolving falled non-bank market infrastructure

Inthe UK the financia! services industry has been operating under a new
regulatory structure since 1 Apnl 2013 where the FSA has been replaced
by three separate requlatory bodies Also wn April legislation carme into
force in the UK making “the administening of and providing information to
specified benchmarks” a regulated actwity the only specthed benchmark
15 LIBOR However Ul is possible that maore indices could be subject to
similar measuwres under proposals due to be pubhshed by the European
Comrmssiohin 2 2013

Compliance

There 1s a nsk that one or maore of the Group s requlated entiies may fail to
comply with the laws and requlatory and competition conditions to which
1t1s or becomes subject Inthis event the regulated entity n question mauy
be subject to censures fines and other regulatory or legal proceedings

Changes m the regulatory environmment form a key input nto our strategic
planning including the impact on our growth strategies both organic and
norganic We continually monitor regulatory developments and directly
engage with regulatory and governmental authorities at a national EU and
nternational level We continue to develop our relationships with the key
political stakeholders particularly at EU and UK level Potential impacts from
regulatory change are assessed and depending on the impact opportumties
are developed and rmtigating strategles and actions are planned

As the various regulatory initiatives progress there will be greater certainty
about thewr likely final form The Group continues to consider that balancing
the potential negative and positive outcornes the likelthood of major adverse
regulatory developrents 1slow Indeed further opportunities exist for the
Group to deliver solutions to help the market address the changing
regulatory ervirgnment

The Group continues to mamntan governance controls to mitigate complhiance
nsk AIM has a strong governance framework including proactive market
monitoring and suppart and education of NOMADs Compliance pohcies

are regularly reviewed to ensure that staff uphold our corporate standards

For more mformation on requlatory changes see Market Positien and Outtook on pages 8-11

Acquisition of a majonty stake in LCH Clearnet

The completion of the acquisition of a majority stake n LCH Clearnet
vepresents a sigrficant increase in LSEG s operations mcluding a matenal
ncrease in the Group s balance sheet size (due to CCP assets and habilities)
As pait of the alignment process the enlarged Group1s targeting speaific
cost savings and revenue Increases

The acquisition of a majority stake will subject the Group to increased
regulatory scruting and reparting complexity A fatlure to successfully
align: the businesses of the enlarged Group may lead to anincreased cost
base withcut a commensurate Increase m revenue a fallure to capture
future product and market opportunities and risks wn respect of capital
requirements and regulatory relationships

The acquisthion of a majonty stake in LCH Clearnet included agreeing
a governance framework with certain nights and controls for LSEG

The governance of the enlarged Group 1s ahgned and strengthened with
the additions of the CEO of LCH Clearnet to the LSEG Executve Committee
and the Chawrman of LCH Clearnet to the LSEG Board

LSEG has set up a programme management framework to deliver the
transaction objectives including the aignment of the governance and
operations of LCH Clearnet and LSEG A Steering Comimittee has been created
to provide strategic direction and to oversee progress against objectives

The new LSEG Enterprise-wide Risk Management Framework includes LCH
Clearnet and was designed to ensure appropniate risk managerment across
the whole of the enlarged Group

For more details on LCH Clearnet s business activities see pages 26-27 See also the Chairman s staternent on pages 12-13 and the Chief Executive s staternent
on pages 14-15 for more mformation on the Group s acquisition of a majority stake in LCH Clearnet
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Financial Risks

The nsk of financial failure reputational loss loss of earnings and/er capital as a result of investment actvity lack of hquichity funding or caprtal
and/or the mapprapriate recording reporting and disclosure of financial taxation and regulatory information

Risk description

Mitigation

Investment nsk {cleanng}

The Groups cleaning provder CC&G holds a significant amount of cash
and securities deposited by clearing members as margin or default funds
To ensure optimurn ongoing hquidity and immedtate access to funds
CC&G deposits the cash recerved on both a secured basis (Government
Bonds and central bank deposits) and on an unsecured basis (into the
local bank market) With the latter there is a risk of loss should a deposit-
taking bank in which funds are deposited default

The European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) was adopted on

4 July 2012 and entered inte force on 16 August 2012 On 15 March 2013
the regulatory technical standards entered ito force and the transihonal
perod wil terminate on 15 September 2013 The final target as specified
n EMIR 15 the investment of at least 95 per cent of the CCP callateral m
secured instruments

Under the ERMF CCP investments must be made 1n compliance with
the Group CCP Fmancial Risk Policy as well as policies 1ssued under the
governance of the CCP themnselves These policies stipulate a number

of nsk ranagerment standards mcluding credit and concentration wmts

In the course of 2012 CC&G started 1ts ahgrment process to EMIR and
will be fully comphant when the new technical standards take effect
on 15 September 2013 As part of this process CC&G has increasingly
invested 1ts resources in secured arrangerments and decreased

the exposure towards unsecured depostts with cormmercial banks

In addition we mamtam a close dialegue with the Bank of Htaly

one of the requlators of CCAG and 1ts deposit-taking counterparties

Committees overseeing CCP mvestrnent risk meet regularly

To date CC&G has not expertenced a capital loss as a result of the
default of a member

Counterparty credit and latent market nsk (clearmg)

CC&G guarantees final settiernent of trades and manages counterparty
credit risk for a range of assets and struments ncluding cash equities
equity denvatves energy products agricultural products and corporate
and Government bonds As a consequence the Group 1s exposed 1o
counterparty credit nisk and is also potentially exposed to rmarket

and liquidity risks 1if a mernber defaults

CC&G has aninteroperability agreement with LCH Clearnet SA for [tahan
Government bonds traded on wholesale markets Under this arrangement
CC&G makes reciprocat deposits of margins with LCH Clearnet SA to teflect
the traded positions on Itahan participants and 15 therefore exposed to
counterparty credit risk on LCH Clearnet SA

The hinancial nisks assoclated with cleanng operations are mitigated by

— Strict CCP membership rules meluding supervisory catal techmcal
and orgarisational cntena

— The mawienance of prudent levels of margin and default funds
to cover exposures to participants Each membert pays margms
cormputed at least daily to cover the theoretical costs which CCaG
would incur in order to close out open positions n the event of the
member s default Cleanng members akso contribute to default
funds managed by CC&G

— CC&G mamntains back-up credit faciiies supporting datly hauidity

Commtiees overseemng counterparty credit and latent market nisks meet
on aregular basis

Todate CC&G has not expenenced a capital loss as a result of the default
of a member

Setttement and custodhal nsks

The Group offers post trade services and centralised admumstration of
financialinstruments through its CSD subsichary Monte Titoh Monte Titol
offers pre-settlement settlement and custody services These activities
carry counterparty nsk (in particular asset comrmtraent risk) operational
nisk and custody nsk (including asset servicing risk}

Monte Titol does not provide intraday settlement financing to
1ts members

Asset commutrment risk 1s mitigated through pre-positioning {availablity
of secunty} and pre-funding {avallabiity of cash}

Operational nisk 1s rmnumised via highly automated processes reducing
adrmipustrative activities and formahised procedures for all services
Monte Titoh rmtigates IT nisks by provicing for redundancy of systems
darly back-up of data fully updated remote recovery sttes and aqreed
service levels with outsourcers

Liquichty for Monte Titoli s operations s provided by the Bank of Italy

fFor more Information on these risks see the Post Trade Services section of the Busiress Review pages 24-25) and Note 2 to the accounts Financiat Risk
Managerent {pages 84-87) For information on LCH Clearnet see section of the Business Review pages 26-27
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Risk description

Mitigation

Capital Risk
The Group incorporates a number of regulated entities within 1ts structure
Principal risks to managing this capital are

— Increases In the regulatory requirements of those companies
and/or any extension to the Group as a whole)

— Ascarcity of debt or equity (whether specific to the Group
or driven by general financial market conditions)

The regulated entities in the Group ensure sufficient capital resources are
maintained to meet regulatory requiremnents particularly in Post Trade
Services where captial Tequirements are increasing Failure to do so

could lead to loss of regulatory approvals

The Group maintams an ongoing review of the capital positions of its
regulated entihes and operates wathin capital immts which are overseen
by the Treasury Commitiee the newly created Financial Risk Cornmittee
the Executive Commmittee and the Board The Group s Treasury Policy
Tecognises the need to cbserve requlatory requirements in the
management of the Group s resouwrces

LSE plc has been subject to new regulations in terms of capital
requirements These new limits have been agreed with the regulator
and are now effective

The Group can manage1ts capital structure by varying returns to
shareholders 15suing new shares or ncreasing or reducing borrgwings
The Board reviews dividend policy and funding capacity on a regular basis
and the Group maintains cormfortable levels of debt facility headroom

The Group makes regular assessments of debt and equity market
conditions To maintan suffiaent inancial strength o access new camital
at reasonable cost and meetits objective of maintainming an nvestrment
grade credit rating the Group1s mindful of potential impacts onits key
metrics when considenng changes toits capital structure

For ore information on financial nisk see Note 2 tothe accounts Financial Risk Management (pages 84-87)

MITAIY SSANISNG

FINUNUIAODD

SINIWILYVLS TWIINUNIL AdNOUD

NOILLYWHOINI HIATOHIYYHS

MITAUIAO




46 BUSINESS review

London Stock Exchange Group ple Anwual Report 2013

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Operational Risk

The nisk of loss o other adverse consequences to the business resulting from madequate or falled mternal processes people and systems or from

externat events

Risk description

Mitigation

Technology

The Group s businesses and major revenue streams are highly dependent
oh secure and stable technology performing to hugh levels of avallabitity
and throughput Technalogy fatlures ympact our clients and can potentialty
lead to a loss of trading volumes and adversety impact the Group s
reputation and brand

The Group now ncreasingly provides its 17 development and operations
n-house with particular rekance on MillennumIT following the successful
rmgration of the Group s UK markets on to Millenmum technology While
this gives the Group a greater degree of control in this area there remains
a risk of resource over-stretch to meet both the requirernents of the Group
and those of third parties

The Group also has dependencies on a number of third parties for the
provision of hardware software commurication and networks for
elerments of its trading data and other systems

The performance and avalabihty of the Group systems are constantly
reviewed and monitored to prevent problems arnsing where possible and
to ensure a prompt response to any polential service interruption The
Group s Technology Sevvices anagement tearmn mitigates this nsk by
ensuring priontisation of all developments and operations activities
and resource utiisation and allocation 1s kept under constant review

The MillennurnT systems are designed to be fault tolerant and alternative
standby computer facilities are mantaned to imrmise the sk of
systern disruptions

The Group achvely manages relationships with key strateqic 1T supphers to
avod any breakdown n service provision which could adversely affect the
Group s businesses Where possible the Group has wdentified alternative
supphers that could be engaged 1n the event of a third party failing to
delwer on 1ts contractual commitments

For more information see the Technology Services section of the Business Review pages 30-31 For information on LCH Clearnet see section of the Business

Review pages 26-27

Change management

The Group has a nurmber of major complex projects and strategic actions
underway concurrently mcluding implementation of new technology
systemns cost managesnent nthatves and strategic development of

the Group s post trade and denvatives businesses 1f not delivered to
sufficiently mgh standards and within agreed timescales these could
have an adverse impact on the aperation of core services and revenue
growth as well as damaging the Groups reputation The volurne of
simultaneous change coutd also lead to aloss of chent goodwill
Synergies and cost benefits may not be delivered to anticipated levels

With regards to M&A and integration actvities the additional
projects and warksireams could have an adverse impact on the day
to day performance key strategic imtiatives and could damage the
Groups reputation

The semor management team s focused on the implementation of the
Groups strategy and the project pipeline in view of ther importance to
the Group s future success Each major project including those in respect
of M&A and integration 1s managed via & dedicated project workstreamn
overseen by a member of the Executive Commmittee Rigorous software
design methodologies testing regimes and test environments are
employed tominimise implernentation nisk. Product developrment tearms
are being strengthened to ensure the Group can continue to deliver
advanced trading and information technotogy to meet clients needs

For more information see Charman s statement pages 12-13 and Chief Executives statement pages 14-15
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Risk description

Mitigation

Secunty threats

The Group depends on having secure prerises and uninterrupted
operation of its 1T systems and infrastructure Potential security
threats require continuous monttoring and assessment

Terronst and cyber attacks and similar actwities directed against our
offices operations computer systems or networks could disrupt our
markets harm staff tenants and visitors and severely chsrupt our
bustness operations Civil or political unrest could impact on
companies within the Group

Long term unavalability of key premises or trading and nformation
outages and corruption of data could lead to the loss of cient confidence
and reputational damage Secunty nisks have escalated in recent years
due to the increasing sophistication of cyber cnme

The Group has well established and reqularly tested business contiutty
and cnists management policies proceduwres and guidelines in place
Security threats are taken very senously and robust physical secunty
arrangements are 1n place including clese liaison with Government
agencies and police forces as required

Additionally extensive IT secunty measures are in place to mitigate
security nisk The Group s Internet connections are pro actvely menitored
at all times and with the support of a third party mahcious trafhic

1s blocked There are also contingency procedures in place that can

be nvoked in the event of a threat agamnst the Group s mfrastructure
fFurthermore ngid secunity policies are enforced The IT secunity

team monuiors inteligence and the Group 15 a member of the Centre

for the Protection of National Infrastructure (CPNI)

Employees

The calibre quality and retention of employees 1s crilical to the success
of the Group The loss of key members of staff could have an adverse
impact on the Groups operations and ability 10 deliver its strateqy

The Group s ability to attract and retain ligh quahty ndividuals depends
on the condition of recruitment markets and cormesponding compensation
packages of inancial services technology firms and regulators with whichy
the Group competes for the same key staff

The Group operates a performance management and appraisal systern
and Executive development opportunities are provided with the
Nominations Committee responsible for considering successton plans
for key sentor postions

A performance related annugl bonus and pay review process 1s In place

for all employees Regular benchmarking of reward and incentive systems

15 performed to ensure they are competitive The Group also offers Long
Term Incentive Plans for igh performers and cnitical staff and turnover
1s monitored and reported to seror executives quarterly A centrahised
traintng budget allows a coordinated approach to development across
the Group

There are also plans to enhance talent management over the next 12
to 18 months specthcally enhancing Group succession planming and
launching a new HR system

For more information see Our wider responsibility pages 36-37 and Remuneration Report pages 54-63 For wiormation on LCH Clearnel see section

of the Business Review pages 26 27
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

UK Corporate Governance Code

London Stock Exchange Group1s committed
1o igh standards of corporate governance
and business integnity in allits activities

The Company has complied with all provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2010
{the Code) throughout the year ended

3t March 2013

Board structure
The Board comprised

— Nen-Executive Chairman who was
independent on appointment

— Non-Executive Deputy Charman who
15 also the Sentor Independent Director

— Seven other independent
Non-Executwve Directors

— Three Executive Directors

Board and Committee

Meetings in FY 2013 FY 2012
Board 15 21
Supporting committees

— Audit and Risk 5 5
— Remuneration & 3
— Normnahion 1 1

Dr Chris Gibson-Smith

Chamman of the Company and the Nomination Committee
(age 67)

Appointed to the Board 1n May 2003

Xavier Rolet

Chief Executive (age 53)

Appomted to the Board in March 2609 and appointed
Chief Executive in May 2009

Commmttee membership Remuneration Nomination [cha)
Slalls and expentence Chris is currently Chawman of Partnership
and was Charman of The British Land Company pic from 2007
until 2012 He was also previously Non Executive Durector of
Qatar Financial Centre Authanty from 2006 to 2012 Charman
of National Ar Traffic Services Ltd from 2001 ta 2005 Directar
of Lloyds TSB plc fromm 1999 ta 2005 Greup Managing Directo!
of BP plc fram 1997 to 2001 and a pasl Frustee of the London
Business Schogl the Institute of Public Policy Research and
the arts chanty Arts & Business

Other cunrent appotntments Chris 1s Chairman of Reform
Research Trust

Raffaele Jetusalmi
Executive Dmector (age 52}
Appainted to the Beard in June 201G

Committee membership Group executive

Skills and expenence Xavier was a semor execubive at Lehman
Brothers frorm 2000 to 2008 and latterly Chief Executive Officer
of Lehman in France Prior toLehman Brothers he held senior
positions at Dresdner Kleinwort Bensan from 1997 Lo 2000
Credit Swsse Fust Bostan from 1994 to 1996 and Geldman
Sachs from 1984 Lo 1994

QOther current appointments Xavier 1s a member of the
Calurntna Busmess Schoal Board of Overseers and an Hanarary
Fellow of the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investments
FSCT {Han)

David Warren
Chief Financial Officer (age 59}
Appomnted to the Board n July 2012

Committee membership Group execulive

Skalls and experience Raffaele s Chief Executwve Dfficer of Borsa
[tahana S p A and Director of Camital Markets of Londan Stock
Exchange Group plc He s also Vice Chatrman of MTS and CC&G
a Board member of Monte Titoli and CEO of LSEGH ltaba all of
which are Group companies Prior to joinmg Borsa [talanain
1998 hewas Head of Trading for [talian fixed incomne at Credit
Swisse First Baston from 1993 ta 1998 Framn 1996 he wasa
member of (s proprietary trading group mLondon Frorn 1997
10 1958 he was a Board Member of MTS Sp A representing
Crecht Suisse First Boston and frorn 1989 ta 1993 he was Head
of Trading for the fixed income and derwatives divisions at
Limo Sp A inMitan

Other cument appointments Raffaele 1s a venture pariner of
the Adwisory Comimittee of Atlantic Capital Partners GmbH

Comrmttee membership Group executive

Shalls and expenence- Prior 1o being appointed Chief Financial
Officer of London Stock Exchange Group plc David was
previousty CFQ of NASDAQ OMX from 2001 to 2009 and Seror
Adwisor to the NASDAQD CEQ from 2011 t0 2012 He was Chuef
Financial Officer at Long Island Power Authonty of New Yark
from 199810 2001 Deputy Treasurer of the State of Connecticut
fram £995 to 1998 and a Vice President at CS First Boston from
1988 to 1935

Other current appointments None
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Paolo Scaroni

MNon Executive Deputy Chairman and Semor Independent
Director (age 66)

Appownted to the Board in Octeber 2067

Commmitee membership Remuneration Nomnation

Siills and expertence Paolo has been CEG of ent since May
2005 and was previousty CEQ of PiBungton pic frem 1997 to
2002 He was a Dwector of BAE Systemns plc from 2000 ta 2004
and of [nventsys plc frarm 2001 10 2002 He was also CEQ of
Enel from 2002 to 2005 Duector from 2002 ta 2005 and

then Chairman af Allance Unichem pic from 2005 to 2006
Other cusrent appointments Paoloss currently Non Executve
Duector of Assicurazioni General Veolia Environnement
Fondaziane Teatro alla Scala and a member of the Calurmbia
Busmess School Board of Overseers

oz
Paul Heiden
Non Executwe Director and Charman of the Audit

and Rask Cornrmittee (age 56}
Apponted to the Board in June 2010

Commttee membership Audit and Risk (chaw)

Skilts and expenence Paul 15 currently Non Executive Chairman
aof Intelligent Energy Holdmgs plc and was previously Chairman
of Talaris Tapco Lirnited from 2009 ta 2012 and Chief Executve
Officer of FKI ple from 2003 10 2008 Paul was an Execuive
Director of Ralls Rayce pic from 1967 to 1999 and Group Finance
Director from 199940 2003 He has alse had previous senior
fnance rotes at Hanson ple and Mereury Comrmunications and
was a Nen Executive Director of Bunzl plc from 1998 to 2005
anxd a Non Execulive Dsrector of Filtriona ple {rom 2005 to 2006
Other current appointments Paul 1s Non Execulive Duector

of Umted Utiibes Group plc and Megaitt plc

Massimo Tononi
Mon Executive Director {age 48)
Appointed te the Boatd 10 September 2010

Comrmttee membership Audit and Risk

Shills and expenence Massimo1s Chairmanof Borsa ltahana
S pA and was previously Partner and Managing Dwector in the
uwestment banking dmision of Goldman Sachs from 2008 Lo
July 2010 While at Goldman Sachs he played a sersor role m
the business development and execution of wmvestment bankmg
transactions throughout Europe Fromn 2006 ta 2008 he was
Treasury Undersecretary at the [tahan Ministry of Ecoromy &
finance 1n Rome

Other current appolntments Massimo iscurrently a

Non Executtve Director of Mitlel Sp A SonnSpA

and Chairman of Prysmian Sp A

Baroness (Janet} Cohen
HNon Executive Director (age 72}
Appointed o the Board in Febtuary 2001

Sergio Enwotti
Non Executive Director (age 53}
Appointed to the Board in October 2007

Committee membership Audit and Risk Nomination

Skills and expenence- Baroness Cohen a Life Peer 15 currently
Vice Charman of Borsa [1aliana 5 p A Shewas previously
Non-Execuive Directar of BPP Heldings plc from 1994 to 2002
and Chatrman fram 2002 to 2006 She worked for Freshwater

LK ple from 2007 to 2009 Trilhum Partners 1td from 2009 to
2010 Management Consulting Group ple from 2003 to 2011

and Proudtoot Trustees Lirntted from 2003 ta 2011 She was also
Advisory Director of HSBC Investment Bank from 2000 to 2001
aNon Executive Director of Charterhouse Management Services
Ltd from 1988 to 1999 and Charterhouse Finaneial Services Lid
from 1989 to 1993 She was alsoa Non Executive Director

aof 1he Yarkshire Building Society from 1951 to 1995 and

vice Charman from 1995 ta 1999 She served as Governor of
the BBC from 1994 10 1999 and a Non Executive Directer of

the Defence Logistics Organtsation (MOD) from 1999 to 2005
Other current appointments Baraness Cohens currently
Presxdent BPP Unieversity College and Serwar Advisor to BPP
Holdings She is Chairman of 1he Cambridge Arts Theatre Trust

Gay Husy Evans
Non Executive Dhrector (aged 58)
Appainted to the Board in June 2010

Committee membershtp Remuneration

Skllls and expenence Sergio s currently Chief Executive Officer
of UBS Group and was previously Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of LBS Group Europe Middle East and Afnca from Apal
2011 until Novernber 2011 He has been a member of the UBS
Group Executve Board since April 2011 Between 2007 and
2010 he was Group Deputy Chief Executive Of ficer and Head

of Carporale & Investment Banking and the Private Banking
Strategic Business Area of UmiCredit Group From January 2006
to July 2007 he was Deputy General Manager and Head of
Markets and imestment Banking at UniCredit Group From 1987
untll 2004 Sergwo worked with Mernll Lynch & Co where he was
latterly Semor Vice President Co Head of Global Equity Markets
and Member of the Operating Committee From 2002 to 2003
he was a Director of Vurt X Lirmited

Other current appot s Naone

Andrea Munarl
Non Executwe Director {age 50)
Appointed to the Board in October 2007

Commmttee membership Audit and Risk Remuneration

Skills and expenence Gay)s currently an Oultside Drector of
ConocoPhilhps and a Non Executive Director of Aviva pic Itau
BBA International Lirmied Claikden Leu {Eurape) Lid and the
Financial Repoarting Councit Previously she was Vice Chairman
of the Board and Non E xecultve Chairmman of Europe for the
International Swaps and Derwatives Association from 2011 ta
2612 She was alsa Vice Charman of Investment Banking and
Investrnent Management at Barclays plc from 2008 to 2010
Head of Governance at Citl Allernative Invesiments EMEA) from
2007 to 2008 President of Tubeca Global Management from
2005 to 2007 {both part of Cibigroup) and Director of Markets
Dmson and Head of Capital Markets Sector at the UK Financial
Services Authority from 1998 to 2005

Other current appontments Gay s a Trustee of Wigmaore Hall
and Wellbeing of Women

Committee membership Audit and Risk

Skills and expenence Andreais currently General Manager of
Banca IMI the investment arr of Intesa Sanpaolo Group He was
previously General Manager of Margan Stanley Fixed [ncome
Dmwsion and since 2006 CEOQ and General Manager of Banca
Caboto {now Banca 1M} In addition he was a Director of MTS
SpA from 2003 to 2005 and of TLX S p & from January 2007

10 September 2007

Other current appomntments None

Robart Webb QC

Non Executive Director and Chairman of the
Rernuneration Cormmittee (age 64)
Appointed to the Board in February 2001

Committee membership Remunerabion {chair) Nomnatwn
Skills and expenence Roberl is Genera! Counsel and Head of
Risk far Rolis Royce plc Robert was previously Chairman of
Autanomy Cerpotation plc from 2009 to 2011 and of BBC
Worldwide from 2009 to 2012 He served as General Counsel of
British Arways from September 1998 to Apni 2009 where he was
responsible for law Gavernment affars safety securiyand nsk
management Robert was a Director of Argent Group plc from
2009 lo 2012 and the Emerging Health Threats Forum from 2006
tp 2012 He was also Chawman of Saemnus Lid from 2010 to 2011
and Head of Chambers and a practising QC at 5 Bell Yard London
from 1988 to 1998

Qther current appotntments Non Executtve Director of the
Holdingham Group Ltd He s alsa a Bencher of 1he nner Temple
and a Trustee of Comc Reliel and the Migratory Sabmon Fund
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The Corporate Governance Report which follows 1s intended to gve
shareholders an understanding of the Group s corporate governance
arrangements and how they operated dunng the year ended 31 March
2013 nclucing how the Group complied with the pninciples of the Code

Changes to the Board and successton planning

Dunng the financial year ended 31 March 2013 the Company announced
the appointment of David Warren who joined the Board as Chief Financial
Officer on 2 July 2012 following the departure from the Board of the former
Chief Financial Officer Doug Webb Mr Warren was appointed following the
engagement of external recruitment consultants A shortlist of candidates met
with the Chatrman Chief Executive and a selection of Non-Executive Directors

1and the Board have continued to work to ensure that the balance of
skills and expenence on the Board remams appropnate This has been a
particular focus in ight of the LCH Clearnet transaction and the increase
n the Group s post trade assets Since the end of the year and following
the completion of the LCH Clearnet transaction 1am pleased to welcome
Jacques Aigramn the Charman of LCH Clearnet to the Board as a Non-
Executive Director Jacques will not only deepen the Board s collectve
understanding of financial markets but alsowll add to the Board s
axpertise In the area of post trade Confirmaticn of his appontment

wili be sought at this year s AGM

The Board continues to beheve that particularly in the finanoal services
sector 1t and the Company benefit from having a number of members
who have recent and relevant expenence in capital markets

Board focus

During the year ended 31 March 2013 much of the Board s time continued
to be spent on concluding the transaction with LCH Clearnet Following the
additional regulatory capital requirements for CCPs such as LCH Clearnet
ntroduced following recommendations from ESMA and EBA your Board
approved a revised offer to LCH Clearnet Group Limited s shareholders

to ensure that the transaction continued to deliver returns for LSEG
shareholders The Board has also maintained s focus on the capital
structure of the Group s batance sheet and the Company launched a
Euro Mediurn Terrm Note Programme and its first retail bond on ORB

m Navemnber 2012

The Board as awhole supported by the Audit and Risk Committee has
nereased and deepened its focus on nsk As the Group diversifies and
grows we have reviewed the Groups Tisk framework and introduced a new
Enterprse-wide Risk Managerment Framework This will enable the Board
and Management to better monitor quantify and manage the Groupss risk
prafile The Board views this as being particularly wnportant following the
completion of the LCH Clearnet transaction and the consequent increase
1 the proportion: of the business devoted to post trade services and

risk managerment

During the year the Board has also continued 1s programme of visiting

Its overseas businesses and meeting local management The Board carried
out a tnp to New York {an office of one of the Group s information serices
businesses FTSE) to hold one of its regular meetings and meet with
customners and stakeholders

Board effectiveness

This year the Board carried out an internal review of its own effectiveness
The process and findings are descnibed on page 53 Following this review
1 am satisfied that the Board continues to perform well

Diversity

The Board continues to focus on improving dwersity including gender
dersity The Board recognises the benefit throughout the Group n having
access to the dwersity of input from pecple with a wide range of backgrounds
and nationahities This1s reflected at Board level by the diverse backgrounds
and nationahties of Directors

The Board has an an-going commuiment to strengtheming fernale
representation at Board level including requesting headhunters to
ensure that a sigrficant proportion of Board candidates are female

Investar engagement

Shareholder engagement and support remamns central to our planmng and
thinking This was again particularly important in ancther year of corporate
activity We have a comprehensive investor Telations programme which 1s
described in more detail in this Corporate Governance Report The Board
recewves regular updates on shareholder feedback at each of ils meetings so
that it 1s aware of shareholders views and concerns Shareholders are also
offered the opportunity to meet with the Senior Independent Director the
Charrrnan of the Remuneration Commttee and me as appropriate

Chns Gibson-Smith
Chairman
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Board Activities in FY2013

Key Areas of Focus

— Pursuing the Company s strategy In particular the Board spent much
of s ume considering the diversification of the Group through the
LCH Clearnet transaction

— The Board also took further steps to manage the Group s balance sheet
through the launch of a Euro Medwrn Term Note Programime and its
fust retail bond on ORB

— Fyrther improving the Group s ability to manage nisk including
approving a new Enterpnse-wide Risk Management Framework

Corporate govermance report

Complying with the provisions of the Code

The Group 1s committed to hugh standards of corparate governance and
business integrity i all of its actvities In 2012 the Code was reviewed
by the Financial Reporting Council and amendments were intreduced that
will apply to financial penods commencing on or after 1 October 2012 {the
New Code) Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013 the Company has
comphed with all provisions of the Code and in the comiing financial year
the Board wili ensure that the Company complies with all provisions of

the New Code

The Code sets out guidance in the form of mawn principles and more specihc
provisions for good governance n relabion to board leadership effectiveness
accountability remuneration and refations with shareholders The Code
applies to all compamies with a premmum listing of equity shares in the UK and
requires companies to disclose inrelation to the Code how they have apphed
its main principles and whether they have complied with all relevant provisions
throughout the year Where the relevant provisions have not been complied
with companies must provide an explanation for therr non-comphance
Further information on the UK Corporate Governance Code can be found on
the Financial Reporting Council s website at www frc org uk Thts Corporate
Governance Report forms part of the Corporate Governance Statermnent on
page 73 of the Directors Report

Board of Directors

Role of the Board

The Board is the principal deciston making forumn for the Group and 1s
respansible to shareholders for achieving the Groups strategic objectives and
for delivering sustainable growth in shareholder value Directors act m a way
they consider will promote the lang term success of the Company for the
beneht of shareholders as a whole with regard to the interests of the Group s
employees the impact of the business on the commurty and environment
and the interests of stakeholders The Board has adopted a formal schedule
of matters specthcally reserved tot including

—— eslablishing reviewing and maintairang the corporate strategy

— the annual budget

— increases or sigmhcant vanations in the terms of borrowing faciities
— committing to major capital expenditure or acquisitions and

— dwidend policy

The Board also views the brands and reputations of its subsidianes as
wnportant assets of the Group and accordingly protection of the brand
and reputation of the Group and its subsicharies including ensuning that

subsichanes continue to meet local regulatory requirements 1s also a
key part of the Board s rote

The roles of Charrman and Chief Executive are distinct and separate with a
clear division of responsibilities The Chairman 1s responsible for the runmng
and leadership of the Board and ensunng its effectiveness The Chief Executive
has delegated authorty from and 1s responsible to the Board for managing
the Compary s business with the power for further delegation in respect of
matters which are necessary for the effective runming and management

of the business The current key responsibilities of both the Chairman

and the Chief Executive are set out on page 52

Matters considered by the Board in FY2013

Each meeting Annually Throughout the year

Reparts from the
Chief Executive on
performance n each
of the business areas
Regulation Legal
and HR

Health and safety Detatled consideration
and approval of
3 Year transactions including

mess Plan
Bus — the revised offer for a

majority stake in LCH
Clearnet Group Lirnited
ncluding considering
the impact of European
capital requirernents and
approval of the revised
Class 1 cwrcular and
revised offer document

— thelaunch of the Groups
first retail bond on ORB

— thejoint venture between
FTSE Group and TMX
Group to combine their
fixed incorne businesses
FTSE TMX Giobal Debt
Capital Markets

0ff site
strategy day

Reports from the Chief
Financial Officer on the
hnancial performance

Discussion of changes
o the Group s nisk profile
and approval of a new

and pasttion of the Enterprise wide Risk
Group mvestor Management Frarmewotk
relations activity and and related policies
Treasury matters
Updates from the FSAsTiskmitigation  Discusston and approvat
Board committees programme together  of Group strategy

with a presentation

by the FSA {now FCA)

Evaluation of Board

Effectiveness

Reportsonprogress  Revtew of quarterly financial

of integration of FTSE  forecasts and funding of

mto the Group acquisilions

Executve and Non-Executive
succession planning

Review of Prasentations on
independence of the approach to nisk
Directors pursuant management 1 current
to UK Corporate financial markets
Governance Code

Budget
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Key responsibilites

Group Chairman

— Acts as an independent Non Executive Dwector and chairs the Board
of the Company

— Forges an effective Board as to composition skills and competencies

— Ensures 1n collaboration with the Chief Executive that the Beard
considers the strategic 1ssues facing the Company 1n a tumely manner
and is presented with sound mformation and analysis appropriate to
the decisions that it 15 asked to make

— Acts as a sounding board for the Chief Executive and provides general
advice relating to the management and development of the Company s
business and

— Supports the commercial actwities of the Company by inter aha
maintaming contact with the Company s key stakeholders and
maintaining dialogue wath other industry participants

Chief Executive
— Formulates the strategic direction of the Company and periodicatly
agrees this with the Board

— Ensures proper financial and business control 1S exercised within
the Cempany

— Charrs the Executive Cormimittee

— Ensures there is a clear management structure with appropriately
delegated responsibilities staffed by swtably expenenced and
quahfied staff

— Ensires appropnate reporting and communication systemns are
established across the Company

— Ensures key performance objectives are set for all operational
departments action plans and budgetary controls are established
and where necessary corrective action is taken to maximise
the performance of the Company

— Ensures the Companyss strategy and values are effectively understood
and apphied by management and staff and

— Ensures an appropriate risk management framework 1s in operation

Board and Committee meetings in FY2013

The Board held six scheduled meetings nine additional meetings on short
notice a dedicated off-site strategy day and four additonal meetings of

a Board sub-committee (not represented in the table) to consider matters
relating principally te the LCH Clearnet transaction On a number of occasions
throughout the year the Chatrman met Non-Executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors The Chairman and Non Executive
Directors also meet without the Executive Directors at the start of each
Board meeting 1o discuss the business of that meeting and other 1ssues
Throughout the Year the Chawrman also met with Non-Executive Directors
ndwidually to discuss business-related matters

Board meeting attendance in the year ended 31 March 2013

scheduted Ad hoc Strategy Taotal
Chris Gipson Smith 6/6 9/9 11 16116
Xavier Rolet 6/6 9/9 11 16716
Raffaele Jerusalm 616 99 1/t 16/16
Dawvid Warren' 5/6 9/9 /¥ 15716
Paolo Scaront &/6 8/9 on 14116
Baroness {Janet) Cohen 66 6/9 1/1 13116
Serglo Ermoth 66 59 11 12/16
Faul Heiden 6/6 6/9 111 13/16
Gay Huey Evans 6/6 879 11 15/16
Andrea Munan 6/6 779 1 14/16
Massima Tonant 6/6 VL] N 14116
Rebert webb 5/6 6/9 171 12416
Directors who left the Board in the year 31 March 2013
Doug Webb’ 1/6 = - -

1 Dawvid Warren was appointed 2 luly 2012
2 Doug Webb left the Board on 2 huly 2012

When arranging meetings on short notice every attermpt s made to
accommodate Directors dianes however inevitably not all Directors are
able to attend all such meetings The majonty of meetings where Directors
have been unable to attend were the nine additional meetings called on
short notice

when Duectors have not been able to attend meetings due to confhets

n their schedule they recewed and reviewed papers to be considered

at the relevant meeting Where they had comments or concerns on the
matters to be discussed they provided these to the Chawman of the Board
or Committee in advance of the meeting The Charman of the Board
engages with Drectors between Board meetings to discuss business

and strategic 1ssues

Dwrectors have the beneft of mdernmity arrangements from the Company in
respect of habibities incurred as a result of their office and execution of ther
powers duties and responsibilities The Company mantaned a Dirtectors
and Officers habitity tnsurance pohicy throughout the year ended 31 March
2013 This policy covers the Directors for any such habilities in respect of
which they are not indernmified by the Company and to extent to which it
has indernnified the Dwrectors the Company This msurance cover will be
rerewed Neither the Company s indemnity nor insurance provides cover for
a Dwrector in the evert that the Director 15 proved to have acted fraudulently
or dishonestly

Board balance and independence

There 1s a strong non-executive element on the Board and the Non-Executive
Directors provide deep corporate expenence and knowledge which they apply
1o their understanding of the Group and us strategy

The Board considers that the Directors possess a strong range of business
experience and that the Board has the right mix of skills and experience
gwven the size and geography of the Group The Board considers that the
appropriate balance of skills and experience 15 best actneved by balancing
continutty of expenence and new joners and also by drawing Directors from
awde range of backgrounds including both the financial markets wnwhich
the Group operates as well as broader business backgrounds
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It 15 likely that the Board wall continue to nclude Directors with current or
recent expenence in financial markets The Board believes it benefits from
tins expertise The Board also believes that the Group benefits from hawving
directors with a mxture of tenures

The Board has concluded that all Non-Executive Directors are independent
in character and judgerment In assessing each Director the Board considered
whether there are relatlonships or circumstances which are likely to affect
or could appear to affect the Director s judgernent

The Code requires that a company should state its reasons 1f 11 deierrmnes
that a director 1s independent in certain circumnstances including where

a director 1s employed by a shareholder or customer of the Company and
where a director has served for more than nine years

Andrea Munari 1s employed by Intesa San Paolo which 15 a customer of the
Group Whilst the Company values its relationship with Intesa as a customer
gwven the size of Intesa 1115 believed that Intesa s relationship with the
Company and 1ts subsidianes 1s not matenal to Intesa The Board benefits
greatly from Mr Munan s current experience in financial markets and the
Audit and Risk Commuttee alsc benefits from Mr Mumnan s expenience of rnisk
in & financial services company

Sergio Ermotti s CEO of UBS Group which 1s a customer of the Group

Mr Ermotts bnngs vast expertise and expenence of financial markets which
greatly assists the Board Gwven the size of UBS and the large number of
markets in which 1t operates 1ts relationship with the Company 1s not
matenal to UBS Additionally Mr Ermottis portfolio of responsibilities

as CEQ s extensive and as such heis not engaged directly in UBS s
customer relationship with the Company The Board benefits from

Mr Ermotti s current and deep experience in captial markets and

from his wider business experience

Janet Cohen and Rebert Webb have bath served on the Board since 2001
The Board considers that anindividual s independence cannot be determmned
aritraniy on the basis of a particular period of service The Board also
benefits from thewr expenence and knowledge resulting from the length

of ther senvice as well as thew wider business experience In line with the
Code all Directors are subject to annual re election

Board effectiveness and leadership

This year the Board carried out an internal review of its own effectiveness
The evaluation process was conducted by the Group Cempany Secretary
using a detailed questionnatre The results of the review were used to
highhight areas of strength and weakness assist in consideration of the future
development of the Board its Committees and its individual directors and
further improve ther perforrmance The review atso mcluded a separate
assessment of the Chairman s performance with feedback provided to

the Chairman on an ndvidual basis

The results were discussed by the Board and actions agreed where
appropniate The evaluation concluded that the Board 1ts Comrmittees
and 1ts individual directors were working effectwely The key area
dentified by the Board for further development was ensuring that the
Board has the appropnate skill sets to govern a more diversified Group
winch includes a greater number of post trade assets This should be
a focus of both succession planming and Beard training

Board development

Each new Director joining the Board 1s provided wath an induction
programme covenng the key areas of business of the Group Directors are
provided with key documents including strateqy documents past Board
papers an overview of the business mcluding the requlatory framework
within which the Group operates and information on therr responsibilities
under the Listing Rules Additionally Directors meet with executives from
throughout the Group to better understand each of the busmess areas
together with the Group s governance and financial and legal framewaork
Directors have access to independent professional advice if they Judge

1t necessary to fulfil their responsibilities as directors

Directors are encouraged to continually update their skitls and knowledge
of the business and bniefings are given at Board meetings on particular
parts of the business

As the Board increases n size and the Group expands inte an increasing
number of junisdictions the Board has also developed the practice of
undertaking formal visits to 1ts overseas businesses so that the Directors
can expernence first-hand key aspects of the Group s operations

Conflicts of interest

The articles of association allow the Board to authonse conflicts of interest
that may anse and to impose such lirmits or conditions as u thinks it The
Campany has established procedures whereby actual and potential conflicts
of interest are regularly reviewed appropriate authornsation is sought prior
to the appointment of any new Director and new conflicts are dealt with
then The decision to authorise a conflict of miterest can enly be made by
non-conflicted Directors and w1 making such decision the Directors must
act in a way they consider n geod faith would be most likely to promote
the Company s success The Board believes that during the year ended
31 March 2013 this procedure aperated effectively

Board Committees

The Company ensures that all Commuttees are provided with sufficient
resources to undertake ther duties All Comrmittees have written terms of
reference which are available from the corporate responsibility section on
the Company s website al www lseg com or onrequest from the Group
Company Secretary

Remuneration Commttee
Details of the Commuttee s remit and actimvities are set out in a separate
Rermnuneration Report on pages 60-71

Audit and Risk Committee
Details of the Cornrmittee s remit and activities are set out in a separate
Audit and Risk Committee Report on pages 57-59
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Nomination Committee Report

The Nomination Commuttiee members as at 31 March 2013 were Chris
Gibson-Smith (Chawman) Janet Cohen Robert Webb and Paolo Scaroni
The Committees role 15 to review the size and structure of the Board
succession planning and to make recommendations to the Board on
patential candidates for the Board The Committee normally invites
the Chief Executive to attend The Committee has wnitten terms of
reference which are availlable frorm the Group Company Secretary

or at the corporate governance section of the Company s website

www [seg com

The full Board constdered the appointment of a new CFQ The
Committee interviewed candidates for the position of CFO and
gave feedback to the Charman

The Committee and the Board have sought to ensure that appointrents
are of the best candidates to promote the success of the Company and
that appointments are based on ment with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board including gender (whilst also meeting the
requiremnents of the Equality Act} Subject to these requirernents the
Board has an ongoing commitment to further strengthening female
representation on the Board At Board level this has inctuded requesting
headhunters te ensure that as far as practicable a sigmficant proportion
of the long list of candidates are female

The Cornmitiee formally et once n the year It considered Board
and sentor management succession planring Normnation Committee
members also held a number of informal discussions during the year

Nomination Committee meeting attendance in the year
ended 31 March 2013

Chris Gibsen Smith
Baroness (Janet) Cohen
Paole Scaroni

Robert Webb

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall respensibility for the nsk management framework
and to ensure that management maintains an adequate system of internal
control appropriate for the Group s business and the risks to which it 1s
exposed The Audit and Risk Commuttee assists the Board in discharging
this respensibility by reviewing and assessing the Group s system of
nternal controls and nsk management process Executive management are
responsible for designing operating and momitoring the system of internal
controls The system of internal controls 15 designed to manage the business
within the Board s nisk appetite rather than eirminate the risk of fatlure to
acheve the Group s objectives and can only provide reasanable but not
absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss fraud or
breaches of laws and regulations

The Group operates a 3 lines of defence model forits systern of internal
control In this modet management {irst kne of defence) 1s accountable for
managing risks Risk Management and Compliance constitute the secend
line of defence and define the nsk management framework to keep the
business activities within the Group s nsk appetite Finally the internal
audit function provides the independent assurance on controls nisk and
governance as the third line of defence The system of internat controls s
amended as approprate inresponse to changes in the Group s business
and associated risks The key elements of the Group's systems of internal
controls are described below

Orgamisational structure

The day-to day runming of the Group 1s managed by an Executive Committee
whtichis chatred by the Group Cheef Executive Officer Each Executive
Comrmitiee member 15 responsible for one of the Group s operating divisions
or a major area of strategic importance The Executive Comrmttee meets
regularly to review business and hinancial performance risk exposure and
approve key detisions The Executive Comimitiee 1s supported by a Leadership
Team comprising approximately 70 Semor Managers from across the
business urits Lines of responsibihty have been clearly defined and an
appropriate framework of delegated autherihies is in place The Group has
successfully mcreased tts size and level of diversification through orgamic
and inorganic strategic inthiatives As aresult the Group started a project
duning FY13 to upgrade its existing risk management framework to ensure
w15 fit for purpose for its new size and current ambitions This included after
the year end creating three new risk sub-commttees of the Executive
Commitee to support it in monitoring and managung Group-wide nisks
New Products {and Marketl) Operational and Financial Risk Commmttees

Risk management frarmnework

The nisk management process 1s governed by a Board-approved Enterprise-
wide Risk Management Framework which was reviewed and upgraded
during the year Executive management are accountable for nisk
wdentihication analysis evaluation mitigation monitorng and reporting

In then area witin the framework established by the Board A combined
bottormn up and top down risk management approach 1s adopted wath

nisks wdentified at a business urt dwisional and Group level Divisional nisk
reqisters are reviewed by the Executive Corymittee and reported to the Audit
and Risk Committee every quarter The Group risk register 1s reviewed by
the Board at least every s1x months foflowing an updated assessment

of the nsk managerent process by the Audit and Risk Committee
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Each Group risk s owned by a member of the Executive Committee who

15 responstble for managing or miligating the risk 1o a level within the
Group s nsk appetite Executive Committee members present thetr divisions
risk management processes and latest nisk registers to the Audit and Risk
Committee every six months on a rotational basis On a serm annual basis
a divisional internal control and nisk management self-certihcation process
15 also performed Each business umt 1s required to confirm that they are

In comphance with the Groupss policies and governance procedures Any
exceptions are reported 1o the Audit and Risk Committee Internal audit
provides reqular Teports to the Audit and Risk Committee on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group s system of internal controls

and the Group s nsk framewark

An overview of the pnincipal risks and uncertainties for the Group1s
provided on pages 42-47

Policies and procedures

A framework of Group polictes and procedures has been established for

all aspects of the Group s actiities supplemented by additional local policies
where approprnate The policies are reviewed and updated on an on-going
basis to reflect changes in the Group s nisk profile and appetite Key policies
are emphasised in the employee induction process and reqularly remforced

Financial controls

Comprehensive financial reporting and review procedures are in place
with financial and key performance indicators reviewed against operational
budgets on a monthly basis at a group divisional and business unit level
The CFO menthiy management report used by the Executive Commuttee

1s shared with the Group Beard and any key 1ssues are reviewed at each
Board meeting Investment opportunities are evaluated following a clearly
defined investment appraisal process The Group has since the end of
the year created a Financial Risk Commttee and New Products (and
Market) Committee The role of these commaitteesis to oversee financal
risk management across the Group and to oversee projects to expand

I 1o new markets or introduce new products

Treasury risk management

Group treasury nsk management 15 overseen by the Treasury Commitiee
which 15 chawed by the Chief Financial Officer The Committee operates
wittn Board approved policies and meets regularly to review the
management of the Group s own capital credit market and hquidity nisks
Courtterparty mvestment and hiquidity nisks related to the CCP operations
of CC&G are separately overseen by the CCaG Board Risk Commitiee
and by the Group Executive Committee Further detals on financial nisk
managernent ate provided in note 2 to the accounts

Operational Risk

The Group manages and monitors operaticnal nisks through the setting of nsk
appetite clear defimtion of rotes and responsibilties policies and procedures
and through reporting of exposures The Group has in place committees
including the Business Continutty Committee and Technology project
cormmittees to support the operational risk managerent process The Group
has since the end of the iinancial year also created an Operational Risk
Commuttee The Cormmittee s responsile for moniioring the Groups risk
exposwe including controls that could have an impact on financial reporting
and ensuring nsks remainwithin appetite

Regulatory monitornng

Requlatory and compliance nisks n the markets i which the Group operates
are rmonitored by comphance functions These regulatory teams work closely
with the FCA (formerly the FSA) 1n the UK and CONSOB and Banca d ltaka in
Italy and cther requlators in countnes where we aperate The comphance
functions are managed independently from the customer facing business
units and report on a regular basis to local and Group Boards

Internal audit

Tihe Internal Audit function provides reliable objective and reasonable
assurance to Management Audit and Risk Comimittee members and Board
mermbers of the Group on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system

of internal controls the governance modet and the risk management
framework in place to manage nsks withm the Group s risk appetite and
achieve the Groups business objectives As a thud line of defence the
function has no operational responsibilities over the entities/processes

that it reviews

The independence of the internal audit function 1s achieved through
the following means

— The Group Head of Audht reports to the Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee of the Board and to the CFO for admimstrative matters
and has duect access to the Charman of the Board

-~ The Audit and Risk Computtee must be consulted on the appointment
or the disrmissal of the Group Head of Audit and

— The Commuittee approves the annual budget for internal audit

Conclusion

The Board confirms that through the Audit and Risk Comimittee 1t has
reviewed the operation and effectiveness of the Group s system of internal
controls throughout the year and up to the date of approval of tins Annual
Report No sigmficant falings or weaknesses were dentified duning this
review [he Board is satishied that the nsk management process and system
of internal controls accords with the revised Turnbull guidance (2005)
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Relations with shareholders

The Company tuns a comprehensive Investor Relations (IR) programrme
ensuring that existing and potential shareholders plus sell-side analysts
that produce investment research relating to the Group have access to the
Company and pubhc mformatien to appropniately understand the strategy
actwities performance and prospects of the Company The IR programme
typically consists of meetings calls presentations and inforrmation releases
on a reqular basis throughout the year based around the Group s financial
reporting calendar and following major corporate events and news flow

The IR function reporting to the CFO 15 responsible for planmng and
executing the IR prograrmme and for day-to-day contact with the markei
The CEQ and CFO engage 1n regular contact with shareholders through
meetings and presentations to discuss strategy performance and other
matters The Chawrman Senior Independert Director and Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee are also avallable to meet major investors
particularly to discuss corporate governance and remuneration as
required Over the past year senior management and the IR teamn held
286 meetings and calls with shareholders and potential investors in

the UK Europe the Middle East Asia/Pacific and North America

The Board recewves areport on IR matters at each of its scheduled meetings
incluching market expectations of inancial performance share register
composition and feedback from major investors Analyst research notes are
cculated to the Board foltowing pubhication The Group s corporate brokers
and a specialist IR adwvisory firm provide the Board with advice on shareholder
relations and share register analysts The AGM provides the opportunity for
sharehelders to meet Directors and to put questions to the Board including
the Chawmen of the Audit and Risk Rernuneration and Normination
Cornmittees The procedures for the AGM are comphant with the UK
Corporate Governance Code Voting at the AGM 15 by way of a poll to

ensure all shareholders views are taken into account

The Investor Relations section of the Company s website wwwlseq com 1s
the primary source of reqularly updated inforration abeut the Group Annual
and internim reperts and accounts interim management statements news
releases presentations and other documents are all available on the website
tegether with a hst of analysts producing research on the company and a
summary of analysts forecasts of performance Presentations of prehminary
and interim resuits are accessible by all shareholders via webcasts in real
time and also via replay for a period after the event
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT
AND RISK COMMITTEE

This repost 15 intended to give an understandmg of the role of the Audit and
Risk Commuttee i assisting the Board to fulfil its oversight responsibilities
for nsk management the systems of internat control and the integrity of
the Group s financial statements

During the year the Committee oversaw further strengthemng of the
Group s internal controls and nsk management system This included
the introduction of a new Enterprise-wide Risk Management Framework
(ERMF) (descnbed on pages 40-41)

In adchtion to the Cornmittee s regular responsibilities the Commuittee also
reviewed the financial disclosures in relation to the circular in respect of the
Company s revised offer for a majority shareholding i LCH Clearnet Group
Limited and the Prospectus in respect of the Company s Euro Medum
Term Note Programme (EMTN Programme)

Priorities in the forthcorming year will include the Group s on-going efforts
to further enhance and embed 1ts ERMF and ensure appropriate application
throughout the Group

During the year separate heads of internal audit and risk were appointed
These appointments will further assist the Cormmuttee in its overswight of risk
and audit and strengthen the three ines of defence model

Paul Heiden
Chawman of the Audit and Risk Commitiee

57

Audit and Risk Committee meeting attendance in the year
ended 31 March 2013

Scheduled Ad hot Toal
Paul Heden 414 1711 55
Baraness {Janet) Cohen Lt "M 5/5
Gay Huey Evans 3 11 415
Andrea Munari 414 11 5/5
Massimo Tonen 414 11 55

Composition and responsibilities

The Comrmittee 1s chawred by Paul Heiden who provides recent and relevant
financial expenence through his chartered accountant qualification and
career in & variety of semor finance roles In addition the Board 1s satisfied
that each member of the Commuttee has the skills and expenence
necessary o enable the Committee to discharge its responsibilities
effectively The names skill and expenence of the members of the

Audst and Risk Commitiee are provided on pages 48-49

Further detarls of who normally attends meetings and the Committees
terms of reference which are approved by the Board and reviewed on
an en-gong basis are avalable from the Group Company Secrelary

or at the corporate governance section of the Cormpany s website at
www Iseq com

MIIATH SSINISNE

JINYNYIAOD

SLNIWILYLS IVIINYNES dNOUD

NOLLYWHOSNI H3QTOHIUVYHS

MITANIAG




58 Governance

London Stack Exchange Group plc Annual Report 2012

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Commmttee may obtain at the Group's expense legal and other
independent professional advice on any matter within its terms of reference
No such advice was sought by the Commuittee during the year The Charman
reports to the subsequent meeting of the Board on the Committee s work

Activities

The Committee maintains a formal agenda which ensures that all matters
for which the Comrmttee 15 responsible are considered at the appropriate
meeting During the year the Committee discharged 1ts responsibilities
as set out 1n 1ts terms of reference by reviewing the following

— the Groups annual and half-yearly reporting including sigmficant
finanaial reporting judgernents made by management The Commuitiee
paid particutar attention Lo the revatuation of FTSE s goadwill and
valuation of the intangtble assets inherent in the businesses As n
prior years it has also reviewed and challenged the process and key
assumptions n the evatuation of goodwill for impairment including the
discount rates used management s expectations of future performance
and the adequacy of the sensitivities applied For further details on the
mpament testing see nete 13 to the accounts

reviewed the analysis of items between recurning and non-recurning

the due dilgence processes and financial information contained in the
shareholder docurmentation together with the processes for producing
the relevant working capital in respect of the revised offer 1o acquire
amajority shareholding of LCH Clearnet Group Limited

— the financing considerations of the LCH Clearnet Group Lumited
acquisition Including the capital raise requirernent of the transaction

— the process that the Board has conducted to conclude that the
financial staterments should be prepared on a going concern basis

— comphance with the Group rnsk management procedures as
described in the section an internat controls on pages 54-55

— dvisicnal nisk registers within FTSE Monte Titoh and
Group Technology

— the approach to nsk in the Group s tax stralegy

— the Group s on-going strengthening of its business
continuity arrangements

— themnternal audit annual plan and key indings from reviews
and actions taken n respense by management

— the effectiveness of Internal Audit s actmties
— the appointment of the new Head of Audit

— the external auditors report and findings from the half-year
review and year end audit

- the Group s arrangements for dealing in confidence with
employee whistle-blowing complamts and

— review and approval of the new Enterprise-wide Risk
Management Framework

Risk Management

During the year the nsk function launched a programme to review and
enhance the Group Enterpnse-wide Risk Management Framework including
rnisk appetite policies and 1isk management governance The Committee
has been actively momitoring the development and the rofl-out of the risk
management enhancerment programme

As part of its mandate the Committee reviews at least on a quarterly basis
the nisk profite of the Group and comments on the adequacy of the processes
n place to dentify and report on key nisks The Commuttee also requires
management to present on a rotational basts key nisks that could impact
the achievernerd of their business objectives and related mitigating controls

The rnsk management function 1s headed by the CRO who oversees all
aspects of isk management i the Group She reports to the Chief Executive
Offwcer and for mdependence purpeses to the Chairman of the Audit and
Risk Committee The Commuttee must be consulted on the appontrment

or the dismissal of the CRO

External audit

The Audit and Risk Commmittee undertakes an annuat evaluation of the
independence and objectivity qualihcations expertise and resources of
the external auditor The assessment also includes the effectiveness of
the audit process

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the Group s auditor for many years
Under Itahan law the auditor of regulated entities 1s appointed for nine years
and therefore following our merger n 2008 PricewaterhouseCoopers was
appointed as aucitor of Borsa Itahana until the year ended 31 March 2016
replacing Deloitte Borsa Italiana can replace PricewaterhouseCoopers

for just cause at any time during the appointment although along with
PricewaterhouseCoopers would have to explain the reasons to CONSOB

the Itahan requlatory body The auditor must be replaced at the end of

the mine year tenure and cannot be re-appointed within three years

The external auditor s independence and objectvity 1s maintained via
avanety of safeguasds

— Onaperiodic basis the external auditor 15 required to provide written
confurmation of all relationships wath the Group and the actions it
takes to cornply with professional and regulatory requiremnents
designed to ensure its ndependence

— Asrequired by its own rules and relevant professional standards
PricewaterhouseCoopers rotates the lead engagement partner at
least every five years The current audit partner has beenin place
for four years

There are restrictions on the employment of former employees of the
external auditor Under the Group policy any partners or directors involved
n the audut of the Group would not be ernployed by the Group until at
least two years have lapsed from the end of ther nvolvernent and

— The Committee has acopted a policy on the provision of non-audit
services by the external auditor and monitors comphance with it
semi-annually Coples are avallable from the Group Company Secretary
or at the corporate governance section of the Company s website at
www lseq com
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A breakdown of audit and non-audit service fees paid and payabte to the
external auditor for the year ended 31 March 2013 15 provided below and
in note 30 to the accounts

2013 2012

£m £m
Audit services
Audit of parent company and consolidated accounts 02 02
Audit of subsidiary comparies 10 09
Audit related assurence servtces 04 03
Other non-audit services
— Taxation 02 01
— Corporate finance 06 28
— Other assurance services 01 -
Total expenses 25 43

In the year ended 31 March 2013 the substantial majonty of other non-audit
services related to services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in
relation to the revised offer for the acquisition of a majonty shareholding

n LCH Clearnet Group Lumited and the launch of the EMTN Programme and
the Group s first retail bond on ORB These services included financial due
dihgence work and reporting accountant actvities n connection with

the relevant circulars to shareholders and prospectus to bond investors

The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed each of these individual
appomtments on their ments prior to PricewaterhouseCoopers being
engaged The process involved considering management s assessment of

— which accounting firms had the appropriate experience and expertise
to undertake the work

— whether there were any conflicts of interest for
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

— whether the conficts of interest that existed for other potental firms
who were elther advising other parties 1o the transactions or were
auditors of the other company could be appropnately managed and

— the quantum of non-audt fees in the context of the overall audit fee
and relative significance to PricewaterhouseCoapers in the context
of ts total client fees

In each case the Audit and Risk Committee concluded based on the
balance of nsks that the appomtment of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
represented the most effective secure and effient way of obtaiming the
necessary advice and services gven its knowledge of our business and
the Group s structure and accounting and tax affairs together with its
wider knowledge of our industry sector particularly as other smaller firms
lacked sufficient relevant industry expenence To mitigate the residual nsk
PricewaterhouseCoopers mamniained separate teamns distinct from the
audit team on the corporate finance transactional work

The Company has also engaged other accounting firms on transactional
work during the year selecting the appropnate firms based on the
critena above and the fees for these assignment are included alongside
PricewaterhouseCoopers and other advisers costs wathin the transaction
costs disclosed iy note 7 to the accounts

The Commuttee 1s satisfied that the framework outhined above ensures

that PricewaterhouseCoopers mamtams the required level of independence
and objectvity that its exterral audit process rernams effective and the fee
payable n respect of audit services 15 appropriate to ensure that an adequate
audit can be performed Accordingly the Group does not consider it necessary
to tender for the provision of audit senaces at this time There are no contractual
obligations that restrict the Group s cheice of external auditor except as
highlighted above 1n relation to Borsa ltahana On the recommendation of the
Commitee the Board will propose PricewaterhouseCoopers for re-election
as auditor at the Company s Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 18 July 2013
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]
This Remuneration Report has been prepared by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board 1t sets ou the remuneration policies
operated by the Group 1n Tespect of the Directors along with disclosures on
Dwectors remuneration including those required by The Large and Medwim-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 The
Comrmittee notes the introduction of revised remuneration report regulations
from the Department for Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) Although

this disclosure regume 15 not yet effectve for the Group the Commmttee has
nevertheless started to adopt some of the tequirerents early as a matter

of best practice

Details of Directors remuneration and benefits for the year ended 31 March
2013 are set out n the tables wathun this report The tables on pages 69-71
have been subject to independent audit

Remuneration Committee

All members of the Compmittee are considered to be independent Details of
1he Committee s rermt and activities are set cut in this Remuneration Report
The Comrmttee has writlen terms of reference which are available from the
Group Company Secretary or at the corporate governance section of the
Company s website at wwwseq com

On behalf of the Board 1am pleased to present the Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 March 2013

The Group has continued te delver strong financal performance and
has made significant progress in delivening our diversification strategy

Asn previous years the Commttee reviewed executive rernuneration
arrangements to ensure that they remain aigned with the business
strateqy shareholders wnterests and the Group s financial performance
The Comrmtiee concluded that the current framework continued to be
effective n achieving these aimms and that our incentive design should
be retained for FY14 As such we have made no sigmficant changes to
our executive remuneration policies dunng the year

Executive directors’ remuneration for FY13 and FY14
The following table outlines the key elements of executive dwrector
remunetation for FY13 and F¥14 Key points include

Salary increases David Warren (CFO) was appointed duning the year
and recetved no IncTease Xavier Rolet (CEQ) and Raffaele Jerusalmi
(CED Borsa Italiana and Director Capital Markets) received increases
of 4 4 per cent and 2 4 per cent respectively with effect from 1 April
2013 to take their salaries frorm £675 000 to £705 000 and from
€425 000 to €435 000 respectively

No ncrease in maximum bonus and leng term incentive opportunities
The maxwnum bonus opportumty remnains at 225 per cent for the Chief
Executwe and 200 per cent of salary for other executive directors The
rmaximium long term incentive opporturitty also remans at 200 per cent
of salary albeit that some executive dwectors recewed awards below
this amount (as will be the case agamn in FY14)

— LTIPtargets unchanged for FY14 Performance will continue to be
rmeasured against Total Shareholder Return (TSR} and adjusted Earnings
per Share (EPS) The absolute TSR and EPS growth targets used for
awards In the year ended 31 March 2013 wall again be used for awards
for the year ending 31 March 2014

— FY13bonus Amounts awarded to executive directors have been
from between 62 per cent to B9 per cent of the maximum bonus
opportumity This is reflectve of excellent financial performance in
difficult markets and strong progress against strategic objectives

Currently our Executive Director pay packages have a number of best practice
features including petential deferral nto shares shareholding guidetmes and
appropnate consideration of sk in determining performance-related pay
The Committee will contmue to monitor developments and incorporate
further best practice features as appropriate
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summary of key executive remuneration decisions 2

Lol
Executive Director, CEO of Borsa z

Role Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Italiana & Director of Capital Markets A

Name Xavier Rolet David Warren Raffaele Jerusatrm E
m

Previous salary £675000 £425 000 {(Appointed during FY13) €425000 £

{FY13)

Annual salary with £705 000 (+4 4%) £425 000 €435 000 (+2 4%)

effect from 1 April

2013 (FY14)

Max bonus 225% of salary 200% of salary 200% of salary o

opportunity 2

for FY14 =
£

FY14 LTIP award 200% of satary (1 41m) 176% of salary (£750K) 193% of salary (£710k) ﬁ

{subject to m

performance)

FY13 % of salary 200% of salary 124% of annual salary (165% of ¥ of salary)  159% of salary

bonus

% of max 89% of maximum 62% of maxirmum 79% of maximum
amount £1,350,000 £525,000 €675,000

Review of remuneration framework in FY14

The Comimittee will undertake a comprehensive review of the Groups
remuneration framework during FY 14 including the Group s LTIP which

1s due for renewal in July 2014 As part of tha review the Commuttee will
continue to consider corporate governance and best practice developments
n the wider market as well as in the financial services sector actively seek
the views of shareholders and other representative bodies and propose a
remuneration frarmework to reflect the changing dynarmics of the Group

Concluding remarks

The Comimuitee 1s interested \n shareholders views and voting on
the Remuneration Report We hope to recetve your support at the
forthcorming AGM

floe Litz

Robert Webb
Chairman of the Remuneration Commmittee
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Executive remuneration summary

A surnmary of the key elements of remuneration for Executive Directors 15 shown in the table below

Element Purpose Commentary
Salary Reflect responsibitities of the role Reviewed annually agamst the market
Base salanes are referenced at or below the mechan of the FTSE 31 100
Annual bonus Reward annual financial corporate Maximum of 225 per cent of salary for Chief Executive and 200 per cent of salary

and indwvidual performance

for other Executive Divectors

Ha'f based on adjusted operatng profit and half based on achievement of
strategic objectives

veluntary deferral of up to 50 per cent of salary funded from bonus payment
The pre-tax value of the amount deferred will be provisionallymatchedona 2 1
basis N LTIP performance shares (see below)

TP Incentivise performance over
the longer term

Ordinary maximum of 200 per cent of salary for Chief Executive and up to 200 per cent
of salary for other Executwe Directors

Vesting dependent half on absolute TSR and half on adjusted EPS with 30 per cent
vesting at threshold performance 100 per cent vesting at maximum performance
and straight-line pro 1ating between ponts

Threshold performance exght per cent per annum TSR growth and six per cent per
annum EPS growth No vesting below this performance for retevant TSR or EPS element

Maximurm performance 16 per cent per annum TSR growth and above and 12 per cent
per annum EPS growth and above These performance tevels would result in full vesting
for the relevant performance element

Benefits Provide market competitive benefits

Flexible benefits plan 1 which individuals have an annual allowance which they can
spend as benefits or Tecewve as a cash allowance Xavier Rolet and David Warren each
recelve an annual allowance of £20 000

Dawvid Warren 1s also entitled to an accormmodation allowance to cover the cost of renting
accormnmaodation in the UK duning the first four years of his appointment and an annual
flght allowance

Raffaele Jerusalm has a benefits plan that 1s market competitive for Italy

Pensions Provide market competitive
pension benefits

Annual pension allowance nvested in the company defined contnibution plan or taken
as a cash allowance

Xavier Rolet and David Warren each receive an annual pension allowance of 25 per cent
of salary

Raffaele Jerusalmi accrues post-employment benefits undert the Iiahan Trattamento
di Fine Rapporto arrangements

Share ownership Alignwith shareholders interests Executive Directors are expected to build up and then maintain holdings of at least
guidehines 1x salary
Service contracts Employment terms in line with Notice periods donot exceed 12 months

best practice

Policy of appropriate mitigation of termmination payrments and no hquidated
damages clauses

Further details are provided in the remainders of this Remuneraticn Report
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Cormmmittee (s appointed by the Board and comprises only
independent Non-Executive Directors The Commuttee s rermit includes the
rermuneration of the Chairman of the Group Executive Directors and the
Executive Committee (please see page 18 for detauls of the Group s Executive
Commuttee) including the awards made under the performance-related
incentive schemes

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013 the Committee met on four cccasions

Remuneration Committee composition and meeting
attendance in the year ended 31 March 2013

Total

Robert Wehb (Chairman) 414
Chnis Gibson Srmuth (23
Gay Huey Evans LIk
Paolo 5caront 3/d
Sergio Exmoth 2/t

Deloitte LLP are the appointed advisers te the Cornmittee and provide
independent advice on executive ternuneration issues Delottte LLP also
advised the Company n relation to tax audit and sk assurance consulting
and transaction support services N FY13 The Cormmuttee 15 satisfied that
the advice provided by Deloitte LLP 15 mdependent

To assist the Committee the results of market surveys are made available
and where appropnate the Commuttee invites the views of the Chief
Executive Chief Financial Gfficer and Head of Human Resources None of
these indwviduals of the Charrman participated in any discussion relating
to their own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee continues to be rmndful of recommendations
from key stakeholders including institutional investor bodies and the
Committee consults with magor shareholders on any key decisions taken

Remuneration policy

The Group 1s committed to the primary objective of maximising shareholder
value over ime Each year the remuneration framework and the packages
of the Executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee are
reviewed by the Rernuneration Commmittee to ensure that they continue

to achleve this objective

The Group must attract and retain a high calibre senior management team to
ensuse 1115 1n a position o deliver Its business plans and maximise teturns for
shareholders The Group ts commutted to paying for performance rewarding
the semor managerment team only when its goals are achieved

The Remuneration Committee has taken the following areas inte account
n establistung the Group remuneration policy
— acommitrnent to maximising shareholder value

— the regular recruitment of senior management roles from the
international financial sector which requires remuneration packages
with a ugh vanable pay component

— the hugher profile of the Group compared with many other quoted
companies with similar market capitalisations

— the Groups intent to comply with best practice as expressed by
institutional shareholders and therr representative bodies and

— the continued expansion of the Group beyond the UK

The chart beiow shows the average proportions of total target remuneration
for the Chief Executive represented by the different elements of compensation
(salary target bonus expected value of long term incentives pension and
benefits) for the year to 31 March 2013

Total Target Remuneration %
Year end 31 March 2013

@ Ssalary 26
® Target Bonus 29
® LTIP - Matching Shares 13
® LTIP - Performance Shares 26
© Pension and Benefits 6

The Commiltee recognises that tts remuneration structure 1s perhaps more
geared than those of some FTSE 100 companies because the Group has a
higher annual bonus potential {albett one that s sigmficantly less than at
rnany City financial iInshitutions) balanced by below-median base salanes

As in previous years the Committee reviewed execustive rermuneration
against FTSE 31-100 ranked compames Overall the Cormmittee wishes to
position totat target remuneration at or around the median of the FTSE
31-100 as the Committee considers it appropnate to reward superior
performance with upper quartile compensation levels

Regard 1s given ta pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group when
determining the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors The same
remuneration policy and ncentive structure 15 apphed to semor executives
wnmedately below the Board and all employees participate in the annual
bonus pool and beneht arrangements that are competitive 1n thewr country
location The Commmittee reviews and comments on the salary bonus and
LTIP awards of the serior executives immediately below Board-level and
approves the design and distnibution profile of incentive awards avatlable
to all employees ncluding share-based plans

The policy for the individual components of Executive Directors
remuneration 1s set cut tn more detail in the followng sections
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Base salary

Reflecting the Commmttee s desire to place greater emphasis on variable pay
than in most FTSE 31-100 companies base salaries are to be set at or below
the median of the pay comparator group Salanes are typically reviewed with
effect from 1 April each year Base salaries effective from 1 April 2013 are

set out in the table below

Base salary with effect from 1 April 2012 1 April 2013

Xavier Rolet £675000 £705 000 (+4& 2%}
Dawvid warren - £425 000
Raf{aele Jesusalmi €425000 €435 000 {2 £%)

The salary for David Warren was set at £425 000 with effect from his
appointrment on 2 July 2012 and was not ehgible for an increase for the
coming year

Annual bonus
Executive Directors are ehgible to recewve an annual cash bonus based on
meeting of exceeding bonus targets that are set at the beginning of the year

The Remuneration Cormmuttee continues to believe that 11 1s appropnate to
use a balance between annual financial targets corporate objectves and
indmdual performance objectives For the year ended 31 March 2013 the
Committee deterrmined that the sole annual financial target should again be
adjusted operaung profit The Comimiliee considers adjusted operating profit
1o be of particular sigmificance for the Group and betieves it should continue
to be the main financial measure for annual bonus plan purposes

For the year ended 31 March 2013 the maximum bonus opportumties wete
225 per cent of salary for the Chief Executwe Officer and 200 per cent of
salary for other Executve Directors For the forthcoming year t1s intended
that the same maximum opportumties wili apply

for the year ended 31 March 2013 the Remuneration Commuttee continued
to constder that a rx of 50 per cent adjusted operating profit and 50 per cent
strateqic performance objectives was most appropnate for determining the

bonus pool

The Committee assessed performance for the year ending 31 March 2013
and noted the following n ther deliberations

— The Group has had a strateqically exceptional year coupled with an
operationat performance which was best in the sector This s against a
challenging global context charactenised by lack of growth i devetoped
markets continuing reduction m banks available capital and continuing
regulatory reform and pressures

— Inthis uncertam context there are a number of key highlights

— Broadly flat profit performance when our peers were down around
20 per cent was considered to be a leading performance

— FTSE has performed well and 1s now embedded as a core part of the
Group with good organic growth delivered cost synergies on track
and sigmificant new business won inthe US

- Key technology upgrades for the Group was a unique achievernent
combined with MillenmurnT s increase n third party sales

— The LCH acquisibian resulting 1n a significant expansion of both our
European and US presence and our post trade capability has taken
effort and skill and

— Ongong growth of the share price and increase m shareholder returns
reflecting our progress n developing the business

These achievernents are all the direct result of an excellent executve team
and a well concewved strateqy bemg well implemented The capabthty of the
orgarusation has been further upgraded through recruitment reorganmisation
product innovation and tight cost control on marging

Based on the above context and an assessment of individual performance
the Remuneration Committee awarded annual bonuses to each of the
Executive Directors as follows

Long Term Incentive Plan

The LTIP has two elements a conditional award of Performance Shares
and an award of Matching Shares knked to investment by the semor
managerent of all or sorme of their annual bonus (or such other income
as the Rermuneration Commuttee may permit) w the Company s shares

Executive Director, CEO of Borsa

Role Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Italiana & Director of Capital Markets
FY13 % of salary 200% of salary 124% of annual salary (165% of %z of salary)  159% of salary
bonus

% of max 89% of maximum 62% of maximum 79% of maximum

amount £1,350,000 £525,000

€675,000
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The Matching Shares element of the LTIP only applies 10 the Executive
Drrectors and selected other semior management This senior management
group s also elgible for the Performance Shares element of the LTIP

along with a wider group of executives

The LTIP arrangements for awards granted in the year ended 31 March 2013

are lustrated below

Bonus deferved

Executives nay invest all or part of their pre-tax bonus up to 50
per cent of base salary mnto London Stock Exchange Group Shares

Performance Shaves
with a face value of up to

200 per cent of base salary
may be granted (300 per
cent on rectuitment)

Matching Shares

The deferred bonus 1s
matched with a performance-
related Matching Share
award Maximum match

of 2 1 on a pre-tax basis

Vesting conditional SC per cent on TSR performance and 50 per
cent on EPS performance over a single three-year period

For the year ended 31 March 2013 awards of Performance Shares were made
with a value of 200 per cent of salary for Xavier Rolet 200 per cent of salary
David Warren and 169 per cent of salary for Raffaele Jerusalm Xavier Rolet
also receved an award of Matching Shares equivalent to 100 per cent of
satany following his investment in London Stock Exchange Group shares

Vesting of Performance Shares and Matching Shares

The policy for share awards 15 that the proportion of Performance Shares
and Matching Shares wich vest 1s determined 50 per cent by the Cornpany s
Total Shareholder Return {TSR) performance and S0 per cent by the
Company s adjusted Earmings Per Share (EPS) performance over a single
three-year period "the performance perod”) For TSR the performance
penod starts on the date of grant and for EPS on the first day of the financial
year inwhich the award 1s granted For TSR performance 1s calculated

using a two month average share price at the start and at the end of the
performance penod to ensure any anomalous share price movements at
these measurernent paints do nat have a disproportionate effect on the
assessment of performance over the full three-year period The Committee
considers the use of both of these measures will best align the interests

of the Executive Directors with those of sharehotders Both TSRand EPS
measures are independently verthed by Deloitte LLP

The following tables set out the performance conditions which appled
to awards made 1n the year ending 31 March 2013 and the conditions
attached to subsisting awards in the three previous years

It 15 intended that the targets for awards in the years ended 31 March 2011
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 (shown n the table below) will apply for
awards made in the year to 31 March 2014

65
EPS element (50%) — TSR element (S0%) - Proportion of
avevage EPS grawth absolute TSR growth velevant element
over 3 years over 3 years which vests
Less than 6% p & Less than 8% p & 0%
6% pa 8% pa 30%
Straight line pro rating apphes between these pomts
12% pa or more 16% pa or more 100%

The comparator group and vesting schedule for awards made in the year o
31 March 2010 are set out below

EPS element (50%) — TSR element {50%) — Proportlon of

aggregate EPS comparative TSR versus televant element

over 3 years FTSE 21-100 excl inv trusts which vests

Less than 5% p a Less than median 0%

S%pa Median 30%
Straight line pro rating apples between these points

9% p a_or above Upper guintile 100%

The table below sets out the vesting of the awards made in July 2009

{which vested in July 2012)

EPS element {50%) — TSR elernent (50%) —

aggregate EPS comparative TSR versus

over 3 yesars FTSE 31 100 ¢xcl inv trusis Total vesting

160% achievernent 35% achieverment 68% achievement

Xawier Rolet appointment award - granted in March 2009

(vested in May 2012)

An il award of Performance Shares was made to Xavier Rolet on Joining
the Company i March 2009 equwalent to 200 per cent of salary to create

an immediate alignment with shareholders This was granted under a special
arrangerent under terms substantiaily simiar to those of the LTIP with the
performance perind beginming on 1 April 2009 This award vested on the date
of the preluminary results announcement for the year ended 31 March 2012
being 18 May 2012

EPS and TSR performance were both based on performance during the three
financial years ending 31 March 2012 For EPS there was 30 per cent vesting
for EPS growth of RPI +5 per cent per annurn and 100 per cent vesting for EPS
growth of RP1 +§ per cent per annum For TSR there was 30 pey cent vesting
for mechan and 100 per cent for upper quintile performance The EPS elerment
resulted 1n 51 per cent vesting and the TSR element achieved 77 per cent vesting
Therefore 1n aggregate the overalt vesting of this award was 64 per cent

Benefits

Staff employed by London Stock Exchange ple participate in a flexible benefits
plan under which they receive an allowance which they can use {o purchase
additional benehts or recewe as a cash supplernent This allowance 1s not

used to calculate bonus payments or pension contrbutions

Xavier Rolet and Dawd Warren each recewve a flexibte benefit allowance
of £20 000 per annum These values have not been increased since last
year Both of them also recewve benehts in kind which pnncipally mctude
prvate health care and Iife assurance arrangements Raffaele Jenusalmt
recewves benehtsmkind principally health care e assurance and
disability nsurance
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As an expatnate from the US to UK Dawvid Warien 15 also entitled to recewe
the following net amounts

— One-off relocation allowance of £30 000 to cover the cost of relocating
his personal effects from the US to the UK and other related expenses
including immugration and visa costs Each year he 1s also entitled ta tax
preparation and fiing assistance in the US and the LK The Group wall
meet the costs of repatnating Mr Warren s effects back to the USf it
terrmnates his employment other than n circumstances such as
senious musconduct which would justyfy summarny termtnation

— An allpwance to cover the cost of renting accormmodation in the UK
dunng the first four years of his appomntment (£60 000 per annum for
each of the first two years and £30 000 per annum for each of the thud
and fourth years) If Mr Warren purchases a property withan the first
two years of appointment he may use the balance of the allowance
payable for that penod to cover assoctated costs such as stamp duty
or legal costs

—- A fhight allowance to-cover the cost of up to sixreturn business class
fliights a year for Mr Warren and his fammily to travel between London
and New York up to an annual cost of £30000

Pensions

The London Stock Exchange plc final salary pension scheme was closed to
new entrants in 1999 and was closed to future accruals from 1 Apnil 2012
The current Executive Directors do not participate i this final salary
pension scheme

Pension provision takes the form of a non-consolidated allowance

n the year ended 31 March 2013 Xavier Rolet and David Warren each
received an allowance equivatent to 25 per cent of base salary Xawier Rolet
and Dawvid Warren receive the whole of their pension allowance as a cash
supplement Only base salany 1s used to calculate pension entitlernent
and no other pension supplements apply

Raffaele Jerusalmu accrues post-employment benefits under the Trattamento
i Fine Rapporto arrangements applicable under Italian law as set out below

Share ownership guidelines

To be considered for future awards under the LTIP Execulive Directors and
other senior executives are expected to build up over three years from ther
first award and then continue to hold shares with an aggregate value at
the time of acquisition at least equal to their annual base salary

Full detaits of the interests in shares of the Executive Directors are shown
on pages 70-71

Other share ptans

All UK employees including Executive Directors are ehgible to participate

1 the HM Revenue & Customs appioved Save As You Eamn Scheme (SAYE)
Under the rules of the SAYE participants can save up to £250 each month for
a pered of three or five years At the end of the saving perod savings plus
interest may be used to acquire shares by exercising the related option

The options may be granted at an exercise pnce which represents a discount
of up 10 20 per cent to market value at the date of grant No performance
conditions are attached to SAYE options

There 15 also an International Sharesave Plan (1SP) which 1s designed to
provice share options to Group employees who are not based in the LK on
similar terms to the options that are available to UK employees through

the SAYE To date employees in Hong Kong Italy SriLanka and US have
participated n the ISP

In 2009 an HM Revenue & Customs Approved Share Option Plan (ASOP)
was adopted by the Company and awards were made to a limited number
of employees under this ASOP Directors are not eligible to participate in
the ASOP

Service contracts
The Company has adopted the follewing policy on Directors service contracts

Notice penods and termination arrangements

The Company s current policy 1s that Drectors’ service agreements should
not contain a hquidated damages clause which would apply in the event

of the service agreement being termnated and thet appropnate rmitigation
should be applied to any payment made on termination Notice periods
are no longer than 12 months The Remuneration Committee considers
that this 1s consistent with current best practice

Xawvier Rolet entered into a service agreermnent with the Company on

16 March 2009 David Warren entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 11 June 2012 and was appointed with effect from 2 July 2012
Raffaele Jerusalmt has been employed by Borsa Italiana under a fixed

term employment contract whch was executed on 1 October 2001 and
subsequently amended 1o an open-ended employment contract on 1 May
2004 On 3 May 2011 effective from 4 May 2011 Raffaele Jerusalrmi entered
nto a service agreement with Borsa ltaliana relating to s position as general
manager of that company and as the Group s Head of Capital Markets and a
service agreement with LSEG Holdings (Italy) Lirmited (ltahian Branch) relating
to his position as Institore of that company On 1 Aprd 2013 this service
agreement transferred to LSEGH Italia S p A Raffaele Jerusalmm s treated as
having continuous employment with both companies from 1 October 2001
The terms of his employment with each company are substantially the same

Xavier Rolet s service agreement can be terminated by either party qwving not
less than 12 months notice Alternatively the Company may terminate the
contract by making a payment in heu of notice of a sur equat 1o 12 months
salary and benefits paid in a lump sumor at the Remuneration Cormattee s
discretion on a monthly basis i the payment 1s made ininstalments the
instalments will be reduced by any earnings from new employment taken
up within 12 months after leaving employment

David Warren s senice agreement may be terminated by either party giving
at least 12 months notice Alternatively the Company may terminate the
contract by payment in lieu of notice of a surm equal to 12 months salary and
pension allowance flexible benefits and isurance benefits (but excluding
bonus and share incentives} Any payment in hieu of notice will be paid tn

12 monthly instaiments from the date of termination Instalments wall be
reduced by one-twelfth of the annual earmings from pew employment
taken up within 12 months after teaving employment

Raffaele Jerusalmi s contracts expressly state that no collective bargaining
agreements apply to his employment and accordingly the terms applying
to the termination of his employment under both contracts are governed by
itahan law If Raffaele Jerusalmi s dismissed the notice penod will be equat
to eight months If the length of service 1s between mne and 15 years or
rine months if the length of service 1s 15 years or over 1f Raffaele Jerusatm
resigns he 15 required to give three months notice On tesmination of either
employment for any reason Raffaele Jerusatmi s entitled to severance
payments under Itahan law to () Trattamerto i Fine Rapporto which
accryes duning his employment and 15 released or paid mto a retrement fund
as a lump sum payment when the employment ends and s equal to 74
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per cent of all sums paid to Raffaele Jerusalrm durmg his employrnent

{) pro rated supplementary monthly payments (the annual salary 15
normally pard m 12 mnstalments plus two supplementary monthly payments
pursuant to the fixed term employment contract dated 1 Octeber 2001 and
() a payment in liew of untaken hohidays 1f any Where no just cause for
termination exists a payment in lieu of notice 15 payable if the employment
1s terminated with immediate effect The payment m lieu of notice 1sn
addition to the payments at () () (1) above and 1s equal to the overali
salary due to Raffaele Jerusaln during the notice period For these
purposes monthly salary includes base salary the average of any bonuses

or commissions pawd during the last 36 months of the employment

and benefits in kind

Termnation arrangements for Doug Webb

— Doug Webb stood down from the London Stock Exchange Group pic
Board on 2 July 2012 and then ceased employment on 31 July 2012
allowing for an orderly handover to David Warren The following
termination arrangements apphed for Mrwebb which the Cornmittee
believe are reasonable and appropriate it hght of the Group s contractual
arrangements with im - Termination payment Cash payments totalling
amaximum of £433 000 representing salary pension and benefts for a
pertod of 12 months 1t was negotiated with Mr Webb that these amounts
should be subject to appropriate mitigation (so later payments would be
appropriately reduced If M Webb commenced alternative employrment
were to be appointed as a non-executive dwector or provided services
pursuant to a consultancy agreement in the 12 months followirg fis
departure} The payment was phased as follows £216 500 on termination
£108 250 swx maonths after termination subject to rmtigation which was
paid on 31 January 2013 and £108 256 nine menths after termination
subject to mitigation which was paid on 30 April 2013

— Annual bonus Mr Webb s bonus was deterrmned to be £156 000 for
the period of 1 April 2012 to 31 July 2012 determined as a pro-rata
proportion of the bonus for FY13 This was assessed in accordance with
the Rernuneration Committee s usual practice and on the same basis
as other executve directors Payment will also be made at the usual
time {1e in May 2013)

— LTIP awards Mr Webb was treated as a "good leaver” under the LTIP
pursuant to the exercise of the Remuneration Committee s discretion
In accordance with the rules the Remuneration Comrmittee determined
that subsisting LTIP awards {performance shares and matchng shares)
made n 2010 and 2011 vested on termination subject to the assessrment
of performance but reduced on a time pro rated basis for length of
service and a further reduction of 10 per cent per annum to reflect the
net presant value of the early vesting of these awards This resulted in
83 777 shares bemng released to Mr Webb

— Other The following benefits also apphed medical insurance and Iife
assurance cover 1o the earlier of 31 July 2013 and the date of which he
finds alternative employment 2012 bi-annual medical health check
and legal fees up to a maxumum of £5 000 n connection with the
termimation of employment

Outside appointments

Executive Directars are allowed to accept appointiments as non-executive
drectors of other companies with the prior approval of the Charman
Approval will onty be given where the appomntment does not represent a
confhct of interest with the Company s activities and the wader exposure
ganed wali be beneficiat to the development of the individual Executve
Directors may retam fees to encourage them to seek out the developrment
epportumties and valuable expertence afforded by these appontments and
n recognition of the personal responsibility executes assume in such roles

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

Non-Executive Directors remuneration s determined by the Board and

1s netther performance-related nor pensionable The Chatrman s fee 1s
determined by the Remuneratian Commitiee The fees for Non-Executive
Drrectors are set at a level winch s intended to recogruse the signihcant
responsibilities of Drectors and to attract ndwiduals with the necessary
experience and ability to make an mportant contnbution to the Company s
affairs Compansons are made with fees paid at FTSE 31-100 companies

From 1 April 2013 1t was determined that the Charmanss and Non-Executive
Durectors fee levels would be as follows

With with

effect from effect from

Fees 1Aprilz012 1 April 2013

Non Executive Director base fee €60 000 £60 000
Audtt and Risk Commuttee and

Remuneration Cornmittee mernbership £5000 £10 000

Audit Cornmittee Chairman £20 000 €20 000

Remuneration Committee Chairman £20 000 £20000

It was felt appropnate to ncrease committee membersnip fees to reflect
the acquisition of LCH Clearnet and the increasingly global and dwersified
breadth of the Group

The fee for the Chairman semaned unchanged at £370 000 The fee for
the Deputy Chairman alsc remawned unchanged at £120 000

In addition to his fee as a Non-Executive Director of London Stock Excharnge
Group and member of the Audit and Risk Committee Massimo Tonon
teceves a fee of €178 500 as Chairman of Borsa [tahana Duning the year
the LSEG Board introduced changes to the Group structure 1o further
ramimnse 115k and to provide centralised services such as treasury
management m Italy

As part of this a new company LSEGH talia Sp A has been created of

which Masstmo Tonent has been appomted Chairman Given the increased
respanstbility of this role and remit he has been granted an additional fee of
€20 000 The total remuneration for his role as Charman of Borsa ltalana and
Charman of LSEGH 1talia S p A 1s €198 500 from 1 Apnl 2013 m addition to
s fees as an LSEG Non-Executive Director

In addition to thetr fees as Non-Executive Directors of London Stock Exchange
Group for those Non-Executive Inrectors that are also directors of London
Stock Exchange plc an additional fee of £5 000 has been introduced from

1 Apnil 2013 to reflect the ncreasing regulatary change and complesaty
within this entity Janet Cohen Paul Heiden Gay Huey Evans and Robert
webb are Directors of London Stock Exchange plc

Other than chauffeur costs for the Charman Non-Executive Duectors do
not recewve any benefits or entitlernents ather than fees and reasonable
expenses do not participate in any of the Cormpany s ncentive schemes
and are not entitled to any payrments on termination The Board as a whole
determines the fees of the Non-Executive Directors and the Remuneration
Commttee determnes the fee of the Charrman No contnbutions are
made 1o the pension arrangements of Non-Executive Directors
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The onginal date of appointment as a Director of the Company 15 as follows

Baroness Janet Cohen 01/02/2001
Robert webb 01/02/2001
Chnis Gibson Smith (1/05/2003
Sergio Ermottl 01/10/2007
Andrea Munari 01/10/2007
Paolo Scarom 01/10/2007
Paul Heden 04/06/2010
Gay Huey Evans 04/06/2010
Massima Tonam 27/09/2010

Baroness Cohen and Robert Webb have letters of appointment with

the Compary reflecting ther Tesponsiiilities and commitments dated

§ February 2013 {with no notice penied) Each of therr appointments continues
until 31 January 2016 provided each Non-Executive Director1s re-elected by
shareholders Sergio Ermottt Andrea Munan and Paolo Scarom have letters of
appaintment {with no notice penod) with the Company dated 1 October 2010
Each of ther appointments continues until 30 September 2013 provided

each Non Executive Director 15 te-elected by shareholders Paul Heiden and
Gay Huey Evans have tetters of appointment {with no notice period) wath

the Company dated 4 June 2010 Each of ther appointments continues until

4 June 2013 provided eachis re elected by shareholders Massimo Tononi

has a letter of appomtment fwith no notice period) with the Company

dated 27 Septernber 2010 His appointment continues until Septernber 2013
provided he 1s re-glected by shareholders Massimo Tonom was also appointed
as Chawrman of Borsa ltaliana on 28 June 2011 Chns Gibson-Smith has a letter
of appointment dated 18 haly 2012 His appointment is for three years until
the end of the AGM 11 2015 but can be terminated on six months notice

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance

The following kne graphs show for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
and for each of the previous five/three years the TSR on a holding of the
Company s ordinary shares of the same land and number as those by
reference to which the FTSE 100 15 calculated

The TSR graphs represent the value at 31 March 2013 of £100 invested

n London Steck Exchange Group plc on 31 March 2008 or 31 March 2010
compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index over

the same pernod
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Table A - Directors’ Remuneration - Auditable o
@
2013 012 2013 2012 l'zﬂ
Salary  Performance Betrefils. Performance Benefits Pensions Pensions n
(Note borus (Mote ) Total Satany bonus {Note &) Total (Note f1) {Note i) ‘;
£000 £000 £000¢ £000 £O00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 2
Chairman =
€ Gibson-Smith 370 - 63 433 370 - 44 414 - - £
Chief Executive
X Rolet 695 1,350 39 2,084 695 1519 123 2228 169 169
Executive Duectors
D Webb (Note v}
{to 2 July 2012) 88 117 1 206 350 450 1 801 21 83 g
D Warren (from 2 July 2012) 334 525 187 1046 - - - - ;1] - ﬁ
R Jetusalmi (Note v} 360 572 24 956 317 625 22 964 - - g
1,847 2,564 314 4,725 1732 2 594 81 4 407 270 252 g
(2]
m
Non-Executive Directors’ Fees
Benefits Benefils
Fees (Note n) Total Fees {Note o) Tota! Penswons Penswons
£000 £000 £000 £00¢ £000 £000 £00D £000
Baroness Cohen (Note v) 87 - 87 87 - 87
$ Emmoth 65 - 65 65 - 65
A Mumari 65 - 65 65 - 65
(1)
P Scaromi 125 - 125 159 - 159 =
R Webb QC 80 - 80 80 - 80 2
P Heiden 80 - 80 80 - 80 It
G Huey Evans 70 - 70 70 - 70 E
M Tonom (Note v) 216 - 216 174 - 174 ;:1
B
Total Non Executive Directors fees (Note vi) 788 788 780 - 780 ;
g
A
Total Directors emoluments 5,513 S 187 270 252 E
m
Notes z
-
1) Salary w
salary includes base satary on which bonus allowance is based and flexible benefit allowances paid in cash
1} Benefits "
For Chnis Gibson Smith benefits represent the gross value of chauffeur costs attnibuted 1o the Company X
Far X Rolet D Webb and D Warren benehts represent the cash value of health and Iife insurance cover and laxable cominuting expenses {If applicable) s
In addition the figure for D Warren also includes US-UK expatriate allowances on a gressed-up basis m
For R Yerusalmi benefits represent the cash value of health disahiuy Ufe and accident insurance caver luncheon vouchers and car and fuel benefit g
m) Pensions E
X Rolet D webb and D Warren raceived pensian altowances as a cash supplement m
R Jerusatrm acuiues defined benefit post employment benefits under the rattamento di b ine Rapporte arrangements =
) D Webb %
D Webh resigned as an Execulive Director on 2 July 2¢12 s last day of employment was 31 July 2012 InJuly 2012 he received an additional £29 167 1n salary and £6 875 in pension o
altowances His FY13 bonus was £156 000 in total {up to and mduding July 20i2) g
v] Executive and Non-Executive THrectors ™
R Jerusalmi 1s paid in euros Baroness Cohen and M Fononi are also pad in euras 1n relatian to their respeciive roles as Vice Chairman and Chawrman of Borsa ltatiana S p A for which ;‘
Baroness Cohen recetves an anmual fee of €26 000 (£22 034) and M Tononi recewves an annual fee of €178 SO0 (E£51 271) InFY12 M Tonom recewved €133 B75 (£111 563) as he assumed g
his position as Chawrman of Borsa ltaliana S p A on 28 Tune 2011 P Scarom was appointed as Deputy Chanman of the Company cn 27 September 2010 — fis fee payment 1n FY12 mctudes
arrears of pay in relation to ts appointment Where remuneration 15 presented i sterhing 1n the Remueneration Repart a euro sterling conversionrate ¢f 118 has been used for 2013

and 12 for 2012
v} Non-Executive Ditectors’ fees
Fees pawd directly to the employer company of two {2012 1wo) Non Executive Directats were £130 000 (2012 £330 000}

vi) Waiver of emoluments
Nane of the Directors waived thetr emoluments during 2012 and 2013
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Table B - Directors’ Share Interests — Auditable

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Long Term Incentive Plan has two elements a conditional award of Performance Shares and an award of Matchung Shares inked to investment by the
executive In the Company s shares

The awards are dependent on TSR performance for 50 per cent of the award with the other 50 per cent dependent on an adjusted basic EPS growth target
Details of performance conditions are set out on page 65

Nummber of shares value at
Atstart Awardduning Vested Lapsed Atend Price at Priceat exescising Dateof Final Exercise
Sharve awards Notes of year the year  durmguear  during year of year award date exercise date date award _ vestmg date date
X Rolet 1 290 016 - 85 813 104 203 - 448 975 1811677 17/03/09 21/05/12 08/06/12
2 147928 - 100 295 47633 - 676 1001 1003752 16/0F09 1670712 24107112
142 857 - - - 142 857 700 - - 14/09/10 14/09/13
92073 - - - 92073 703 - - 2W09/10  27/09/13
139031 - - - 139031 971 - - 03/06/11  03/06/14
63 380 - - - 63380 1065 - - 08/0W11  0B/07/14
138674 - - 138 674 974 - - 19/06/12  19/06/15
67097 = = 67097 10 06 = - 21/06/12  21/06/15
875 285 205771 286 108 151 836 643112 2 815429
D Warren B4 661 - - 84 661 10 04 - = 02/071M12  02/07115
84 66] = — B4 661 -
# Jerusabrm 2 73964 - 50147 231817 - 676 1001 501871 16/07/09  16/07112  24/07/12
71428 - - - 71428 700 - - 14/09/10  14/09/13
51493 - - - 51493 971 - - 03/06/11 03/06/14
61613 - - 61 633 974 = = 19/06/12  19/06/15
196 885 61 633 50 147 23 817 184 554 501 871
D Webb (former Director) 2 73964 - 50147 23817 - 676 1001 501871 16/07/09  16/0M12 2440712
3 48349 - 31878 16 471 - 683 978 311767 28/07/09  28/07/12  31/07/12
4 71428 - 39 285 32143 - 700 945 371322 14/09/10 14/09/13 02/08/12
& 46974 - 25 835 21139 - 703 345 244192 2NH09710 2709113 02/0B/12
4 51493 - 14 475 37018 - 97 945 I36 818 03/06/11 03/06/14 02/08/12
4 30983 - 4182 26 801 - 10 65 945 39528 08/07/11  08/07/14  02/08/12
323191 — 165 802 157 389 - 1 605 498

1 CED appointment award granted in March 2009 which vested m May 2012 acheved an overall vesting percentage of 64 per cent This was based on 51 per cerd achievement for the EPS
element and 77 per cent for the TSR element

2 Awards granted on 16 luly 2009 which vested an 16 July 2012 achieved an overall vesting percentage of 68 per cent This was based on 100 pet cent achievernent for the EPS element
and 35 per cent far the TSR element

3 Matching award granted an 28 July 2009 which vested on 28 July 2012 achieved an overall vesting percentage of 66 per cent This was based on 100 per cent achievernent for the EPS
element and 32 per cent for the TSR element

4 These awards were all pro rated 1o 31 July 2012 and a NPV discount of 10 per cent was applied prict 1o accelerated vesting under good leaver terms
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Directors' Interest in Shares
The Brreciors who held office on 31 March 2013 had the following other beneficial interests in the shares of the Company
Ordmary Ordmary
Shares Shares
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
C Gibsen Smth 63,757 63 757
X Rolet 191,340 38 000
Dwarren - -
R Jerusalmi 46,929 40100
Baroness Cohen 6,616 6616
SErmmottt - -
A Munart - -
P Scaront - -
R webb 1,200 1200
P Heiden 3,000 3000
G Huey Evans - -
M Tonont - —

There have been no changes In Directors own share intevests in the Company between 31 March 2013 and 15 May 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present thew annual report to shareholders,
together with the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

]
Business review

The nformation that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review

can be found in this Directors Repori and in the following sections

of the Annual Report which are incorporated into this Directors Report

by reference

— Overview pages 2-18 and

— Business Review (including the Financial Review) pages 19-47

Principal activities and results

The principal actmities of the Company and 1ts subsidharies are the
adrmission of securities to trading the delivery and operation of trading
systems the clearmg and settlement of trading n securities the
organisation and regulation of markets in securities the provisien of
investment support tools (iIncluding benchmarking and mdex licensing
products) and the provision of real time data and other mformation
products together with a wide tange of technology services from trading
platform solutions through to connectivity to our markets The Group
made a profit before taxation before amortisation of purchased intangible
assets and non-recurning ttems of £380 7 million (2012 £400 & milhon)
After takng into account amortisation of purchased mtangible assets and
non-recurnng items the profit of the Group before taxation for the year
ended 31 March 2013 was £298 9 rmilon (2012 £635 7 rmilion) and profit
after taxation was £215 5 millon (2012 €531 4 mulhien)

Dividends

The Directors are recommending a final dwidend for the year of 19 8 pence
(2012 190 pence) per share whichis expected to be pard on 19 August 2013
to shareholders on the register on 26 July 2013 Together with the intenm
dwidend of 97 pence (2012 9 3 pence) per share pad in January 2013 ihis
produces a total dwvidend for the year of 29 5 pence (2012 28 3 pencej per
share estimated to amount to €76 6 million (2012 £76 4 mullion)

Share capital

As at 31 March 2013 the Company had 271 1 million ordenary shares in 1ssue
with a nominal value of 6 ™/« pence each representing 100 per cent of the
total 1ssued share capital There were no changes to the Cornpany s 1ssued
ordinary share capital during the year

Share rights

The nghts and obligations attached to the Company s ordinary shares are
set out in the Company s artictes of assoclation copies of which can be
obtaned from Comparnes House 1 the UK or by wniting to the Group
Company Secretary

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend speak and vote at general
meetings of the Company Every shareholder who 15 present in person or by
proxy shall have one vote on a show of hands and one vote for every ordinary
share held on a poll Proxy appointments and voting nstructions must be
receved by the Company s Registrars not less than 48 hours before the time
appairited for holdng a general meeting or adjourned general meeting or
as otherwise specihed in the Cornpanyss articles of assotiation

No shareholder shall be entitled to vote at a general meeting either in person
or by proxy tn respect of any share held by him unless all monies presently
payable by mm i respect of that share have been paid In addition no
shareholder shall be entitled Lo vote ether in person or by proxy 1if he has
been served with a notice under section 793 of the Compames Act 2006
{concerming interests in those shares) and has faited to supply the Company
with the requisite iInformation

Other than restnctions considered to be standard for a UK isted company
there are no imitations on the holding or transfers of ordmary shares in

the Company both of which are governed and regutated by the Company s
articles of association and applicable legislation and regulation and the
Company 1s not aware of any agreemnents between holders of shaves that
may Tesult in restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voiing nghts
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Company s Corporate Governance Report 1s set out on pages 50-71 and s
together with the information on shate nghts set out above incorporated into
this Corporate Governance Statement by reference

Articles of Association

The Company s articles of association (adopted by special resolution passed
on 14 July 2010) may only be amended by special resclulion at a general
meeting of the shareholders

Substantial Shareholding

As at 15 May 201 3 the Company had been notified of the following
nterests amounting to more than thwee per cent in the tssued share
capital of the Company n accordance with DTR 5 of the FCA Disclosure
and Transparency Rules

Borse Dubal Limited 21 0%
Qatar Investment Authonity 15 4%
Flt Limited 52%
Durectors

Detalls of the Directors are set out on pages 48-49 and are incorporated into
this Directors’ Report by reference

The rules goverming the appointment and replacement of Directors are set
out in the Company s articles of association

At each AGM pursuarnit to the UK Governance Code all of the Directors wall
retire and be proposed for re election

Powers of the Duectors

Subject to the prowisions of the Comparves Act 2006 the Company s articles
of association and any directions given by special resolution the business

of the Company shall be managed by the Board which may exercise all the
powers of the Company tincluding without limitaton the power to dispose

of all or any part of the undertaking of the Company and to 1ssue or buyback
shares under the authersties descnibed below No alteration of the Companys
articles of assoctation and no such direction shall wnvalidate any prior act of
the Board which would have been valid 1f that alteration had not been made
of that direction had not been given

Issue of Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Compames Act 2006 and without prejudice
to any rights attached to any existing shares or class of shares any share
may be issued with such nights or restrictions as the Company may by
ordinary resolution determine o1 subject to and m default of such
determnation as the Board shall determine

Authonty to Allot Shares

The authonty canferred on the Ditectors at last year s AGM to allot the
umssued share capital of the Company up to a maximum nominal amount
of £6 250 000 (representing appreximately 33 3 per cent of the 1ssued share
caputal of the Company as at the latest practicable date before publication of
the Notice of the Company s last AGM) or i connection with a pre-emptive
offer to existing shareholders by way of a nghtsissue up 1o a maximum
norminal amount of £12 500 000 (epresenting approximately 66 6 per cent
of the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
before publication of the Notice of the Company's last AGM) expires on the
date of the forthcoming AGM Although the latter authonty was not utthsed
by the Company shareholders will be asked to gve a similar authonty to
allet shares at the forthcorming AGM

Authonity to Purchase Shares

The authenty for the Company to purchase in the market up to 27000 000
of its ordinary shares (Tepresenting approximately 10 per cent of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date before
publication of the Notice of the Company’s last AGM) granted at the
Cormnpanys last AGM expires on the date of the forthcoming AGM
Although the latter authonty was not utiised by the Company
shareholders wall be asked to give a similar authonity to purchase

shares at the forthcoming AGM

Directors’ interests

Drrectors mnterests in the shares of the Company as at 31 March 2013
according to the reqister maintained under the Compantes Act 2006 are
set out 1n the Directors Rermuneration Report on pages 60-71 No company
m the Group was duning or at the end of the financial year party to any
contract of sigmificance inwhich any Director was matenally interested

Employees

Infarmation on the Company's emplogment policies 1s given on page 33
and informatior on the Group s share schemes 15 provided wn the Direciors
Remuneration Report on pages 60-71 The Cormpany provides an induction
programme for new employees including traming on health and safety
and a range of development programmes for all staff to develop ther skills
and knowledge The Company enceurages and assists the employment
traiming and retenticn of disabled people Where changes te working
practices or structure affect staff they are consuited and given the
appropnate support All employees are provided wath informaticn on
matters of concern to them i thew work through regular bniefing
rmeetings and internal publications

Donations

Chantable Donations

During the year the Group gave £884 000 (2012 £663 000) to charitable
organisations [n addition, £309 000 of fime incorne collected by the Group
was donated tochanty gwing rise to total donations of £1 193000 In
aggregate £799000 (2012 £800 000) of these donations were made

to the London Stock Exchange Group Foundation which in turm donated
£716 000 to chanities Details of the Group s chantable giving 1s contained
in the Corporate Responsibility Report on page 33

Political Donations and Expenditure

The Group made no political donations and incurred no political expenditure
dunng theyear It remamns the Company s policy not 1o make pohtical
donations or to incur pohitical expenditure however the application of the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 15 potentially very broad
innature and as last year the Board 15 seeking shareholder authonty to
ensure that the Group does not inadvertently breach these provisions as
aresult of the breadth of its business activities although the Board has no
intention of using this authoriy Accordingly the Board 1s proposing that
shareholders pass a resolution at the forthcorming AGM to authorise the
Group to

— rnake palitical donations to political parties and independent
elechion candidates not exceeding £100 000 in total

— make poltical donations to political orgarsations other than
pohtical parties not exceeding £100 000 1n total and

— meur pohitical expenditure not exceeding £100 000 i total

and in aggregale not exceeding £100 000 until the Company s
AGM n 2014
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Supplier payment policy

It (s the Group s on-going pohicy to agree payment terms with suppliers when
business transactions are negotiated and to make payments in accordance
with those terms when goods and services have been satisfactonly supplied
London Stock Exchange plc 1s an approved member of The Prompt Payment
Code part of a structured imtiative devised by the UK Government wath the
Institute of Credit Management 1o tackle the 1ssue of late payment and

help small businesses The Prompt Payment Code can be viewed at

www promptpaymentrode org uk The creditor days at 31 March 2013
based on the aggregate of the amount which was owed to trade creditors
and the aggregate of the amount in which the Group was nvoiced by
suppliers dunng the year was 27 days (2012 28 days)

Significant agreements

The following are sigrificant agreements to which the Company 1s a party
that take effect alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid

Facility Agreements
The Company (as borrower) has entered 1o

— arevolving faciity agreement with among others Lloyds TSB
Bank plc Bayensche Hypo und Veremsbank AG London Branch
and Intesa Sanpaolo S p A dated 24 July 2008 as amended by
anamendment agreement dated 7 February 2012

—- arevolving facility agreemnent with among others Barclays Capital The
Royal Bank of Scotland plc HSBC Bank pic The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubtshi
UF] Limited Intesa Sanpaolo Sp A Lloyds 7SB Bank ple and Umicredit
Bank AG London Branch dated 17 Novermnber 2010 as amended by an
amendment agreement dated 7 February 2012 and

— arevolving facility agreement with Lloyds TSB Bank plc The Royal Bank
of Scotland plc Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited and The Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFI Lumited dated 15 Decernber 2011

Altthe above agreements contamn terms appropriate for an investment grade
borrower including change of control provisions which if triggered allow the
relevant facility agent upon nstructions from the majonity lenders to cancel
the relevant facihty and declare all outstanding loans under that agreement
together with accrued nterest and alk other amounts accrued due and payable

Notes

The Company has 1ssued two sterling Notes to the wholesale fixed mncome
market due 2016 and 2019 Both Notes contan a redemption upon change
of control provision which 1 triggered by the combination of a change of
control and within 120 days thereafter a credit rating downgrade to
non-investment grade allows Note holders to exercise thewr option to require
the Issuer to redeem the Notes and pay any accrued and unpatd interest due

Retail Bond Issue

The Company has 1ssued dunng the year sterling denominated retait
bonds under its £1 000 million Euro Mediumn Term Note Programme due
2 November 2021 The retall bonds contain change of control provisions
which 1if tnggered allow the holder of these bonds to have the option to
require the Issuer to repay early or to purchase the bonds of that holder
at therr face value together wath accrued interest

Employee Share Plans

The rules of the Company s employee share plans set out the consequences
of a change of control of the Company on employees nights under the plans
Generaly such ights will vest on a change of control and participants will
become entitled to acquire shares in the Company (alihough in certain

circumstances the Remuneration Committee has the discretion to defer
vesting and to require nghts to be exchanged for equivalent nghts over
the acquinng company s shares}

Employee benefit trust

Asat 31 March 2013 the trusiee of the London Stock Exchange Employee
Beneht Trust whech 1s an independent trustee hetd 11 rmillion shares

{2012 1 2 rmiliory) under the terms of the trust for the benefit of employees
and former employees of the Company and its subsidianes The trust 1s a
discretionary trust and the shares are held to meet employees entitlernents
under the Company’s share plans Employees have no voting rights 1n relation
to the shares white they are held in trust The trustee has full discretion to
exercise the voting nights attaching to the shares or to abstain from voting
Shares acquired by employees through the Company s emplouee share plans
rank equally with the ordinary shares in1ssue and have no special rights

Contractual arrangements essential to the Company

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to provide information about
persons with whom the Company has contractual or other arrangements
which are essential to the business The Group has contractual arrangements
with 1ts clearing services providers (including the LCH Clearret Group and SIX
X-Clear) and with 514 for the provision of technology to Monte Titoh and MTS
which remain essential for the business Various Group entities are regulated
and the Group attaches the lhighest prionty to complying with local
regulatory requrements

Financial risk management

The use of financial instrurments by the Group and the Groups financial nsk
management have been specifically considered by the Directors and relevant
disclosures appear in Principal Risks and Uncertainties on pages 42-47 of
this Annual Report and n the notes to the Financial Statements on pages
84-87 of ts Annual Report, and in each case are incorporated by reference
into this Directors’ Report

Audit information

Inaccordance with Section 418(2) of the Comparies Act 2006 the Directors
confum n the case of each Director in office at the date the Duectors Report
15 approved that

— 5o far as the Director s aware there 1s no relevant audit inforration
of which the Company s auditors are unaware and

— hesshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a
Director \n order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company s auditors are aware
of that information

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Companys
auditors will be proposed at the AGM

By Order of the Board

I Gt

Lisa Condvon
Group Company Secretary
15 May 2013
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, THE
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the financiat staterments in accordance wath
applicable Jaw and regulations

Company law requires the Brectors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group and
Company financial staternents inaccordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unton Under
company law the Directors must not appsove the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they gwe a true and fair view of the state

of the affairs of the Group and the Company

In preparing those financial staterents the Directors are requured to
— select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply themn consistently

— make Judgemnents and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

— state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained n the financial statements and

-— prepare the hnancial staterments on the going concern basts unless
1t \s mappropnate to presume that the Group will continue 1n business

The Directots confirm that they have complied wath the above requirernents
n prepanng the inancial statements

The Durectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records

that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and with
reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the
Drectors Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and

as regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation
They are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the Campany and
the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other uregulanties

The Durectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the
Company s website Legislation in the Umited Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissermunation of financial statements may differ
from legislatior in other junisdictions

Going concern

The Groups business actvties together with the factors hkely to affectits
future development performance and position are set out 1n the Overview
and Business Review sections of the Annual Report on pages 2-47 In
particular the current econormic conditicns continue to pose a nurmber

of nsks and uncertainttes for the Group and these are set out i Principal
Risks and Uncertainties on pages 42-47

The financial nsk management objectives and pohcies of the Group and the
exposure of the Group to capital tisk credit nsk market nsk and hquidity

risk are discussed on pages 84-87 The Group continues to meet Group and
individual entity capital requirerments and day-to-day hquidity needs through
the Group s cash resources and avatable credit facilities Commutted term
funding at 31 March 2013 increased to £1 650 milion (2012 £1 350 million)

£1 450 mulion of which 1s commutted until December 2014 or beyond (2012
£1 350 milhion committed until July 2013 or beyond) described further in

the Financial Review on pages 34-39

The Drrectors have reviewed the Group s forecasts and projections taking into
account reasonably possible changes in trading performance which show
that the Group has sufficient financal respurces On the basis of this review
and after making due enquines the Drrectors have a reasonable expectation
that the Cormpany and the Group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly they continue
to adopt the going concern basts inpreparing the financial statements

Directors’ responsibility statement
Each of the Directors whose names and functions are set out on pages 48-49
of this Annual Report confirm that to the best of their knowledge and behef

— the Group financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view of the assets liabilities
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the Group
taken as a whole and

— the Directors report contained in the Annual Report includes a faur review
of the developrment and perfermance of the business and the position of
the Company and the Group taken as a whole together with a descniption
of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

By Order of the Board

Ju G

Lisa Condron
Group Company Secretary
15 May 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LONDON STOCK
EXCHANGE GROUP PLC

We have audited the financial statements of London Stock Exchange Group
ple for the year ended 31 March 2013 which compnse the Consolidated
Income Staterment the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Balance Sheets, the Cash Flow Statements the Staternents of Changes

n Equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has
been appled in ther preparation 1s apphicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and, as
regards the parent Company financial statements as applied in accordance
with the prowvisions of the Compantes Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Staterment as set out
onpage 75 the Brectors are responsibie for the preparation of the financial
staterments and for being satished that they give a {rue and fawr view Our
responsibility 15 to audit and express an opimon on the finanaial staternents
n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This repart, including the opimons, has been prepared for and only for the
Company s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these
opinions accept or assume responsibihty for any other purpose or fo any
other persen to whom this report 1$ shown or inte whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent m wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures

n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal rrusstatement whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Group's and the parent Company s
crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the
Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial staternents In
addition we read all the financial and non-financial nformation in the
annual report to wenttfy matenal inconsistencies with the audiied financial
staterments If we becorme aware of any apparent matenal misstaternents
ar inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
Inour opinon

— the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Groups
and of the parent Cornpany s affaurs as at 31 March 2013 and of the Groups
profit and the Group s and the parent Company s cash flows for the year
then ended,

— the Group financial statements have been property prepared n accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

— the parent Company financial staterments have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adepted by the European Urvon and as applied
in accordance with the provistons of the Cormparies Act 2006 and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and as regards the group
financial staterments, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinwon

— the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

— the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial staterments are prepared s consistent with the financial
staternents, and

- the information given in the Corporate Governance Staterment set out
on pages 50 to 56 with respect to internal control and sk management
systems and about share capital structures 15 consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Wa have noting to report in respect of the fellowing

Under the Cormpantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you 1f
N our gpIMoN

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company,
or returns adequate for our audut have not been received from branches
not visited by us, or

— the parent Company financiat statements and the part of the Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not
made or

- we have not recewed all the information and explanations we require
for our audt, or

— a Corparate Governance Staterment has not been prepared by the
parent Company

tUnder the Listing Rules we are required to review

- thedirectors staterment set out on page 75 in relahon to going concern,

— the parts of the Corporate Governance Staternent relating to the parent
Company s compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review and

— certam elernents of the report to shareholders by the Board on
directors’ remuneration

41/\4 o~ N\/\?’

Alison Moms

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
15 May 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2013 2013 2012
Before Before
acquisition Acquisition acquisition Acquisition
amortisation and amortisation and amortisation and amortisatwon and
non recurring NgN recurring nen recurnng nan recurring
tems items Total items wems Total
Centinuing operations Notes £m £m £m £m m £m
Revenue 726 4 - 726 4 6798 - 6798
Net treasury income through CCP busmaess 1167 - 1167 1269 - 1269
Other income 98 183 281 81 - 81
Total income [3 8529 183 8712 8148 - 8148
Expenses
Operaung expenses S %227) (1001 (522 8) (378 8) (81 0} (459 8)
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures/associates - - - 59 (24) 35
Operating profit/(loss) 7 4302 {81 &) 3484 4419 (83 4) 3585
{Lossy/proft on disposalfacquisihion of shares
n subsidiang and joint venture 7 - - - (@ 5) 3243 3238
Finance mcame 14 5 - 145 168 - 16 8
Finance expense (64 0) - {64 0) (57 6} {18) (59 4)
Met finance expense 8 {49 5) - (49 5) (40 8) (18) (42 6)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 3807 {81 8) 2989 4006 2391 6397
Taxation 9 {95 7) 123 (83 4) {116 9) 86 {108 3)
Profit/{loss) for the financial year 2850 (69 5) 2155 2837 2477 5314
Proht/loss) attributable to non-centrolling interests 10 {25 {15 124 30) 94
Proht#ioss) attributable to equity holders 2840 (67 Q) 2170 2713 2507 5220
2850 {69 5) 2155 2837 2477 5314
Basic earnings per share 10 80 4p 193 6p
Diluted earnings per share 10 79 0p 190 op
Adjusted basic earnings per share 10 105 3p 100 6p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 10 103 4p 99 2p
Dwidend per share in respect of the financial period 11
Dmidend per share paid during the year 287p 27 3p
Dwidend per share declared for the year 29 5p 28 3p

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 March 2013 2013 2612
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year 2155 531 4
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Defingd henefit pensian scheme actuanal loss 16 69) (47 6)
Cash fvow hedge 03 -
Net tnvestment hedge 19 156
Change in value of available for sate financial assets 12 -
Exchange gain/(loss) on transtation of foreign operations 192 (757
Tax related toitems not recognised in income statement 9 39 127
158 950
Total comprehensive sncome for the financial year 2313 436 4
Attributable to non controtling interests {06) 95
Attributable to equity holders 2319 4269

2313 436 4
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BALANCE SHEETS

31 March 2013 Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets !
Non-current assets
Property plant and equiprnent 12 801 733 - -
intangible assets 13 2,04923 21174 - -
Ivestments in associates 06 06 - -
Investments n subsidiary undertakings 14 | - - 37791 } 37628
Deferred tax assets 15 } 192 16 8 - -
Dervative financial instruments 18 | &3 52 40 52
Qther non current assets | 120 07 - -
i 2,1655 2,2140 3,7831 | 37680
Cuirent assets i
Inventories 15 20 - -
Trade and other recewvables 17 1857 1783 5794 | 586 2
CCP financial assets 137,620 2 936196 - -
CCP cash and cash equivalents {restncted) 8,476 2 6,1373 - -
CCP clearing business assets 18 146,006 & 997569 - -
Current tax | 246 418 | - 106
Assets held at fair value 18 { 61 146 in - ! -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 ' 4662 2160 | 01} 02
146,760 5 1002096 5795 l 5970
Assats held for sale - 64 | - -
Total assets | 148,926 0 | 1024300 | 4,362 6 4 3650
Liabifities ] } ! ‘
Current liabilities ! ; ‘
Trade and other payables 20 ) 2300 2337 ! 1609 3157
Denvative inancial nstruments 18 I 01 o - -
CCP clearing business kathties 18 146,088 1 997472 | - ‘ -
Current tax | 432 725 - -
Bosrowings 21 04 105 | - -
Provisions 23 i 11 J 25 ! - 1 =
} 146,3629 1000664 | 1609 | 3157
Non-current liabilities ‘ I [
Borrowings 21| 796 4 ] 7466 | 7964 | 7466
Other non current payables 20 | 34 38 - 11 -
Denvative inancial instruments 18 | 35 21 ' 351 21
Deferved tax habilities 15 i 1090 173 i - ! -
Returement benefit obligation 16 ) 256 | 165 i - f -
Provisions 23 ! 262 | 276 | = -
! 964 1 9139 | 7999 ) 7487
Total liahilities [ 147,3270 | 100,9803 ! 560 8 1,064 4
Net assets | 1,5990 | 14697 | 3,401 8 33006
' n
Equity ’ ) |
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders H
Share capital 2 | 88 88 | 188 ' 188
Retained (losses)/earnings i (126 8) {262 9) ; 1,564 5 I 14633
Other reserves | 16385 | 11,6209 | 1,818 5 18185
Total shareholder funds i 1,530 5 | 13768 | 3,4018 33006
Non-controlling interests | 685 729 | - -
Total equity | 1,590 | 14497 . 3,401 8 4 33006

The financial statements on pages 77 to 109 were approyed B the Board on 15 May 2013 and signed on1ts behalf by

e ———
Xavier Rolet David Warren
Chuef Executive Chef Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS 7
-
m
=
=
m N
£ [
Year ended 31 March 2013 Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes im £m fm £m

Cash flow from operating actiities

Group cash flow does not include cash and cash equivalents held by CC&G on behalf of 1ts clearing members for use s operation as manager of the clearing
and guarantee sustern These balances represent margins and default funds held for counterparties for short periods i connection with this operation Interest
on CCP balances 1s received by CCAG net of withholding tax which 1s deducted at source This withholding tax s effectively a cash outflow for the Group and s
shown separately inthe cash flow statement

SINIWIIVLS TNIINYNII dNOUD
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Cash generated from/{absorbed by} operations 25 487 5 462 4 01 (22 4}

Interest recewved 24 35 471 278

Interest paid 432 (44 0) (519 (59 8)

Corporation tax paid {64 9) (73 4) 249 83)

withholding tax pad (39 3) {45 5) - — @

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 3425 3030 202 627) E‘-
3

Cash flow from investing actwaties A

Purchase of property plant and equipment {18 2) a7 - - =

Purchase of intangible assets 28 2) (16 3) - - E

Proceeds from disposal of joint venture - 13 - - £

[nvestment in other acquisition 112 {15 0) - -

Investment in subsicharies (31) {4811 - {(117)

Net cash inflow from acquisitions 1t 76 - -

Dividends recewed oz 18 1607 2011

Proceeds from sale of subsichary - 28 4 - -

Proceeds from investment by non contralling interest 1n subsidiary - 43 - - a

Net cash (outflow}/inflow from investing actwities (59 &)} (486 1) 1607 1896 2
A

Cash flow from financing actwities ;

Dividends paid to sharehotders (77 4) {(736) (77 4) (736) %

Dividends pawd to non controlling interests {4 3) (12 8) - - m

Loans {to)/from ESOP trust - - (139) 23

Loans to subsidiary companies - - (139 4) (303 8}

Purchase of own shares by ESOP Trust {139 - - -

Praceeds from own shares on exercise of employee share optians 03 23 03 -

Praceeds from borrawings 2976 2485 2976 2476

Repayments from borrowings (257 8) {24 2} (247 B) -

Net cash (outflowl/inflow from financing actwities (55 5) 140 2 (180 6) {1275)

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2276 {42 9) 03 (06)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2160 2670 02 08

Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 26 81 04) -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 446 2 2160 01 02
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Grotup Attributable to equity holders

Ordinary share Retamed Other Total attnbutable  Non controlling Total

capital lass reserves to equity holders nkerests equity

m fm £im £m £&m £m

1 Apnl 2011 188 {662 9) 1,681 0 1,036 9 1001 1,1370
Total comprehenswve income for the financal year - 4870 (60 1) 4269 95 4364
Final dividend Telating to the year ended 31 March 2011 - (48 5) -~ (48 5) - (485)
Interim dividend relating to the year ended 31 March 2012 - {251} - 25 1) - (25 1)
Diwvidend payments to non controlling mterests - - - - (113 (113)
Employee share scherme expenses - 141 - 141 - 141
Purchase of non controlling interest - (275) - {275) (25 4) (529)
31 march 2012 188 (262 9) 1,6209 1,376 8 729 1,4497
Total comprehensive iIncome for the fimancial year - 2143 176 2319 06) 2313
Final dwidend relating to the year ended 31 March 2012 - {51 2) - {51 2) - 512)
Intenim cividend Telating te the year ended 31 March 2013 - (26 2) - (26 2) - {26 2)
Dwidend paymenits to non controlling interests - - - - (38} (38)
Employee share scheme expenses - (0 8) - (0 B) - (08}
31 Mavch 2013 18 8 {126 8) 1,6385 1,530 5 68 5 1,5990

Other reserves comprise the following
Capital redemiption reserve of £514 2m (2012 £514 2m) a non distributable reserve set up as a result of a court approved capital reduction

Reverse acquisition reserve of £(512 5)m (2012 £(512 5)m) a non-distnibutable capital reserve ansing on consciidation as a result of the capital
reduction scheme

Foregn exchange translahon reserve of £353 3m (2012 £334 1m) reflecting the impact of foreign cutrency changes on the translation of fereign operations

Merger reserve of £1 304 3m (2012 £1 304 3m) ansing on consolhidation when the Company 1ssues shares as part of the consideration to acquire
subsichary undertakings

Hedgng reserve of £(20 8)rn (2012 £(19 2)m) representing the cumulatve fair vatue adjustment recogrsed in respect of net investrnent and cash flow
hedges undertaken in accordance with hedge accounting principles

Company Attributable to equity holders
Other reserves
Camital
Ordwmary share Retamed redemption Total attnibutable
capttal e2TNINGSs reserve MergeTreserve  toequity holders
£m m £m £m £m
1 Apnl 2011 188 1,364 1 514 2 1,304 3 3,2014
Total comprehensive income for the inancial year - 1631 - - 163 i
Final dividend relating to the year ended 31 March 2011 - {48 5) - - (485)
Intenim dividend relating o the year ended 31 March 2012 - {251) - - (251
Employee share scheme expenses - 97 - - 97
31 March 2012 188 14633 514 2 1,304 3 3,3006
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - 176 2 - - 176 2
Final dividend relating to the year ended 31 March 2012 - (512 - - (512)
Intersm dividend telating to the year ended 31 March 2013 - {26 2) - - (26 2)
Employee share schame expenses - 24 - - 24

31 March 2013 18 8 1,564 5 514 2 1,304 3 3,4018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The Company s and Group s consohdated financial statements are prepared
m accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (I[FRS)

and IFRS Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) interpretations endorsed

by the European Union and with those parts of the Comparies Act 2006
applicabte to companies reporting under IFRS

The Anancial staterments are prepared under the histoncal cost convention
as modihed by the revaluation of assets and hiabiities held at far value
nctuding those of the certral counterparty (CCP) clearing busimess of the
Groups subsidiary Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia Sp A (CC&G) and
on the basis of the Group s accounting pelicies

The Group uses a columnar farmat for the presentation of 1ts consolidated
income statement This enables the Group to aid the reader s understanding
of 1ts results by presenting profit for the year before amortisation of
purchased intangible assets and non-recurying tems Thiss the profit
measure used to calculate adjusted earnings per share and 1s considered to
be the most appropnate as it best reflects the Groups underlying recurning
cash earmings and 1s the primary measure of performarice momitored by
the Group s Executive Committee Profit before acquisition amortisation
and non recurring 1tems 1 reconciled to profit before taxation on the

face of the income staterment

Consolidation

The consohdated financial staternents comprise the finanaial statements
of the Company and tts subsidiaries with all inter-company balances and
transactions elimmnated 1ogether wath the Group s attnbutable share of
the results of assoctates The results of subsidianes sold or acquired are
included n the income staternent up to or from the date that control
passes As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the
Company s Income staterment has not been included in these financial
staternents The Company'’s income for the year 1s disclosed within the
statement of changes in equity

Investments 1n associates are accounted for under the equity method

The Group s investments n assoctates are mtially recogrised at cost

and its share of profits or losses after tax from assoaates 15 included in the
consolidated income staternent Cumulative post acquasition moverments
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment i the Groups
balance sheet The financial statements of associates are used by the Group
to apply the equity method under which the Group s income staternent
reflects the Group s share of the results of operations of the assoclates

A company 1s considered an assoclate where the Group has a

sigmficant mfluence

The acquisition of substdianies 15 accounted for using the purchase method
The cost of the acquisition 1s rheasured at the aggreqate of the fawr values

at the date of exchange of assets given labilities incurred or assumed

and equity Instrurments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree Adjustrments to far values include those made Lo bring accounting
policies into fine with those of the Group

The Group apples a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling
nterests through the economic entity mode! Transactions with non-
controlling interests are recognised in equity

Investments m subsidiaries are reviewed for imnpairment when events indicate
the carryimg amount may not be recoverable and are accounted for in the
Company s financial staternents at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Recent accounting developments

The following standards and interpretations have been 15sued by the
International Accounting Standards Beard {1ASB) and IFRIC and have
been adopted in these financial statements

Amendments o IFRS 1 ‘First time adoption —exemption for severe
hypennflation and removal of fixed dates

Amendment 1o TFRS 7 financial mstruments Disclosures — disclosures

on transfers of financial assets and IFRS various Annwal improvernents 2012

The adoption of these standards did not have a matenal impact on
these consolidaled financial statements

The followng standards and interpretations were 1ssued by the JASB and
IFRIC since the last Annual Reporl but have not been adopted either because
they were nat endorsed by the European Umon (EU) at 31 March 2013 or

they are not yet mandatory and the Group has not chosen to early adopt

The impact on the Group s financial statements of the future standards
amendments and interpretations s still under review but the Group does

not expect any of these changes to have a material impact on the results

of the net assets of the Group

International accounting standards and interpratations Effective date
Amendment to 1AS 1 Presentation of financial statements

- presentation of ttems of other comprehensive income 1July 2012
Amendment to JAS 12 Incorne taxes — deferred to tax

accounting for investment properties 1 January 2013
[AS 19 (revised} Employee benefits 1 January 2013
Amendment to [FRS 7 Financial instruments Disclosures 1January 2013
IFRS 16 Consohdated financial staternents 1January 2013
IFRS 11 Jont arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Faur value measurement 1 January 2013
145 32 Financial instruments Presentation 1 January 2014
Accounting policies

Income Statement

Revenue

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration receved or
recelvable and represents amounts recewvable for goods and services
provided m the normal course of business net of discounts VAT and
other sales related taxes

Revenue 15 recognised In the period when the service or supply 1s provided
The sources of revenue are

d) Mawnienance contracts mermbership and other fees — revenue 1s
recogmised on a straight-fine basts over the peried to which the fee relates

by Admussion fees — revenue 1s recognised at the time of admission
to trading

c) Royaliies —revenue 1s recognised at the earlier of cash receipt or the
date at which they are earned or measurable with certainty

d

e

IT products —where there 15 no sigmhcant setvice obligation the revenue
1s recogmsed upon delivery and acceptance of the software or hardware
by the customer

e) 1T solutions —where software s sold requining significant modihication
wmtegration or custormsation the consideration is aliocated between the
different elernents on a farr value basis Revenue is recogmsed using a
percentage of completion method The stage of completior 1s determined
by reference to the costs incurred to date as a proportion of the total
estimated costs or the services performed 1o date as a percentage of
total services to be performed Provision 1s made for all foreseeable
future losses in the perod in which they aredentified
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f) Software and Licence fees - revenue 1s recogmsed when the performance
under the contract has occurred and the revenue has been earned and

=

Other - all other revenue 1s recognised in the menth in which the service
15 provided Imwntenm reports Borsa Italana group defers some of the
mcome recetved from cash trading and FTSE MIB futures trading and
clearing This deferral results inrevenues being recogmised at the average
price of transactions forecast for the full year as pnicing levels reduce
dunng the year when incremental volume targets are achieved

49

Non-recwrming items

Iterns of income and expense that are matenal by size and/or nature and are
nen-recurnng are classiiied as non-recurnng iterns on the face of the mcome
staternent wathin their relevant category The separate reporting of these
1temns together with amortisation of purchased intangibte assets helps

give andication of the Group s underlying performance

Pension costs

The Group operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension
schemnes For the defined benefit schernes the service cost, representing
benefits accruing to employees s included as an operating expense and the
expected return on scherne assets and interest cost from unwandmng of the
discount on scherne obligations are included as finance income and finance
expense respectively Actuarnal gains and losses artsing from expenence
adjustments changes n actuanal assumpiions or differences between actual
and expected returns on assets are recognised at each penod end net of
taxn the statement of comprehensive income The net asset or hablity
recognised on the balance sheet compnses the difference between the
present value of pension obligations and the far value of scheme assets

For defined contribution schemes the expense 1s charged to the income
statement as incurred

Share based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity settled share based compensation
plans for employees The charge to the income statement 1s deterrmined by
the far value of the options granted or shares awarded at the date of grant
and recogmsed over the relevant vesting peniod

Foreign currencies

The consohdated financial statements are presented in sterbng which

1s the Companys presentation and functional currency Foreign currency
transactions are converted nto the functional currency using the rate ruling
at the date of the transaction Foreign exchange gamns or losses resulting
from the setttement of such transactions and {rom the translation at
year-end rates of monetary assets and habihities denorminated in foreign
currendies are recogrused 1 the income staterment Translation differences
on non-monetary items such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are reported as part of thew far value gam or loss Exceptions to this are
where the non-monetary items form part of the net investment 1n a foreign
operation or are designated as hedges of a net investment ar as cash flow
hedges Such exchange differences are imtially recognised in equity

The results and financial position of alt Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the preseniation curtency are converted into the
presentation currency as follows

a) assets and habilities including goodwill purchased intangible assets and
far value adjustrnents ave converted at the closing balance sheet rate

)

-~

income and expenses are translated and recorded in the income
staternent at the average monthly rates prevaihng and

C

L

all resutting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity

On consolidation exchange differences ansing from the translation of the
net investment in foreign cperattons and of borrowing and other currency
instrurnents designated as hedges of such inwestments are taken to
shareholders equity When a foreign operation 15 partially disposed of

or sold exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recogntsed
n the income statement as part of the gam or loss on sale

Finance income and expense

Finance income and expense compnses interest earned on cash depostied
with financial counterparttes and interest paid on borrowings which reftect
the agreed market-based or contractual rate for each transaction undertaken
durning the financial year

Recurring fees and charges levied on commtted bank faclities and the
payments and cash management transactions ang services provided by the
Group s banks are charged to the income statement as acctued Crecht facility
arrangement fees are capitalised and then amortised back to the income
staternent over the term of the facilty subject to protected utilisation If a
facihity 1s deemed unlikely to be drawn over its life the arrangement fees

will be charged immediately to the income statement Fees and charges

are included within other finance costs

Fawr vatue gains and losses on financial instrurments includes the maoverment
in the market valuatiens of dertvative instruments held as fair value hedges

Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are included inthe financial statements
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for imparment

Freehold buildings fixed plant and plant and equiprnent are stated at
cost and are deprectated to residual value on a straight ine basis over
the estimated useful economic hves of the assets which are as follows

a) Freehold bulldings — 33 to 50 years
b} Fixed plant = five to 20 years and
¢} Plant and equipment - three to 15 years

Leasehold properties and improvernents are included at cost and depreciated
to residual value over the shorter of the penod of the lease or the useful
economic life of the asset

Leases

Leases in which a sigmficant portion of the nsks and rewaids of ownership
are 1etained by the lessor are classihed as operating leases Payments made
under operating leases are charged to the ncome statement on a straight-
Ine basis Lease incentives are spread over the term of the lease

The Group leases certain plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the rnsks and rewards of ownership These are classified as
finance leases Finance leases are capitaised at the lease s commencernent
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value

of the rimimum lease payments

Each lease payment s apportioned between the finance charge and the
habihty so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding
The plart and equipment acquered under finance leases 1s depreciated

over the shorter of the useful hife of the asset and the lease term

Due to thewmmatenal value of finance leases wathin the Group they are
not disclosed separately within the accounts
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Intangible assets

Goodwil] anising on the acquesition of subsidianes represents the excess of
consideration paid over the fair value of the Group s share of net wdentihable
assets purchased 1t 1s not amortised but 1s tested for impairment annually
and when there are indications that the carrying value may not be
recoverable and 1s carried at cost less accumulated impatrment losses

On the acquisition of a business fair values are attributed to the assets and
liablities acquired These may include brand names customer relationships
licences and software inteflectual property all of which are recorded as
ntangible assets and held at cost less accumulated amortisation These
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful econormic

tives which do not normally exceed 25 years of the term of the heence

The amortisation period and method are reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate at each balance sheet date

Third party software costs for the development and implementation of
systemns which enhance the services provided by the Group are capitalised
and amortised over thelr estimated useful econormic lives of three years

Internal product development expenditure 1s capitalised if the costs can be
reliably measured 1he product or process 1s technically and commercially
feasible future econormic benefits are probable and the Group has sufhicient
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset The assets
are recorded at cost including labour directly attnbutable costs and any thid
party expenses and amortised over useful econormic lives of three years

Current and deferred taxation

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax

laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidianes cperate and generate
taxable income

Full provision 1s made using the hability method for temporary differences
ansing between the tax bases of assets and habiities and thew carrying
armounts 1n the financial statements Deferred taxabion s determined using
tax rates that are substant:ally enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the asset ts reatised or hability settled Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent it 1s probable that they will be recoverable
agawnst future taxable profits

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets (excluding clearng business)

The Group classifies its inancial assets in the following categones at fawr
vatue thiough profit or loss available-for-sale and loans and recewables
The classthcation depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired Management deterrines the classification of s financial
assets at imtial recogmition

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at farr value through proft or loss include fnancial assets
held for hquidity purposes and are inttiafly recogrised at fair value and any
subsequent changes n fair value are recogmsed directly in the income
statement These assets are financal instrurnents not designated as hedges

by Avalable-for-sale inancial assets

Investments (other than term deposits and interests in joint veniures
associates and subsidiaries) are designated as available for sale and are
recorded on trade date at fair value plus transaction costs with changes in

fair value recognised In equity Where the far value s not rehiably measurable
the wvestment 1s held at cost less any provision for mpairment Assets such
as shares i clearing and payment transrmission operations and long term
equity nvestments that do not qualify as associates o joint ventures are
usually classihed as avallable for sale

¢) Loansand recevables

Loans and recevables are non-denvative financial assets/labihties with hixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted i an active market They are
included 1 current assets except for those with maturities greater than

12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current
assets Loans and recewables comprise trade and other receivables and

cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

Financial assets and habilities of the central counterparty

(CCP) business

Assets and habilities of the CCP cleanng service relate to CC&G the subsidiary
that performs the CCP cleanng business CC&G clears inancial denvatives
equities and bond transactions on Italian reguiated markets guaranteeing
the successful recempt or delivery of secunties for the transactions to be
settled on both the sale and purchase side of transactions wath the respective
counterparties It enters into a contractual arrangement n respect of each
side of the transaction bears the risk associated with counterparties faling
to honour their obhgations and i the event of a failure to deliver by any
counterparty 1s required itself to complete delivery of the appropnate
secunties Accordingly CC&G must record an asset and a iability on its
balance sheet in respect of each of the sale and purchase sides of each
transaction However exceptn respect of failed transactions CC&G as

a CCP clearer does not bear any price nisk and the value of the sale and
purchase side of each transaction are the same consequently the

principal CCP asset and liability amounts largely match each other

Income recognised through the CCP cleaning business includes net treasury
income earned on margin and default funds held as part of our nisk
management process and 15 shown separately from the Group revenues

This amount has been shown separately on the face of the income statement
to distinguish this mcome stream from revenues ansing from the Groups
other actvities and provides the reader with a greater understanding of the
operating actvities of the Group

Accounting treatments of CCP financial assets and habihites include
the following

a) Derwatives trading assets and habihities

‘These transactions are iutially recorded at fair value which coincides with the
market value of the open positions on the IDEM and IDEX denvatives markets
n which CCEG operates as CCP and are subsequently re-measured on the
basts of the market price of each denvative nstrument at the penod end
Since the asset and habihity positions of the CCP clearer are matched the
same amount 15 recorded for both the assets and iabilities and no net farr
value gains or losses are recognised in the income statemnent

b) Recewables for and habilities under repurchase transactions

These represent Tepurchase transactions (repos) by clearing members n the
bond market using CC&G s clearing and guarantee service They represent
the value of transactions already settled spot and not yet settled at term
These transactions are imtially recognised at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost by allocating the yield on the repo pro-rated
over the duration of the contract (the coupon accrued in the period and the
difference between the spot and forward prices) Simce the asset and hability
positions for repaos are matched the same amount is recorded for both assets
and liabilities and no gain or loss 15 recorded in the income staternent

c) Other recevables from and payables to clearing members

These comprise accounts recevable and payable denving from the actvities
of cleaning members in dervatives equities and bond transactions They
matnly represent amounts to be receved or paid in relation to initial and
varialion margins option prermums securities as collaterat and default fund
contributions and are mitially recorded at faw value They are generally settled
on the next day and accordingly are not discourted back Lo current vatue
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d) Fnancial assets and habilities at fatr value

These represent quoted equity and bond secunities which CC&G has already
withdrawn from the settlement system but has not yet delivered to the
inermedianes who have bought them and securities traded but not yet
settled as part of the CCP function These are imfially recogrused at fair value
and subsequently re measured at far value based on the market pnice of
each security The difference between the settlement price of each secunity
at trade date and the market price of that secunty at the perniod end 15
recognised as a far vatue gain or loss in the income statement

g) Cash and cash equivalents (restricted)

These include amounts recewed from clearing members to cover imtial and
vanation margins and default fund contributions as collateral against default
or insolvency and are deposited with banks Such amounts are imtially
recognised at far vatue and are subsequently recogmsed at amortised cost
using the effective interest method 1f the Ume value of money1s sigmificant

Denwative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derwatives are inttially recogrised at faw vatue on the date a denvative
contract 15 entered 1nto and are subsequently remeasured at their far value
at each balance sheet date The method of recognising the resulting gawn or
loss depends on whether or not the dertvative 1s designated as a hedging
wstrument and 1f so the nature of the ttern being hedged

The Group apphes fair value hedge accounting for hedging mterest nisk on
borsowings Any gain or loss 1s recognised 1n the meome statement within
finance expenses

The Group designates as cash flow hedges both foreign currency dernwvatives
and hedges of interest rate mavernents associated with tighly probable
forecast transactions Any gamn or loss on the hedging Insirument relating
to the effective portion of the hedge 15 recognised in equity

The Group hedges a proportion of its net investrment 1n its Itahan Companies
by designating euro borrowings as a net investment hedge

In order to qualify for hedge accounting a transaction must meet stnct
cnteria as regards documentation effectiveness probability of occurrence
and rehability of measurement The Group docurments at the inception of

the transaction the refationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items as well as its nsk managernent objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedging transactions Effectiveness testing 1s conducted at each
reporting date and at the commencement and conclusion of any hedge in
order to venfy that the hedge continues to satisfy all the criteria for hedge
accounting to be maintamned The neffective portion 1s recogrised in the
income statement within finance costs

Amounts accumulated 1n equnty are recycled in the income statement in
the period when the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example when
the forecast transaction that 1s hedged takes place) When a hedging
mnstrurnent expires or 1s sold or when a hedge ne longer meets the critena
for hedge accounting any cumulative gam or loss existing i equity at that
time remains n equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transachion is
ultimately recognised in the ncomne statermnent When a forecast transaction
1s no longer expected to occur the cumnulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity 1s immediately transferred to the income staternent

Trade recewvables

Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are slated at thew farr value
which 1s usually the onginal mvoiced amount less provision for impairment
A provision for impairment of trade recevables 1s established when there s
objective evidence that the Group wall not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the ongmnal terms of the recevables Sigmificant financal
difficuluies of the debtor probabihity that the debior wall entet bankruptey
o1 will be subject to a financial re-orgamsation and/or default on or be
delinquent on 1ts payment cbligations are considered ndicators that the
trade recevable 15 impaired The amount of the provision s the difference
between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of the portion
deerned recoverable The camrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 1s recogmsed
In the incorme statement Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited in the mcome staternent

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank term deposits and
nvestments in morey market funds that are readtly convertibte to known
amounts of cash and are subject to insigmficant nsk of changes n value

Assets held for sale

Assets are dassified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount 1s to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale s considered
mghly probable They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell

Borrowings

Bank borrowings are initially recorded at the fau value of amounts received
net of direct 1ssue costs and transaction costs (including upfront facihity fees)
Subsequeritly these iabilities are carned at amortised cost and nterest1s
charged to the income statement over the pened of the borrowings using the
effective interest method Sirmilarly direct 1ssue costs and transaction costs
(inctuding upfront factity fees} are charged to the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Share capital

The Company s awn shares hetd by the Employee Benefit Trust are deducted
from equity unttl they vest unconditionally for employees and are held at
cost Consideration paid in respect of these treasury shares 1s deducted from
equity until the shares are cancelled retssued or disposed of

2 Financial risk management

The Group seeks to protect its financial performance from exposuse to capital
credit quidity and market (including foreign exchange and fair value and
cash flow interest rate) nisks

Financial nsk management 15 not speculative 1t 1s performed at a Group level
where the treasury function identifies evaluates and hedges financial nsks
from a Group perspective and also locally where operating units manage
requlatory and operational risks The Financial Risk Commitiee (FRC) a
sub-Comrmittee of the Executive Committee chaired by the Chief Financiat
Officer meets monthly to aversee the consolidated financial nsks of the
Group In addiion the Treasury Committee a sub-Committee of the FRC
whichs also chared by the Chief Financial Officer meets requtatly to ensure
that the operattonal managernent of foreign exchange interest rates credit
nsks and the nvestrnent of excess liquidity are performed tn accordance
with Group Board approved policies and procedures See Principal Risk and
Uncertainties pages 42 47 for further detail on the Group s nsk framework
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Capital risk

Risk descniption

Risk management approach

The Group incorporates a nurnber of regulated

entibies within its structure It considers that increases
10 the regulatory requirernents of those companies
(including any extension ia the Group as a whole)
and/or a scarcity of debt or equity (driven by its

own perfermance or inancial market conditions)

are the principal r1sks to managing its capital

The Group 15 profitable and 1t capital base
comprises equity capital and debt capital

The Group focusses upon its overall cost of capital as it seeks 16 provide superior returns to its shareholders
fulhil 1ts cbhigations to the relevant regulatory authonties and other stakeholders and ensure that it 1s not
overly dependent upan short and medium term debt that right not be available at renewal Mamntaimng
the flexibihity to invest for growth s a key capital management consideration

The Group can manage us capital structure by varying returns to shareholders 1ssuing new shares or
ncreasing or reducing borrowings The Board reviews dividend policy and funding capacity on a regular
basis angd the Group mamntains comfartable levels of debt facitity headroom

To mantain the financial strength to access new capital at reasonable cost and meet its abjectve of
maintaming an investment grade credit rating the Group ronitors its leverage ratio which 1s operating net
debt (1e excluding cash and cash equivalents set aside for regulatory and operational purposes) to adjusted
EBITDA {Group consolidated earmings before net finance charges taxation wmparment depreciation and
amortisation and non-recurring items) against a target range of 1 2 imes The Group 15 also mindful of
potential impacts on the key metnics employed by the credit rating agencies (including gross debt to
EBITDA and EBITDA coverage of interest expense) in considering increases to 1ts borrowings

At 31 March 2013 net leverage was 1 2 imes (2012 1 4 times) Considering 1ts recent investments 1 particular
the acquisition of a further 55 5 per cent of the shares of and subsequent subscniption for additional capital n
LCH Clearnet Group and the investment in the TMX Datahink JV the Group s net leverage on a pro forma basts
wottld have been a httle above the top end of 1is target range at 2 1 times

Performance against the Group s bank facihity ratio covenants (net leverage and debt service - ratio covenants
that are unchanged dunng the financial year) remams very comfortable and does not bt the Group s
operations or financing plans

As at 31 March 2013 £200 mithon of cash and cash equivalents was set aside to cover requlatory and
operational requirements This amount increased during the year primanly as a result of an agreermnent
with the regulaters of CC&G Bank of [taly to retain earmings and associated cash in that company to meet
farthcorming regulatory requiremnents under EMIR The tevel of cash set aside by the Group remains subject
to on going review with regulators in the UK and Italy including the potential to vary the amounts set aside
n patticular gwen the implications on cash holdings of the FCA s requirement that LSE plc recognises profit
In 1ts Tegutatory capital calculation only upon external audit sign off

Credit risk

Risk description

Risk management approach

CC&G mts tole as central counterparty clearer to
Itahan financial market participants quarantees
final settlement of transactions acting as buyer
tawards each seller and as selier towards each buyer
1t manages substantial credit risks as part of its
operations For more nformation see Principal

Risk and Uncertainties pages 42-47

Notwithstanding revised regulations in Eurcpe that will
require CCPs Lo invest 95 per cent of their cash collateral
n secured instruments or structures ta mawntain
haquidity (and i addition to the potential to deposit cash
securely with the central bank} CC&G will continue to
wwest the balance of up to five per cent of its argin and
default fund cash unsecured within the Itahan financial
market with banks requlated by Bank of ltaly Whilst
the five per cent threshold of un-secured investment will
considerably reduce 1ts credit sk 1t will continue to face
the nisk of direct loss from a detericration or failure of
one of more of these unsecured deposit counterparties

Furthermore to cover the nisk of trades executed by

1ts members on international markets CC&G has an
interoperability arrangernent with LCH Clearnet SA based
m Pans CC&G will make reciprocal deposits of collateral
10 reflect the traded positions of Itahian participants under
this arrangement and therefore will be exposed to credit
risk on LCH Clearnet SA as a deposit counterparty

More broadly credit nsk relates to the Group s custormers
and counterparties being unable to meet ther obligations
to the Group either n part or in full including

— customer recetvables
— repayment of invested cash and cash equivalents
— settlemment of denvative Ainancial mstruments

CCaG

To address the market participant nsk CC&G has established financial safequards against single or multiple
defaults Clearing membership selectien is based upon supervisory capitat techmical and organisational critena
Each member must pay margms computed at least daily to cover the theoretical costs which CC&G would incur

i order to close out open positions In the event of the member s default Margins are calculated using established
international risk Todels and are debited by CC&G duectly from participants acceunts held with Bank of 1taly
Clearing members also contribute to default funds managed by CC&G to guarantee the inlegnity of the markets

in the event of muluple defaults n extrerne market ccumstances Amounts are determined on the basis of the
results of periedic stress testing exarnined by CCRG s nisk committee and exceed standards agreed by the European
Assocatian of Central Counterparty Clearing Houses To date no default of a drect participant has oceurred

Depostt counterparty nisk for CC&G margin and default funds 1s managed by mvesting cash with counterparties
that are rated mvestment grade or whe if not rated are publicly quoted and have a rinmmurn level of capital
CCEG hases closely with the regulator of 1ts counterparty banks Bank of Ttaly and to ensure hquidity funds
are generally placed as overright deposits and m all cases can be accessed within 2 business days if required

During the year we have further extended the number of counterparties that take CC&G s deposits to diversify
this nisk including the mtroduction of [tahian based branches of major mternational banks

To mihigale the price Tisks associated with certam secured investments CCaG will working with its regulator
consider mcreasmg the levels of security it recewves linked to these nvestments  Associated hquidity risks
are considered in the investrment mix and discussed fusthar in the section below

Group
Credit nisk 1s controlled through pohctes developed at a Group level

Group compantes make a judgernent on the crecit quahty of their customers based upon the customer s
fAinancial position a low concentration of credit nisk across a large number of customers the recurnng
nature of the biltng and collection arrangements and historically a low incidence of default

Credit nsk of cash and cash equivalents 1s managed by imiting the exposure to up to £50 mithon for 12 months
with counterparties rated long term AAA {or equivatent) through to a maxamum £10 million overmight with
counterparties rated short term A 2 (o1 equivalent) Derwatve transactions are undertaken with well capitalised
cournterparties authonsed by policy to lrmit the credit nisk underlymng these transactions

The Group mamtains a heightened focus on sovereign nisk ints counterparty selection
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Liquidity risk

Risk ma

Risk descniption

nt approach

The Group s operations are exposed to iquidity risk
to the extent that they are unable to meet their danly
payment cbligations

inaddition CC&G and certawn other subsidiary
companies are required to maintan a levet of hquidity
to meet the requirements of their regulators to ensure
the smaooth operation of their respective markets

and to maintam operations v the event of a single

or multiple market o1 member stress

Group businesses are prohtable generate strong free cash flow and operations are not significantly impacted
by seasonal vaniations The Graup maintains sufficient liquid resources Lo meet its financial obligations as
they fall due and to invest in capital expenditure make dividend payments support acquisiiions of repay
borrowings Funds can generally be lent across the Group without himitation {ather than by regulatory
requirements In certain companes) and this 15 encouraged through the Group Treasury cash management
palicy and approach

Management monitors forecasts of the Group s cash flow and overlays sensitvities to these forecasts to
reflect assumptions about more difficult market conditions

Treasury policy requires that the Group matntains adequate credit facilities provaded by a dwersified lending
group 1o at least cover its expected funding requirements for the next 24 months The financial strength of
lenders ta the Group 1s monitored regularly Durning the year a new nine year £300m bond was issued to UK
retail market tnvestors to underpin hquidity resources The bond extended the Group s average drawn debt
matunty profile to over six years and frees up its revolving credit facies to support the proposed acquisitton
of LCH Clearnet Group and Lo provide comfortable facthty headroom over the medium term At 31 March 2013
the Group s facihites were unutiised and totalled €850 million

CC&G maintawns cash and cash equwalents and has access 1o bespoke commutied and uncommitted lines
of credit with intra day financing from the Bank of Italy to meet the cash requirements of the clearing and
settlement cycte that 1t manages i assoctation with Monte Titoh Revised regulations will require CCPs to
arrange appropr ate levels of back up iquidity facilities (inctuding enhanced hquichty support facihties at
the central bank) that adequately support the dynarmcs of a largely secured cash investment requirement
(see Credit Risk section abave) In addition to CC&G s Tequirements certain Group companies maimntain
aperational support factlities from banks to manage intraday and overmight hquidiy

The table below analyses the Group s inancial Liabilities nto relevant maturity groupurgs based on the
remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed
i the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

At 31 March 2013 Less than Between 1 Between 2 Qver
1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years

£m £m £m fm

Borrowmngs 04 - 499 2 2972
Trade and other payables 2300 32 oz -
CCP habiities 146,086 1 - - -
Denwatwve inangizl instruments 01 - 11 24
146,318 6 32 500 5 2996

At 31 March 2012 Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years

£m £m £m fm

Borrowings 105 2357 263 2 2477
Trade and other payables 2375 - - -
CCP habihties 99 747 2 - - -
Denvalive inangial instruments - - 01 20
99 995 2 2357 2633 2497




Group financial statements

87

Market risk — Foreign Exchange

Risk desenption

Risk management approach

The Group operates in the UK Italy and Sn Lanka

and through 1ts FTSE International Limted subsidiary
has growing businesses in the USA and Asia With the
exception of MillenniumlT which invoices a matenat
proportion of its revenues i US dollars Group
companies generally invoice revenues INCUr expenses
and purchase assets 1 thei respective local currencies
As avesult foreign exchange risk arises mamly from
the translaticn of the Group s fereign currency earnings
assets and habilitias into its reporting currency sterling
and from occasional large intercampany tiansactions

The Group faces less sigmihcant forewgn exchange
exposures from transaction risk on dwidends that
ara remitted in currencies other than the currency
of the reciment operaticn However the Group
may be exposed from time to time by strategic
Investments in currencies ather than sterhng

The Group seeks where 1t can to maich the currencey of its debt habilities with its EBITDA generation i the same
currency whilst endeavounng to balance the currency of 1ts assets with the currency of 1ts habikties The Group
renforces this methodology by regutarly distnbuting its currency cash earmings v dundends and by absorbing
currency earmings through nterest payrments on sterling debt re-denorminated through the use of cross currency
swaps or by drawing debt in the same currency where this 1s practicable A praportion of the Groups debt 15
effectively held in euro At 31 March 2013 £255 5 million {2012 £250 2 rilion) of this was designated as & hedge of
the net investment 1 the [talan Group and a profit of £5 7 mitlion for the financial year (2012 loss of £27 8 milhon}
on foreign cummency borrowings was recogmsed nequity The hedge was fully effective

whilst transactional foreign exchange exposure 15 irmited  the Greup hedges matenal transactions in accordance
with Graup Treasury policy which requires that cash flows of more than £1 mithon or equivalent per annum should
be hedged Hedge accounting 1s considered in each case to mitigate matenial levels of Income statement volatility

The Group reviews sensitivities to moverments in exchange rates which are appropriate to market condiions As
at 31 March 2013 the Group has considered movermnents 1 the euro over the last year including recent volatility
affecting this currency and has concluded that a 10 per cent mavernent in rates 15 a reasanable level to measure
the nsk to the Group At 31 March 2013 f sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10 per cent agamst the eurc
with all other vanabtes held constant post tax profit for the year would have been £0 4 milhen highew/£0 3 raddlion
lower (2012 £0 3 rmuliion higher/£0 3 million lower) however equity would have been £5 7 miflion lower (2012

£14 4 million lower)/£7 0 millon higher (2012 €8 6 miluon gher) This reflects fareign exchange gains/losses on
translation of euro denorminated trade recewvables financial assets at far value through profit or loss and of euro
denorminated borrowings If on the other hand the average €/€ rate for the year had moved €5¢ this would have
changed the Group s operating profit for the year before amortisation of purchased intangibles and nen-recurring
items by approximately £9 0 mitlion

Market risk — Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

Risk description

Risk management approach

The Group s interest rate nisk anises through the
impact of changes in market rates on cash flows
associated with cash and cash equwvalents
investments in financial assets and borrowings
held at floating rates

To provide a degree of mcome statement stability the Group seeks to maintain a proportion of its net debt

at fixed rates of interest over the medwm term The Group has 1ssued a signihcant amount of 1its debt at fixed
rates of interest with the floating rate element being repawd as the Group generates cash As at 31 March 2013
following the 1ssue of the £300m hixed rate retail bond n November 2012 and strong cash generation dunng
the year fixed rate barrowings represent 227 per cent of net debt Dunng the year the Group considered
swapping a portion of its fixed rate debt into floating rates but did not execute any transactions duetoa
prefetence to increase floating rate borrawings naturally through iImmment strategic investments (for example
the proposed acquisttion of LCH Clearnet Group) This position was maintained based on a view that the nisk
of rates moving matenially lower was lirmited and given the protection an over-hixed rate profile gives should
Tates Increase The interest rates objective will continue to be reviewed as the Group moves through its rates
1e-postiioning following the completion of the abave acquisibion

In its review of the sensitivities to potential movernents in interest rates the Group has considered interest
rate volatiity over the last year and prospects for rates over the next 12 months and has concluded that a
2 percentage pownt upward movement (and no downward movement) reflects a reasonable level of nisk to
current rates At 31 March 2013 1if interest rates on stering-denominated and euro denominated cash and
borrewings had been 2 percentage points higher with ali other variables held constant post tax prefit for
the year would actually have been £6 3 milion ligher {2012 £1 5 mutlion lower) mainly as a result of
higher interest income on floating rate cash and cash equivalents

3 Significant judgements and estimates

Judgements and estimates are regularty evaluated based an historical expenience current circummstances and expectations of future events The sigraficant
Jucgements and estinates for the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows

Goodwill - tested for impawrrnent annually The recoverable amounts of relevant cash generating umits are based on value in use calculations using
rnanagerment s best estimate of future performance and estimates of the return required by shareholders to deterrmine an appropriate discount rate

Sensitvity analysis 1s provided i note 13

Purchased mtangible assets —valued on acquisition usmg appropriate methodologtes and amortised over their estimated useful econormic lves These
valuations and hives are based on management s best estimates of future performance and penods aver which value from the intangible assets 1s realised

Defined benefit pension asset or hability - determned based on the present value of future pension obligations using assumptions determined by the
Group with adwvice from an independent quahfied actuary Sensitivity anatysis 1s provided innote 16

Property proviston — determined taking inte consideration future expected receipts from sub-letting and future property costs based on advice fram

independent property advisers and

Corporation taxes — estimates are required n determining the provision for corporation taxes The Group recognises habilities for the estimated tax charge at
the period end and where the final tax hability 15 different From that estimate such differences are reflected in the penod \n which such determination 1s made
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4 Segmental Information
Segmental disclosures for the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows

Post Trade f 100 Technolagy
_ Capital Markets Services Services Servites Other Eliminations Group
£m £m £m fm £m £m £

Revenue from external customers 2675 918 063 561 &7 - 726 4
Inter segmental revenue - - 213 - (213) -
Revenue 2675 918 3063 714 47 (21 3) 7264
Net treasury income through CCP business - 1167 - - - - 1167
Other Income - - - - 98 - 98
Other non recurnng ineome - - - - 183 - 183
Total income 2675 208 5 306 3 774 328 (21 3) 8712
Operating profit before amortisation
of purchased intangible assets and
non-recurring items 126 & 146 7 1539 5§ 0s (0 8) 4302
Amortisation of purchased wntangible assets (88 8)
Non recurnng items 70
Operating profit 3484
Net Anance expense {49 5)
Profit before taxation 2989
Other income statement items
Depreciatien and software amortisation (27 8) (56) (14 5) {4 6) (0 5) 126 (40 &)

Nel treasury incorne through CCP business of £116 7m comprises gross mterest income of £128 9 less gross interest expense of £12 2m Interest from
mvestment in secunties amount to £12 5m

Comparatve segmental disclosures for the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows

Post Trade Infarmation Tecthnology
Capttal Matkets Services Services Services Othey Eliminations Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue from external customers 3019 1016 2189 526 48 - 6798
Inter-segmental revenue — - - 129 - (129) -
Revenue 3019 1016 2189 655 48 (129) 67938
Net treasury inceme through CCP business - 1269 - - - - 1269
Other Income ~ - - - B1 - 81
Total mcome 3019 2285 2189 655 129 (12 9) 8148
Operating profit before amorhisation
of purchased intangible assets and
non-recurting items 1389 1690 1250 18 01 71 4419
Amartisation of purchased ntangible assets {549)
Non recurning items (285)
Operating profit 3585
Profi on dispasatfacquisition of shares
in subsidiary and jotnt ventures 3238
Net finance expense (426)
Profit before taxation 6397
Other income statement items
Deprectation and software amorhisation (247 50 [t: %)) 16 {©4) - (40 4)
Share of (lossi/profit after tax of joint
ventures/associates {14) = 73 — — = 59

Net treasury income through CCP bustness of £126 9m comprises gross interest income of £964 2m less gross interest expense of £837 3m Included within
both gross interest income and gross interest expense 15 £767 3m relating to repo transactions net of repotransactions gross interest income was £196 9m
and gross interest expense was £70 0m




Group financial statements a9
Geographical disclosure
2013 2012
£m im
Revenue
UK 3253 3382
Itaty 1325 166%
Otiher 268 6 1747
Total 726 & 6798
Revenue 15 allocated based on the country in which the customner 1s located
2013 2012
£m £m
Total assets
UK 1,3001 £ 1985
Italy 147,596 9 101 2126
Other 284 185
Total 148,925 4 102 4296
Associates — [taly 06 04
Total 148,926 0 102 4300
5 Expenses by nature
Expenses comprise the following
2013 2012
im £m
Cost of sales 600 458
Employee costs 1673 1514
Depreciation and non acquisition software amertisation &0 4 404
Amortisation of purchased intangibles assets and non recurring costs 1001 810
[T costs 645 677
Other costs 905 735
Total expenses 5228 4598
Farelgn exchange gains or lasses included n the income statement are immatenal
6 Employee costs
Employee costs comprise the following
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Salaries and other short term benefits 1281 1158
Social secunty costs 192 166
Pensicn costs 16 75 69
Share based compensation 28 125 121
Total 167 3 151 4
The number of employees in the Group was
2013 2012
Average Year end Average Year end
UK 753 752 760 746
Italy 428 461 422 416
5n Lanka 654 668 615 655
Other 127 132 119 120
1,962 2,013 1916 1937

The Company has noemployees

Average 1s calculated from dale of acquistiion of the subsiary cornpany by the Group
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7 Amortisation of purchased intangible assets and non-recurring items

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Amortisation of purchased intangible assets 13 688 549
Transaction (credits)/costs (e 234
Restructuring costs 37 -
Property costs - 27
Revaluation on acquisition within joint ventures - 24
Total affecting operating prefit 818 834
Prohit on acquisition/disposal of shares in subsidiary - {324 3)
Charge for new transactwan related revolving credit faciity - 18
Total affecting profit before tax 818 239 1)
Tax effect on items affecting profit before tax
Deferred tax on amortisation of purchased intangible assets on (59)
Current tax on amaortisation of purchased ntangible assets 22 on
Tax effect on other wems affecting profit before tax (10} 20}
Total tax effect on items affecting profit before tax (12 3) {8 6)
Total charge/(credit) to income statement 695 {2477}

Transaction costs comprise charges incurred for ongoing services related to potential or completed acquisitions net of C$28m (€18 3m) recewed from
TMX Group following the ferrmnation of the 2010 merger agreement Restructurtng costs prmartly relate to the integration of the FTSE business

8 Net finance expense

2013 2012
Notes tm £m
Finance income
Expected return on defined beneht pension scheme assets 16 118 131
Banik depaosit and other interest inccme 24 k1]
Other finance income 03 01
14 5 168
Finance expense
Interest payable on bank and other borrowings (48 2) {406)
Defned benefit pension scheme interest cost 16 (13 8) {138)
Other finance expenses 29 323
Non recurning credit facility arrangement fees = 18
(64 0) {59 4)

Net finance expense (49 5) (42 6)
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9 Taxation
The standard UK corporation tax rate was 24 per cent (26 per cent for the year ended 31 March 2012)
Taxation charged to the income statement 2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax for the year 305 286
Overseas tax for the year 786 891
Adjustments in respect of previous years {16 &) 18
927 1195
Deferred tax 15
Deferred tax for the year 03 02
Adjustments in respect of previous years 05) (55)
Deferred tax habthty on amortisation of purchased intangible assets 91) {59)
Taxatwon charge 83 4 108 3
The adjustments 1n respect of previous years corporation tax are mamly in espect of tax returns agreed with relevant tax authorities
Taxation on items not credited/(charged) to income statement 2013 2012
£€m £m
Current tax credit
Tax aflowance on share options/awards in excess of expense recognised 20 03
Deferred tax (loss)/credit
Dehned benefit pension scheme actuanal loss 17 125
Tax allowance on share options/awards in excess of expense recognised 05 05
Movement in value of avallable for sale financial assets {0 4) -
Adjustments relating to change in UK tax rate 01 06)
39 127
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The income statement tax charge for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as explained below
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before taxation 2989 6397
Profit multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax i the UK 717 166 3
Profit on disposal/acquisition of shares in subssdiary - (B4 3)
{Income not taxable)/expenses not deductible (2 2) 17
Share of joust venture and associates consohdated at profit after tax - 09)
Adjustment ansing from change 1n UK tax rate 07 -
Overseas earnings taxed at higher rate 177 216
Adjustments in respect of previous years {16 8) (38
Amortisation of purchased intangibles 123 77
Taxation charge 834 108 3
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10 Eamings per share

Earmings per share 1s presented on four bases basic earnings per share diluted earnings per share adjusted basic earnings per share and adjusted diluted
earmngs per share Basic earnings per share 1s in respect of all actvities and diluted earmings per share takes into account the dilution effects which would anse
on conversion or vesting of share options and share awards under the Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) Adjusted basic earmnings per share and adjusted
diluted earmngs per share exclude amortisation of purchased intangible assets and non-recurnng items to enable a better comparnson of the undertying
earmings of the business with prior penods

2013 2012
Basic earnings per share 80 4p 193 6p
Diluted earmings per share 79 0p 190 9p
Adjusted basic earnings per share 105 3p 100 6p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 103 4p 899 2p
£m m

Profit for the financial year attnbutable to equity holders 2170 5220
Adjustments
amortisation of purchased intangible assets 888 549
Transaction (credits)fcosts 107) 234
Restructuring costs iz -
Property costs - 27
Revaluation on acquisition within joint ventures - 24
Profit on disposalfacquisition of shares in subsichary - (324 3)
Charge for new revolving credit facility - 18
Tax effect of amortisahion and non recurnng items 1z (86)
Non recurnngitems amortisation and taxation attnbutable to non controliing interests 2% (30)
Adjusted profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders 2840 2713
weighted average number of shares - mllion 2698 2696
Effect of dilutive share options and awards — million 48 38
Diluted weighted average number of shares -~ rmllion 274 6 273 4
The weighted average number of shares excludes those held in the ESOP
11 Dividends

2013 2012

£m £m

Final dwidend for 2012 pard 20 August 2012 19 Op per Ordinary share (2011 18 Op) 512 485
Intenim dividend far 2013 paid 7 January 2013 9 7p per Ordary share (2012 9 3p) 26 2 251

774 736

The Board has proposed a final dwvidend inrespect of the year ended 31 March 2013 of 19 8p per share which 1s estimated to amount to £53 4m to be paid
on 19 August 2013
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Land & Buitdings

Plant and
Freehold Leasehold equipment Total
£m fm £fm £m

Cost
1 April 2011 469 411 779 1659
Additions - 01 22 4 225
Foreign exchange ©3 - @n (30) a
Acquisttion of subsicharies - 20 38 58 E
Disposals (03) (32 45) 80) n
31 March 2012 463 400 %69 1832 :
Additions 04 - 176 180 2
Foreign exchange 04 01 07 12 g
Acquisition of subsidhartes - - o1 o1
Reclassthcation frarn Held for Sate 63 - - 63
Disposals - 01 81) 82
31 March 2013 534 400 107 2 2006
Depreciation
¥ Aprd 2011 274 292 469 1035 g
Charge for the year 13 31 115 159 =
Forengn exchange 06) - (10} (16} z
Disposals 3 32 (%4 79 z
31 March 2012 278 291 530 1089 ﬁ
Charge for the year 03 21 152 176
Foreign exchange - 01 03 04
Disposals - - (74) (74)
31 March 2013 28 1 313 61 1 1205
Net book values
a1 March 2013 253 87 46 1 801
31 March 2012 185 109 439 733

The Company has no property ptant and equipment

SINIWILYLS TYIINYNILA dNOUD
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13 Intangible assets

Purchased intangible assets

Softwara
Customer licenses and
and supplier intellectual
Goodwill relatwonships Brands property Software Total
m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
1 Apni 2011 11777 6720 110 1215 2252 22074
Addinons - 16 2 - - 160 322
Acquisition af subsidiaries 7560 3095 2265 2283 51 8450
Disposals - - - - {24 8) (24 8)
Fareign exchange (64 4) (3B 2) {07) (74) (25} {113 2}
31 March 2012 11889 959 5 2368 3424 2194 29466
Addiions 11 - - - 2113 224
Acquisition of subsidiaries 41 - - - 05 46
Disposals - - - - (84 &) 84 4)
Foreign exchange 178 87 02 22 13 jo2
31 March 2013 1,211 9 968 2 2370 344 6 1577 2,919 4
Amortisation and accumulated impairment
1 Apnl 2011 461 4 1066 33 66 2 1749 8130
Amortisation charge for the year - 362 37 150 237 786
Disposals - - - - 24 8) (24 8)
Foreign exchange (24 1) (70) @3) (47} {15) (376)
31 March 2012 4373 1358 73 765 1723 829 2
Amortisation charge for the year - 495 100 293 228 1116
Disposals - - - - {84 4) (B4 &)
Foreign exchange a3 29 o1 17 07 137
31 March 2013 445 6 188 2 174 1075 1114 8701
Net bock values
31 March 2013 766 3 7800 2196 2371 46 3 2,049 3
31 March 2012 7516 8237 2295 2659 467 21174

The fair values of the purchased mtangible assets were principally valued using discounted cash flow methodologies and are being amor tised over their useful
economic iives which do not normally exceed 25 years The goodwall ansing on consohidation represents the growth potential and assembled workforces of the
Itahan Group FTSE Group MillenniumiT and Turquoise The Company has no intangible assets

The addiion of €1 i goodwall arose during the year as a result of the finahsation of the fair value of acquired assets for FTSE Group

The acquisttion of GATElab St during the year resulted in goodwll in the Group of £4 Imn the year This value 1s prelminary and waill be finalised dunng the
following year
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Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill has been allocated for mpawrment testing purposes to the 11 cash generating units {CGUs) shown n the table below

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been determimed based on value i use calculations using discounted cash flow projections prepared by
management covenng the five year pernod ending 31 March 2018 Cash flows beyond this penod are extrapolated using the estimated lang term growth
rates and applying the pre-tax discount rates ieferred to below

The amount of the net book value of goodwill allocated to each CGU s set out below

Net book value of goodwlll m

Pre tax discount E

rate used in value E

Acqutsitions of in use m

31 March 2042 Additions subsidiaries Foreign exchange 31 Match 2013 calculations m

£m fm £m £m £m £m ]

m

Italian group <

lssuer 183 - - 01 186 120% P
Equities Trading 617 - - 09 626 12 0%
Derwatives Trading 276 - - 04 280 12 1%
Fixed Income Trading 697 - - 10 707 12 2%
[nformation Services 114 4 - - 15 1159 12 2%
Technology Setvices 135 - 41 02 178 119%
Post Trade Services 3620 - - 50 3670 12 3%

(7]

(=]

MillermiumiIT &

software 07 - - 01 08 20 3% g

Enterpnise Service Providar 07 - - 01 08 15 8% z

]
Turquoise 74 - - - T4 13 7%
FTSE Group 756 11 - - 767 12 9%

751 6 11 41 95 766 3

Management has based its value in use calculations for each CGU on key assumptions about short and medium term revenue and cost growth long term
economic growth rates (used to determine terrmnal values) and pre-tax discount rates

The values assigned to short and medium term revenue and cost growth assurnptions reflect current trends anticipated market developments: discussions
with customers and suppliers and management s expenence taking account of an expected recovery n underlying financial markets

Long term growth rates (assurned to be 2 1 per cent for each of the Itallan CGUs 70 and 14 5 per cent for Millenniusn]T s Software and Enterprise Service
Provider CGUs tespectively and 2 3 per cent for Turquotse and the FTSE Group) represent management s internal forecasts based on external estimates of
GDP and inflation for the 14 year penod 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2017 and do not exceed the long term average growth rates for the countries in
which the CGUs operate

Pre-tax discourt rales are based on a number of factors including the nisk-free rates in Italy Sn Lanka and the UK as appiopnate the Groups estimated
market nsk premium and a prermium to reflect the inherent nsks of each of the CGUs

Based on the results of the imparrment tests performed management belteves there 1s noimpatment of the carrying value of the goodwall in any CGU
Inaddiion no impairment of the Companys investments in subsichary undertakings referred to m note 14 was considered necessary

NOLLYWHOINI H3IATOHIUVHS
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value in use calculations for each CGL are sensitive to changes 1n short and medwm term revenue and cost growth assumptions long term growth rates
and pre tax discount rates The impact on value in use of a change 1n these assumptions 1s shown below

Impact on value in use of

Excess of 5% 5% 0 5% reduction 0 5% increase

value in use over Teduction ncrease inlongterm 1 pre tax

carrying value InTevenues N costs growth rate discount rate

Cash generattng unit £m Em £m £m £m
Italian group

1ssuer £74 109 50 61 57

Equities Trading 305 207 106 104 96

Derwatives Trading 659 45 37 60 55

fuxed Income Trading 305 354 219 14 2 131

Information Services 1336 275 105 16 8 153

Technology Services 322 114 84 28 27

Post Trade Services 584 8 84 8 258 581 52 2

Management believes goodwill allocated to the FTSE Group MillenmiumIT and Turquotse CGUSs ts unhkely to be matenally impatred under any reasonable
changes to key assurnptions The excess of value n use over camying value 1s determined by reference to the net book value as at 31 March 2013
Revenue and cost sensitwities assume a five per cent change i revenues or costs for each of the five years i the value in use calculations

14 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Shares Loans Total
Company £m £m m
1 Apnl 2011 34223 3374 37587
Subscription for further shares in London Stock Exchange Group Heldings (R) Lid 17 - 117
Other movernents during the year — 86) (8 6)
31 March 2012 34340 3288 37628
Other movements during the year = 163 163
31 March 2013 3,434 0 3451 3,779 1
Country of
Principal Country of principal % equity and
Principal subsidianes activity mcotparation operations votes held
Held dwrectly by the Company
London Stock Exchange plc Recogmsed investment exchange UK UK 100
Held mdwectly by the Company
Blt Market Services Sp A Retanl information services & market technology Italy ltaly 9999
Borsa ltalianaSp A Recogmsed mvestment exchange Italy ltaly 9999
Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia Sp A CCP for clearing ltaly Ttaly 9999
FTSE Internationat Ltd Market indces provider UK UK 100
Monte Titoh Sp A Pre settlement settlemnent and centralised custody Italy italy 98 80
MillanmumI T Sofiware (Private) Ltd IT solutions provider SnLanka Sn Lanka 100
Proquote Ltd Market data provider UK UK 100
Socteta per 1l Mercato der Titobi d1 Stato S p A wholesale iixed tncome bonds Italy ltaly 6037
Turquoise Globa! Holdngs Ltd Multi lateral trading facilty UK UK 5136

On 14 December 2012 the Group acquired 67 per cent of the 1ssued equity of GATEIab Srl for a total consideration of €5 8m

Under Regulation 7 of The Partnerstups (Accounts) Regulations 2008 the Group etected not to prepare partnership accounts for ts indrect partnership
ntesest in London $tock Exchange Cannectivty Solutions LP as its resulis are contained i the consolidated group accounts

A fuil st of subsicharies will be annexed to the next annual return of Lendon Stock Exchange Group ple
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15 Deferved tax
The moverments i deferred tax assets and liabilihes during the year are shown betow

Acquisition Provisions and
Acceleratedtax  deferredtaxand  other temporary

depreciation amoritsation differences Total
Group fm £m £m £m
1 Apni12011 (17 (79 3) 09 {80 1)
Tax credited to the income statement 38 59 15 1z
Tax credited/{charged) to other comprehensive mcome
~ defined beneht pension schame actuanal loss - - 122 122
- allowance on share options/awards - - 14 02
- foreign exchange {01 L5 - 44
Balance sheet transfer of pre acquisiion balances - (48 4) - {48 4)
31 March 2012 20 (117 3) 148 {100 5)
Tax {charged)/credited to the incorme statement 04) 91 06 93
Tax crechted/(charged) to ather comprehensive income
—defined beneht penston scheme actuanal 19ss - - 16 16
— allowance on share options/awards - - 06 06
— movement in value of available for sale financial assets - - [(LXA] (0 &)
— foreign exchange - (0 &) - (0 &)
31 March 2013 16 (108 6) 172 (89 8)
Assets at 31 March 2013 16 - 176 192
Liabilities at 31 March 2013 - (108 6) (0 &) (109 0)
Net assets/(liabilities) at 31 March 2013 16 (108 6) 172 (89 B}
Assets at 31 March 2012 20 - 148 168
Liabilities at 31 March 2012 - {117 3) - {117 3)
Net (habilithes)/assets at 31 March 2012 20 (117 3) 14 8 {100 5)

The deferred tax assets are recoverable against future taxable profits and are due after more than one year

The purchased istangible assets of the Italian group create a deferred tax hability due to the difference between their accounting and tax treatment
This liability 1s amortised at the same rate as the mtangible assets

The Group has unrecogmsed deferred tax assets i respect of losses of £57m (2012 £56m) wathin certam Group subsidianes The assets would be recogmsed
n the future only if suitable taxable ncorne were to arise within the Group

There was no deferred tax in the Cornpany

16 Retirement benefit obligations

The Group eperates separate defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes The assets of the defined benefit and defined contnibution schemes n the UK
are held separately from those of the Group in a sepasate trustee administered fund and the funds are primanty managed by Schroder Investment Management
Limited Legal & General Investment Management Limited PIMCO Europe Lirmited and Aviva Investaors during the year

The Oiher plans relate to the severance and leaving indemnity scheme Trattamento di Fine Rapporto (TFR) operated by the Itahan group n accordance wath
Itahan law and the employee benefit and retirement plan operated by MillenmurmIT

The Company has no retiremnent benefit obligations
The only scheme operated by FTSE International is a defined contnbution scherme

Defined benefit schemes
The UK defined benefit scherne was a non-contributory scheme and closed to new members in 1995 With effect from 31 March 2012 the scheme also closed
to accrual of future benefits for active members and it has been agreed that the benefits for affected mernbers will remain inked to their salary with the Group

Pension scheme obligations and costs are deterrmined by an independent qualified actuary on aregular basis using the projected urit credit method The
oblgations are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by the scheme and are reflected in the Group balance sheet

The TFR operated by the itaban group s classified as an unfunded defined benefit scheme for funds accumulated pnor to 1 Juty 2007 The senice cost
representing deferred salaries accruing to employees was included as an operating expense and was deterrmined by law at 6 91 per cent of salary payments
subject to certain adjustments The scheme ebhigation comprises accurmulated service costs and 1s revalued by law at a rate equal to 75 per cent of national
life price index +1 5 per cent by an independent quahfied actuary Since 1 July 2007 the Group retains no abligation as contnbutions are made directly into
ftahan state funds un the manner of a defined contribution scherne

The employee benefit and retirement plan operated by MillennumiT 15 classified as a defined benefit plan The net obligation nrespect of this planis the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for thetr senace i the current and prior penods Once an employee ts continuousty emptoyed for
more than five years he or she1s entitled to a payment equivalent to half a months gross salary multiplied by the number of yearsin service at MillenniumIT

MILAIY SSANISNE
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Defined contribution schemes

The Groups defined contnbution schemes are now the orly schemes open to new employees in the UK and Italy For the UK pension plan a core contribution of
four to eight per cent of pensionable pay 15 provided and the Group wall match employee contnbutions up to a maximum of sux to ten per cent of pensionable pay

Amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

2013 2012
UK Pension Other plans UX Pension Other plans
Nptes £m £m £m £m
Defined contribution schemes (34 22 @Bn nz
Defined beneft scheme — current service cost - {19) (0 6) (20)
Total pension charge wncluded in employee costs 6 (34) (% 1) {37) 32)
Finance income and expense
Interest expense (135) 03 (13 5) {03}
Expected return on assets 118 ~ 131 -
Net Ainance expense (L)) 03) {0 4) {03)
Total recognised in the income statement (51} (& &) 41 {35)
Defined benefit assets/(obligations) for UK pension scheme
2013 2012 2011 2010 2000
£m £m £m £m £m
Fair value of assets
Equities 94 390 193 372 251
Bonds 1108 675 2195 2185 2026
Froperty 114 24 4 233 133 71
Pensioner buy 1n policy 1421 1335 - = -
Total fawr value of assets 2137 264 4 2821 2690 2348
Present value of funded obligations (291 4) (274 2) {244 5) (264 &) (229 8)
{Dedci)fsurplus (177) {9 8) 376 46 50
The main actuarial assumptions are set out below-
2013 2012
UK pension Jtaltan plan UK pension Itahan ptan
Inflation rate — RPI 34% 20% 3 4% 20%
Inflation rate — CP[ 2 4% - 2 4% -
Rate of mcrease in salanes 34% 35% 4 4% 3 5%
Rate of increase in pensions In payment 36% 30% 36% 30%
Discount rate 4 5% 30% 50% 4 0%
Expected return on assets
- equities - - 73% -
- bonds - - 3 8% -
— property - - 65% -
— pensioner buy wn palicy - - 50% -
Life expactancy from age 60 (Years)
— Nonretired male member 280 - 279 -
— Nonretired female member 308 - 307 -
~ Retired male member 265 - 263 -
— Retired female member 20 3 - 262 -

The mortality assumptions are based on the standard tables S1MA published by the Institute and Facuilty of Actuaries adjusted to take account of projected
future iImprovernents m hfe expectancy from the Self Adrministered Pension Scheme (SAPS) mortality survey which was published in 2008 We have used
an allowance for the medum cohort effect and apphed a one per cent underpin in respect of future mortality improvements

Sensitivities
The sensitwities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme obhigations are

Assumption Change in ption
Inflation rate

Impact on scheme obltigations

Rate of mcrease in pensions payment
Discount rate
Mortality rate

Increase/decrease by 0 5%
Increase/decrease by 0 5%
Increase/decrease by 0 5%

Increase by 1 year

Increase/decrease by £4 2m
Increase/decrease by £19 6m
Decreasefincrease by £23 4m

Increase by £8 7m
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Movernent in defined benefit obligation during the year

7013 2012
UK Pensien Other ptans UK Pension Other plans
£m £m im £m
1 Apnit 2762 67 2445 64
Current service cost - 19 06 20
Interest expense 135 03 135 03
Benefits paid ®0) (14) &N (19)
Actuarniat lossifgain) 127 o1 243 @1 =
Foreign exchange - 03 - (03} "-i-’
31 March 2914 79 2742 67 m
w
o
Movement in falr value of UK plan assets during the year 2
m
2013 2012 £
£m £m
1 Aprul 264 4 2821
Expected return on assets 18 131
Contnbutions recelved 06 13
Benefits pand 90) 87N
Actuanal gain/(loss) 59 (23 4)
31 March 2737 264 4 2
<
o
The actual return on plan assets was £177m (2012 loss £10 3 million) ;
z
Defined benefit actuarial gains and losses recognised ]

The experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuanal assumptions of the pension scheme during the year are recogmsed n the statement
of comprehensive incorne

2013 2012
UK Pension Qther plans UK Pension Other plans
im £m fm £m
Recognised up to 1 April 12 9} (O] 348 (19
Net actuanal (loss)/gawn recognised in the year (6 8) 1) (477) 01
Cumdlative amount recognised at 31 March (19 7) (1 0) (129) {09)

The last actuana! valuation of the defined benefit scheme was carried out at 31 March 2012 by anindependent qualified actuary The Group s currently i
discussion on the coninbutions to the defined benefit scheme dunng the year to 31 March 2014 The next actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2015 may resul
n an adjustment to future contnbution levels

The Group estimates the present value of the duration of defined beneht obligations on average tofall due over 20 years

SINIWILYLS TVIINUNIA dNOUD

History of experience gains and losses for the UK pension scheme 2013 2m2 2011 2010 2009
Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets

Experience gam/(loss) (fm) 59 (23 &) 53 256 (L1 2)
Percentage of scheme assets 22% (8 9%) 19% 95% (4 8%)
Experience adpstments ansing on scheme habilities

Expenence gamn#loss) (£m) 95 (39) 15 75 13
Impact of changes in assumptions (£m) (22 2) (20 4) 253 (34 % {11
Total (Em) (12 7) {24 1) 268 (27 4} 02

Percentage of scheme labilities

Expertence gain/{loss) 33% 1 4%} 0 6% 28% 06%
Impact of changes in assumptions (7 6%) {7 4%) 103% (13 2%) {0 5%)
Total {% I%) [8 8% 10 9% {10 4%) 01%

NOILYWHOLNI H3QTOHIUYHS
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17 Trade and other receivables

Lroup Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £ £m £m
Trade recewables 1212 147 - -
Less proviston for impa meni of recevables 61) {78} - -
Trade recewables — net 1151 1069 - -
Amounts due from Group undertakings - - 5794 5859
Dther receivables 59 41 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 647 673 - 03
1857 178 3 5794 586 2

The carrying values less impawment provision of trade and other recewvables are reasonable approximations of fair values
Trade recelvables that are not past due are not considered to be impawred

The ageng of past due debtors for the Group 15 as follows

2013 2012
Impalred Mot ympatred Impaired Not imnpawred
£m £m £m £m
0 to 3 manths past due o1 4509 01 470
Greater than 3 months past due 60 97 77 124
51 506 78 603

The carrying amount of the Groups trade and other receivables are denorminated in the following currencies

2013 2012
im £m

Sterling 983 98 8
Euro 584 572
Other Currencies 290 223
1857 1783

Moverments on the Group provision for impairment of trade recervables are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

1 Apnil 78 73
Provision for recesvables impatrment 14 16
Recevables wnitten off duning the year as uncollectible (09} {0 6)
Provisions no longer required (2 2) [GXA]
Foreign exchange - ©1)
31 March 61 78

The creation and release of the provision for imparred recetvables have been included in operating expenses in the income statement Amounts charged to the
allowance account are written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash

The ather classes within trade and other recevables and the other categories of financial assets do not contain impaired assets
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18 Financlal instruments by category
The fAnancialinstruments of the Group and Company are categonsed as follows

Group Company
Assets at far Assets at fair
Loans and value through Loans and value through
recetvabl Available for sale profit or loss Total receivables profit or loss Total
31 March 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets as per balance sheet
Financial assets of the CCP cleanng business 'g
- CCP trading assets - - 34266 3,426 6 - - - n
- Recewables for repuichase transactions 127036 2 - - 127,036 2 - - - E
— Dther tecewvables from clearing members 7144 8 - - 7144 8 - - - :
- Financial assets held at fair value - - 126 126 - - - 2
- Cash and cash equivalents of clearing members 26811 57951 - 8,476 2 - - - =]
Financial assets of the CCP cleanng business 138 862 1 57951 34392 146,096 4 - - - £
Assets held at fair value - - 61 61 - - -
Totat inancal assets for CCP clearing 1426572 - 344573 146,102 5 - - -
Trade and cther recevables 1210 - - 1210 579 4 - 579 4
Cash and cash equivalents 4462 - - 446 2 01 - o1
Available for sale inancial assets - 119 - 119 - - -
Cross currency interest rate swaps - - 40 40 - 40 40 S
Forward foreign exchange contracts - - 03 03 - - - E
Total 137,629 3 5,807 0 34696 146,685 9 579 5 40 5835 :z,
z
Group Company m
Detivatives used Other financlal Derwvatives used Qther financial
for hedging labihties Total for hedging habilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Liabilitres as per balance sheet
Fimancial liabilities of the CCP cleanng business
— CCP trading habilities - 34266 34266 - - -
— Liabthities under repurchase transactions - 1270362 127,036 2 - - -
- Other payables to clearing members - 15610 4 15,610 4 - - - o
- Financial habihities held at fair value - 149 149 - - - g
Financial habilities of the CCP clearing business - 1460881 146,088 1 - - - %
-
Trade and other payables - 2334 2334 - 1609 1609 =
Provisions - 273 271 - - - E
Borrawings - 796 8 7968 - 796 4 7964 z
Cross curtency interest rate swaps 35 - 35 35 - 35 “
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 01 01 - - - B
Total 35 147,145 7 147,149 2 35 9573 960 8 E
Z
The valuation of CCP assets held at far value through profit o1 loss s performed wath reference to quoted prices from the markets te which they relate and @
therefore are all considered to be level 1 The denwvative finanaial instruments are considered to be level 2
174}
The cross currency interest Tate swaps (amounting to 6 contracts of €50m each) effectively exchange some of the proceeds of the 2016 and the 2019 £250m E
bonds from sterling into euros to better match the currency of borrowings to the Group's currency of earnings to reduce exposure 1o euro denominated ret o
assets and to protect stering cash flow These are designated as a hedge of the Group s net mvestment in the Itakian group and qualify for effective hedge @
accounting as both legs of the swap are at fixed rate and the cash flow components of the swaps exactly match the terms of the underlying bonds for the =
year ended 31 March 2013 the Group recognised the £2 5m movement in mark to market value of these dervatives inreserves (2012 €15 6rm) f
z
Foreign exchange forward contracts were arranged duning the year to hedge the fair value of USD denorminated exposures These hedges forward buy and §
sell USD payables and recewables with the mark to market adjustments offsetting the hedged item revaluation in the income statemment This offers more z
predictable sterling cash flows to the Group at matunty At 31 March 2013 USD9 9m of recewvables and USD7 8m of payables were hedged forward into the B
next financial year The market value of the hedges was £0 Imn aggregate g
The Group also entered into forward exchange contracts totaling CAD83 0m for ughly probable forecast CAD outflows which were due to mature 1n the following

financial year These contracts qualify for treatment as an effective cash flow hedge with mark-to-market movernents being recogmised directly in equity
The market value of the CAD contracts totalled £0 3Im

The Group s financial assets held at far value consist largely of Itahan equities restncted in use for the operations of CC&G as rmanager of the cleanng and
guarantee system The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and avallable-for-sale secuntieg)1s based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date

The nature and composition of the CCP clearning busmess assets and hiabilities 15 explained in the accounting policies note on pages 83-84
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As at 31 March 2013 there were no provisions for impawment n relation to any of the CCP financial assets {2012 mil} and none of these assets were past due
(2012 nu}

The financial nstrurments of the Group and the Campany at the previous year s balance sheet date were as follows

Group s

Assets at fau Asserts :t fanr
Loans and value through Loans and value through
recewvables  Avaable for sale profit ar loss Total Tecevables profit or loss Total
31 March 2912 £m £m im m £m Em £m
Assets as per batance sheet
Financial assets of the CCP clearing business
—CCP trading assets - - 41676 41676 - - -
—Recevables for repurchase transactions 849682 - - 849682 - - -
— Other recevables from clearing members 44105 - - 44105 - - -
—Fmancial assets held at fair value - - 733 733 - - -
—Cash and cash equivalents of clearing
members 61373 - — 61373 - — -
Financial assets of the CCP clearing business 955160 - 432409 997569 - - -
Assets held at fair value - - 46 14 6 - - -
Total financial assets for CCP cleanng 955160 - 42555 897715 - - -
Trade and other recevables 1110 - - 1110 5859 - 5859
Cash and cash equivalents 2160 - - 2160 02 - 02
Avallable for sale financial assets - 04 - 04 - - -
Cress currency interest rate swaps - - 52 52 - 52 52
Total 958430 04 4 2607 100 104 t 586 1 52 5913
Group Company
Denvatives used Other financial Denvatives used Other financial
for hedging Labilities Total for hedging habilies Total
£m £m £m £m £fm £m
Liabilitres as per balance sheet
Fnancial hablities of the CCP clearing business
- CCP trading liabihties - 41677 41677 - - -
- Lizbilities under 1epurchase transactions - B4 9682 849682 - - -
- Other payables to clearing members - 105379 105379 - - -
- Financial habihties held at fair value - 734 734 - -~ -
Financiat habilities of the CCP clearing business - 997472 997472 = - -
Trade and other payables - 2375 2315 - 3157 3157
Provisions - 301 301 - - -
Barrowings - 7571 7571 - T46 6 7466
Cross currency interest rate swaps 21 - 21 21 - 21
Total 21 1007719 100 7740 21 10623 10644
19 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 202
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank 2170 1165 01 02
Short term deposits 2292 99 5 - -
L462 2160 01 02

Cash and cash equivalents s held with authonsed counterparties of a mgh credit standing ininterest bearing current and call accounts short term
deposits and AAA rated money market funds Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by the counterparties holding cash
and cash equivalents and there are no differences between thewr book and fair values

Cash and cash equwvalents does not include amounts held by CC&G on behalf of 1its clearing members the use of whichis restncted to the operation of
CC&G as manager of the cleanng and quarantee system {see note 18) Cash and cash equivalents includes amounts held by regulated entities for regulatory
and cperational purposes At 31 March 2013 the Group set aside £200 0m (2012 £165 Om) for such purposes with the amount subject o reqular review
with regulators n the UK and laly
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20 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Trade payables 304 317 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 29 - - 1322 28338
Social secunity and other taxes 125 153 - -
Other payables 264 297 33 35
Accruals and deferred income 164 1 160 8 25 & 28 4
2334 2375 1609 3157
Curvent 2300 2337 1609 3157
Non-current 34 38 - -
233 4 2375 1609 3157
21 Borrowings
Group Company
2013 012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Current
Bank borrowings and trade finance loans 04 105 - -
04 105 = -
Non-current
Bonds 796 5 499 4 796 5 499 4
Bank borrowings - 2475 - 2475
Deferred arrangement fees (01} {0 3) 01 (03)
796 4 746 6 796 4 ThE 6
The Group has the following commmtted bank faclities and unsecured notes
Interest rate
Carrying value at percentage at
Notes/Facility 31 March 2013 21 March 2013
Type Expiry Date £m £ %
Drawn value of Facilities
Multt currency revolving credit facility ul 2013 2500 - LIBOR - 0 8
Multr currency revolving credit facihty Dec 2014 3500 - LIBOR' 125
Mult1 currency revolving credit factlity Nov 2015 2500 - LIBOR + 10
Total Bank Facilities 8500 -
Netes due July 2016 Jul 2016 2500 25113 6125
Notes due October 2019 Oct 2019 2500 2479 9125
Notes due Novernber 2021 Nov 2021 3000 2973 475
Total Bands BOOO 796 5
Total Cornmutted Facilities 16500 796 5

MillermiumIT and MillermiurnI T Software have un-commutted overdraft faciity drawings of £0 4m (2012 £0 5Sm} The Group s three cornmitted bank facility
arrangements were undrawn at 31 March 2013

CCEG has direct intra day access to refinancing wath the Bank of Faly Lo cover its operational hquidity requirements. In additon uncommmtted tn-party credit
hnes of €750 rmllon are availabte from Bank of Italy wath refinancing from major Itahan banks in relation to support of the MTS markets If these are drawn
they are guaranteed by CCP assets comprising Italian Government Bonds CC&G also has available to it €150m of commitied facthities with banks for short
term CCPrelated activity purposes only
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Non-current borrowings

In July 2006 the Company 1ssued a £250m bond which 1s unsecured and 15 due for repayment n Juty 2016 Interest s paid semi-annually in arrears in January
and July each year The 1ssue price of the bond was £99 679 per £100 nominal The coupon on the bond 1s dependent on movemnents in the Company s credit
rating with Moody s which was unchanged throughout the financialyear The bond coupon remained at & 125 per cent per annum throughout this penod

In June 2009 the Company 1ssued another £250m bond which 1s unsecured and is due for repayment in October 2019 Interest is paid serm-annually in arrears
n April and October each year The 1ssue price of the bond was £99 548 per £100 normnal The coupon on the bond 1s dependent on the Company s credit ratings
with Moody s and Standard & Poor s whach were unchanged throughout the financiat year The bond couponremained at 9125 per cent per annum throughout
this penod

In Novernber 2012 the Company 1ssued a further £300m bond under its euro medwm term notes programme (launched at the same time) which ts unsecured
and ts due for repayment in Novemnber 2021 Interest 1s paid semi-annually n arrears m May and Novernber each year Thessue price of the bond was £100
per £100 nerminal The coupon on the bond 1s fixed at 4 75 per cent per annum

Fair values
The fair values of the Group s borrowings are as foflows

Canying value Feirvalue  Carrylng value Fair value
2013 2013 2012 2012
Group £m £m £m Em

Borrowings
—within one year 04 04 105 105
— after more than ane year 796 4 942 4 1466 8328
796 8 942 8 7571 843 3

The fair values of the Company s berrowings are as fotlows

Carrying value Falr value Carrying value Fair value
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m

Borrowings
— after more than one year 796 4 942 4 746 6 8328
796 4 052 & 7456 6 8328

The fair values of borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a rate based on borrowing cost Floating rate borrowings bear interest at an agreed
margin over LIBOR

The carrying amounts of the Group s borrowngs are denorminated in the following currencies

2013 2012
Drawn Swapped Effeciwe Drawn Swapped Effective
Currency £m £m £m £m £m £m
Sterhing 796 & (255 5) 5409 7351 (250 2) 4849
Euro - 2555 2555 - 2502 250 2
Sn Lankan Rupees 04 - 04 05 - 05
Hong Kong Dollars - - - 215 - 215

Total 796 8 - 7968 7571 — 7571
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22 Amnalysis of net debt
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £ Em
Due within one year
Cash and cash equivalents 446 2 2160 01 02
Bank borrowings {04) (105) - -
Dernwative financial habilities (0 1) - - -
4457 2055 01 02
Due after one year
Deferred arrangement fees/(bank borrowings) o1 (267 2) 01 (2472)
Bonds (796 5) (499 &) (796 &) (499 4)
Denvative financial assets 43 52 40 52
Dervatuive iinancial habiiies {35) {21 {35) 21)
Total net debt (349 9) [538 0) (795 7) {743 3)
Recencihation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m rm £m £m
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year 2276 (42 9) 03 {05)
Bond (ssue proceeds (297 6) - (297 6) -
Bank loan repayments less new drawings 2578 (224 3} 2478 {247 %)
Change m net debt resulting from cash flows 187 (267 2) {500) (247 8)
Foreign exchange mavements 26 @ 0 &) -
Movement on derwative financial assets and habilities {2 4) 156 2 6} 156
Bond valuatien adjustment o1 01 01 01
Acquired debt - (34 2) - -
Net debt at the start of the year (538 0) {244 6) (743 3) (5112
Net debt at the end of the year {349 9) {538 0} (795 7) {743 3)
23 Provisions
Property
Group £m
1 April 2011 315
Utihsed during the year (18)
Imterest on discounted provision 14
Acquired during the year 10
31 March 20n12 o1
Utiised dunng the year (1)
Interest on discounted provision 13
31 March 2013 273
Current 11
Non-current 26 2
31 March 2013 273
The property prowvision represents the eshmated net present value of future costs for lease rentals and dilapidation costs less the expected receipts from
sub-letting space which 1s surplus to business requirements The leases have between one and 15 years to expiry
The Cempany has no provisions
24 Ordinary share capital
2013 2012
Authorised multions £€m millions £m
Ordinary shares of 6 “/asp 2711 188 2711 188

More information about the shares and nghts attached to the ardinary shares \s givenn the Directors Report on page 72
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25 Net cash flow generated from operations

Group tompany
2013 2012 2013 2012
m £m £m £m
Profit before taxation 2989 6397 1591 1368
Depreciatwon and amortisation 1292 953 - -
Properiy impanment - 27 - -
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 15 - - -
Profit on acquisition/disposal of shares in subsidiary and joint venture - (323 8) - -
Net hnance expense/(income) 495 426 {148 9) (1873
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures - (35) - -
Decrease/(increase) in nventares 05 09) - -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables 30 138 32 (10
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables 96) 29 {10 2) 21
Borrowing costs capitalised {05) - (0 6) -
Goadwill vatuation amendment 12 - - -
(Increase)/decrease in CCP financial assets {43,590 5) 77025 - -
Increasef{decrease) in CCP cleaning business habilities 43,594 & {7709 8) - -
Defined beneht pension abhgation — contributions {in excess of )/lower than
expenses charged (10) 02 - -
Provistons utshised during the year {61) (3 8) - -
Decrease/(increase) i assets held at fair value from operating activities 80 (67) - -
Share scheme expense 131 121 - -
Foreign exchange gains/({losses) on gperating activities 43 09) 25) 270
Cash generated from/(absorbed by) operations 4875 462 & 01 (22 &)
Compnsing
angoing cperating activittes 4805 4837 01 &2)
Non recurring items 70 (213) - (18 2)
4875 462 4 01 (22 4)

26 Commitments and contingencies

Cantracted capital commitments and other conbracted cornmtments not provided for i the financial statements of the Group were £16m (2012 £5 6im)
and £13 2m (2012 £13 5m} respectively €11 5m of other contracted comrmiments represent professional and other fees relating to the proposed transaction

with LCH Clearnet the majonty of wiich weze conditional on completion on 1 May 2013

27 Leases

The Group leases vanous office properties and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases

The total future mimmum tease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are due as follows

Property Equipment
2013 2012 2013 2012
Leases expiring in £m £m £m £m
Less than one year 253 249 14 31
More than ane year and less than five years B4 0 803 - 16
Moze than five years B27 99 6 - -
192 0 204 8 14 47

Operating lease payrnents of £25 6m (2012 £21 5m) were charged to the incorme statement in the year in relation to property and £30m (2012 £3 4m) inthe

year in relation to equipment

The total future mimrmum lease payments expected to be recewved under non-cancellable operating leases for property whese the Group s lessor are due as follows

Property
2013 2012
Leases expiring \n Em £m
Less than one year g2 46
More thanone year and less than five years 212 170
More than five years 109 112
403 328

The Company has no lease commitments
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28 Share Schemes

The London Stock Exchange Gioup Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) approved at the 2004 AGM has two elements a concitional award of Performance Shares
and an award of Matching Shares Iinked to investrment by the executive of annual bonus 1n the Company s shates Vesting of these awards 15 dependent upon
the Companys total shareholder return performance and for awards made since 2008 adjusted basic earnings per share Further detarls are provided n the
Remunesation Report on pages 60-71

Under the Group s previous share option plan approved by shareholders in 2002 the maxamum value of shaves placed under option toan individual was
equivalent to 100 per cent of their annual salary No further awards will be made under this scheme

Prior to 2002 under the previous long term incentive scheme {compnsing the Imitsal and Annual Share Plans) option granis and share awards were made based
on approvals prior to the Group's listing n July 2001 No further option grants or share awards will be made under s scherne apart from the SAYE scherne
avalable to alk staff Under both the Initial and Annual Share Plan share awards have a vesting penod of three years and share options become exercisable at
20 per cent per annum over five years with a contractual hfe of 10 years

The SAYE scheme and international Sharesave Plan provide for grants of options 1o employees who enter inte a SAYE savings contract and options were granted
al 20 per cent below fair market value Share awards were granted at nil cost Lo employees and other share options were granted at fair market value or above

MIIAIY S53INISNA

The Group established an ESOP discrehionary trust to administer the share plans and to acquire the shares 1o meet commitrents to Group employees At the
year end 1128 556 (2012 1 215,289) shares were held by the trust funded by an interest free loan from the Group The Company has no emptoyees but in
accordance with SIC 12 “Consoldation - Special Purpese Entities” has the obligation for the assets labilihes income and costs of the ESOP trust and these
have been consolidated in the Groups finanaal statements The cost of the Group s shares held by the trust are deducted from retained earmings

Movements 1n the number of share options and awards outstanding and thew weighted average exercise prices are as follows

8

Share options SAYE Scheme TP r‘ﬂ

Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average §

exercise BXEICISE exercise -]

Number price Number price Number price g

I Apnl 2011 445352 430 331956 569 5616934 - m
Granted 61 448 971 489271 613 1945 642 -
Exercised {100 704) 377 (313 773) 569 (234 193} -
Lapsed/Forfeitad {1 856) 345 (18 183) 569 {1 235072} -
31 March 2012 404 240 526 489 271 613 6093 311 -
Granted 55,640 985 220,046 820 2,814,239 -
Exerctsed (67,570) 357 (3.844) 612 (1,386,330) -
Lapsediforfeited {8,995) 780 (20,403) 613 (1,028,747) —
31 March 2013 383,115 6 16 685,070 679 6,692,473 —

Exercisable at

31 March 2013 183,631 169 — - 121,483 -
31 March 2012 198 718 174 — - — ~

The weighted average share price of London Stock Exchange Group ple shares dunng the year was £10 70 (2012 £8 94)

The range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractuat lfe of awards and options outstanding are as follows

SINIWILYLS TYIINYNIA dNOYUD

2013 2012

weghted average Wewghted average

Number Tematming Numnber remawmng

outstanding  coentractual life outstanding  contractual e
Share options by
Between €3 and 4 153,935 03 250 686 18 5
Above £4 229,180 47 153 554 33 ;
Q
[
SAYE n
Above £6 685,070 22 489 271 28 =
z
-
LTI g
NIl 6,692,473 14 6093311 13 z
Total 7,560,658 16 6986 822 17 .‘5'
4
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The fair vatue of share awards and share options granted during the year was determined using a stochastic valuation model The key assumptions used in the

valuation were as follows

Performance Retated Equity Plan

Share 5ave Matching Performance Restncted Market Valug

Plan Shares Shares Shares Options

10 2an 2013 21 Jun 2012 19 Jun 2012 19 Jun 2012 19 Jun 2012

Grant date share price £11 39 £10 00 £9 85 £985 £9 85
Exercise price £8 20 na na na g9
volathty 3% 33% 33% 33% 3%
Expected life 3 14 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 4 years
Dividend yeld 2 50% 2 80% 290% 290% 2 90%
Faw value £348 - - - -
Fair value TSR - £317 £312 €326 £154
Farr value EPS = £918 £902 5.9 02 £2 06

The volatility assumptions based on a stahstical analysis of weekly share prices since the London Stock Exchange s flotation in July 2001 The fair value for
the Perforrmance and Matching Shares granted during the year is based on a Total Shareholder Return (TSR) pricing modet which takes into account of the TSR
vesting condition All other fair values of shares granted 1s based on a Black-Scholes model Helders of share awards and share options are not entitted to receve

dvidends declared during the vesting period

29 Transactions with Related Parties
Key management compensation

Compensation for Directors of the Company and key personnel who have authority for planning directing and controiling the Group

2013 2012

£m £m

Salaries and other short term benefits 9 90
Penswans 05 04
Share based payments 46 02
14 0 96

Inter-company transactions with subsidiary undertakings

The Company has loan agreements with some subsidiary undertalangs Detatls as at 31 March 2013 are shown in the table below

Amount in miltens due

Interest tn millions

{owed to)from as at 31 March Intevest rate as at {charge) /credit
Loan counterparty 2053 2012 Term 31 March 2013 2013 2012
London Stock Exchange plc £(88 7)m £{236 5)m 25 years from May 2006 with LIBOR plus £(6 8)m £{&0)m
five equal annual repayments 2% per annum
commencing in May 2027
London Stock Exchange £14 2m £109m Repayable on demand Non interest nil ml
Employee Benefit Trust bearing
London Steck Exchange Group €450 Om €4500m  Five years from March 2009 EURIBOR plus €24 &m €27 5m
Holdings (Italy) Lunited - repayabte in full on matunty 4 0% per annurm]
Italian Branch In March 2014
London Stock Exchange Group €94 5m €122 0m 20 years from January 2008 EURIBOR plus €26m €39m
Holdings (Italy) Liruted - with five equal repayments 1 2% per annum
itahan Branch cormmencing n January 2024
London Stock Exchange Group £463 6m £461 1m  Fifth anmiversary of the imtial LIBOR plus €22 1m £67m
Haldings Limuted utiisation date which was 4 0% per annum
October 2009
London Stock Exchange Group £(0 6)m £{0 6)m Fifth anmiversary of the imtal LIBOR plus nil nil
Holdings (R) Limited utilisation date which was 1 5% per annum
Aprii 2011
Cassa di Compensazione ml €(400)m One year from imtal utilisation EURIBOR plus €0 5)m €0 m
eGaranziaSpA date which was January 2012 1 2% per annum
Monte Titoh S p A €(31 99m €(18 2)m  One year from imtial utilisation date  EURIBOR plus €{0 &)m nil
which was January 2012 extended 1 2% per annum
for further six months to July 2013
Societa Mercato Tiioludi Stato Sp A €(22 2ym €(57)m  One year from imtial utihisation date EURIBOR plus €(0 2)m ml
which was lanuary 2012 extended 1 2% per annum
for further six months to July 2013
Londen Stock Exchange (€} Limited €13 8m ml  Fifth anmversary of the imitial EURIBOR plus €(0 3)m ml

utihsation date which was
Apnl 2012

1 5% per annum

1 The interest margin was reduced to 3 5 per cent per annum on 22 March 2013
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Dunng the year the Company charged n 7espect of employee share schermes £8 0m (2012 €8 8m) to London Stock Exchange plc £2 8m (2012 £2 8m) to
London Stock Exchange Group Holdings (ftaly} Ltd £07m {2012 £0 Smj to Miltenmiurn Information and £1 2m (2012 mil) to FTSE Group The Company receved
dwtdendsof £112 4m (2012 £121 8m) and €60 0m (2012 €90 Om) respecively from its subsidiaries Londen Stock Exchange ple and London Stock Exchange
Group Holdings (Itaty) Lirmited

30 Other Statutory Information
Auditors remuneration payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw() and its associates compnise the following

2013 2012
tm £m

Audut of parent and consolidated financial statements 02 0z
Audit of subsidiary compames 10 0%
Audit related assurance services 04 03
Other non audit services
— Taxation o2 01
- Corporate finance 06 28
— Other assurance services 01 -
Total expenses 25 43
Further detalls of the services provided by PwC are given in the Report of the Audit and Risk Comrmittee on pages 58-59
Directors emolurments cornprise the {ollowing

2013 2012

m £m

Salary and fees 26 25
Performance bonus 26 26
Gams made on share awards 49 02
Benefits 03 D1

104 54
Contributions to defined contrbution schemes 03 03

107 57

Dunng the year no Drrectors (2012 two) had retrement benefits accruing under defined contnbutton schemes and one Duector (2012 none) had retuerment
benehts accrung under a defined benefit scherne

Further details of Directors emeluments are included m the Remuneration Report on pages 60 71

31 Post balance sheet events

On 5 April 2013 FTSE Group and TMX Group Limited announced the completion of the transaction to combine their fixed income businesses in a new
Joint venture FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets A cash consideration of CAD112 2m was paid to TMX for a 75 per cent holding in the joint venture
with TMX holding the remaming interest

On 1 May 2013 the Group completed the majority acquisition of LCH Clearnet Group Lirmted The Group acquired 55 5 per cent of the share capital which
1 adchtion to the 2 3 per cent already held gves the Group a total helding of 57 8 per cent The consideration paid was €328m with up to a further €23m
payable as deferred consideration In addition te the acquisition the Group will participate in a capital raise in proportion to its shareholding resulting

i a further €185m nvesiment
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To understand all the services offered by a diversified exchange business, it 1s important to be
aware of both the process of trading financial instruments and the various trading platforms
available within the EU With an effective date of introduction of November 2007, the EU's
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive sought to increase competition and consumer
protection in iInvestment services Information provided here focuses on two main areas

The process of trading

PROCESS EXPLANATION THE GROUP'S INVOLVEMENT
Electronic trading Computensed systems for matching brey and sell — Equities — London and 1tahan
orders of financial instruments such as equities trading platforms and Turquoise
bonds and denvatives pan-European trading
— ETFs ETCs - London and Itahan
trading platforms
— Bonds — MTS MOT and ORB
— Derwvatives — Turquoise 1DEM 1DEX
and AGREX
Clearing After a trade has been matched by a trading system CC&G acts as a CCP for tahan cash equities
it 1s usually cleared At this stage a central counterparty denvatves and fixed income CC&G also
(CCP)ymay stand between the buyer and seller In provides non guaranteed clearing processing
simultanecusly buying from the seller and seling to the functions for London Stock Exchange equities
buyer the CCP reduces the counterparty nisk {o both and Turquoise dervatives
parties This s because if one party defaults the CCP will
still ensure that the trade 1s completed with the other party Following completion of the acquisition of a
majority stake in LCH Clearmet m May 2013
the Group now has ownership of cleanng
services in the UK France and the LS
% Settlement Setilement 1s the process of delivering title to the Monte Titol operates the X-TRM and EXPRESS
= financial instrument to the buyer against payment to the 11 systerms which cover Italian pre-settlement
§ seller For equities this normally takes place three days and settlement creating netted settlement
after the trade Netted settlement reduces alarge number  instructions making the actual payments
of positions to a single position/payment Settlement and delivering securities
operates both for transactions through a trading systerm
and those completed over the counter (OTC)
Custody A custodian or Central Secunties Depositary undertakes the  Monte Titoh provides italian custody services

safekeeping and adrmmistration of secunties on: behalf of
1ssuers and investors

for imancial instruments such as equities
and bonds whether demnatenalised or in
paper form De-matenahised secunties are
those that can be held without the need for
paper certificates
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a
-
)
Trading under MiFID E
EXPLANATION ATTRIBUTES THE GROUP S INVOLVEMENT E
Exchange model — Traded through trading platforms run by an Regulated — Trading platiorms
for tradmg operator of a Regulated Market Order driven offered by the London
Neutral Stock Exchange and
Transparent Borsa Itahana including
Liquid securities histed and/or
Widest stock coverage admitted to trading on
Wdest client base the Groups pnmary g
markets <
m
]
— On exchange business done off order book Telephone trading On exchange irade 5
and reported {0 a Requlated Market reporting and 3
pubhcation ™
MTF MIFID allowed for the setting up of Multilateral Trading Regulated MTF services provided
Facilities new pan-European trading ventures thereby Order driven through Turguolse
promoting venue choice Trading 1s mainly of secunties Neutral and Euro MTS
listed on the primary market of a regulated exchange Transparent
Can include dark pool
trading (see below)
oTC Over-the-counter/bilateral market conducted through Regulated participants OTC trade reporting
electronic systerms or by telephone Electromcally Large or block trades and publication
connected market consisting of deaters who are in Way te trade less services

constant contact thereby facititating trading directly
between two parties

hquid stocks

MITAHINOD

What is dark pool trading®

Prvate trading networks (within Europe these are MTFs) developed to enable the
nternal matching of arders between buyers and sellers without being visible until
the trade 1s complete thereby creating a regulated environment in which to execute
larger trades Turquowse the Group s pan-European MTF provides a dark pool service
aswellas Lit trading whereby traders can see potential buy and sell orders in
advance Brokers also operate OTC dark pools

NOILYWHOINI HIATOHIUVHS
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AGREX
The Groups italian agncultural cormmodities dervatives segment of IDEM

AIM
The Group s market for smaller and growing companies established in
London and now extended to AIM itaha — MAC

Bit
Borsa Itahana Sp A the Group's Italan exchange business

CAGR
Compound annual growth rate

cCcP
Centrat Counterparty — stands between two parties to a trade to elminate
counterparty risk by ensuring that settlement takes place

CCaG

Cassa di Compensazione e Garan2ia Sp A the Group s Italian subsidiary
which anages the Htalian CCP for equity derwvative comrmodity and
fixed income trades

Central Securities Depository (CSD)
Arrentity that enables secuntties to be processed settled and held in custody

Company or LSEG
London Stock Exchange Group plc

CONSOB
Commussione Nazionale per le Societd e la Borsa Italy s official body for

regulating and supervising companies and trading infrastructure providers

CREST

The systemn for the paperless seitlement of trades h secunties and the
holding of uncertthed securthies in the UK operated by Euroclear UK &
[reland Lirmted and requlated by the Bank of England

cP1
Consumer Price Index which measures changes m the pnce of consumer
goods and services purchased by households

Dark Pool

Electronic trading networks developed by regulated venues such as
Regulated Markets MTFs and by OTC broker dealers to enable the matching
of orders between buyers and sellers without pre-trade transparency until
the trade1s complete using exernptions perrmitted under current MIFID
and thereby creating a secure environment in which to execute larger trades

Depositary Recelpts/Global Depositary Receipts (GDR)
Tradeable certificates represenung ownership of a number of undertying
shares mamly for compantes in developing or emerging markets

Derlvatives
Tradeable financial instruments whose value 15 deterrmined by the
value of ether undertying hinancial nstruments

EBITDA
Earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation

European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR)
European leqslation on regulation of cleanng of denvatives and the
operalion and governance of CCPs and trade repositones

ESOP
Employee Share Option Plan

ETC
Exchange Traded Commodity — secunties that provide exposure to a
range of commodities and commodity indices

ETF
Exchange Traded Fund —low cost and flexible investments that track
indices and sectors

ETP
Exchange traded products including ETFs and ETCs

FCA

Financial Conduct Authonty the current regulator of conduct of providers
of inanaial services i the UK and trading veniees such as Recognised
Investment Exchanges (RIEs} and MTFs

FSA
Financial Services Authority the former regulator in the UK replaced
by FCA and PRA

FTSE Group or FTSE
FTSE International Lirnited and its subsicharies the Group subsidiary
that 15 a leading global provider of index and analytics solutions

FTSE 100 Index
The index developed by FTSE and London Stock Exchange for leading
UK quoted companies

FTSE MIB Index
The index developed by FTSE and Borsa Itahana for leading Italian
quoted companies

Group
The Company and us group undertakings

Group undertakings

Group undertakings shall be constiued wn accordance with 51161 of the
Companies Act 2006 and mrelation to the Company includes London
Stock Exchange ple Borsa Itahana Sp A and FTSE International Limited
together with respective direct and indirect subsidiaries

IDEM
The Group s Italian Denvatives Market trading contracts based on equities
and related indices

IDEX
The Group s Itatian energy dervatives segment trading contracts based
on commodities and related indices

108
International Order Book — the Group s electronic trading service for
International securities

PO
Irutial Public Offering — the process whereby compames join our
markets and ra1se capital for the first time
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Latency
A measure of time delay experienced in a system measured i milhseconds
(/1 000th of a secand) or Frcroseconds (/1 000 000th of a second)

LCH Cleamet or LCH Cleamet Group
LCH Clearnet Group Limited and its subsidianes the Group's 57 8 per cent
owned global clearing and risk managernent business

Main Market

The market for compantes which have been adrmtted to trading on the
Lordon Stock Exchange s principal market and in ltaly the market for
companies listed on Borsa Italiana s principal MTA market

MIC
The interbank collaterised deposit market in Italy managed by CC&G

MIFID or Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

EU Directve introduced i Novernber 2007 to harmomise cross-border
trading of equities providing greater chowce of trading venues and currently
under review leading to MiIFID I and MIFIR (a chrective and regulation)

Millennium Exchange
MullenmurnIT s mutti-asset trading platform deployed for the UK
ltalian and Turquotse equities markets

Millennium NewClear
MillenmumIT s post trade technology providing trade routing and central
counterparty (CCP) services across a wide range of products and markets

MillenniumIT

Millensmum Inforrmation Technologies Limited the Group s subsidiary that
15 the developer of flexible low cost tigh performance trading platforms
and financial markets software serving both the Group's own businesses
and third parties

Monte Titolt
Monte Titoh Sp A the Group s Itallan Central Securities Depository
and settlement company

MOT
Mercato Obbligazionario Telernatico ts the Group s ltakan Tetail bond
trading platform

MTA
Mercato Telematico Anonariots the Group s Italian electronic market on
which shares converiible bonds warrants and option nights are traded

MTS

Societa per il Mercato des Titol di Stato Sp A the Groups 60 per cent
subsidiary which owns and operates an electronic trading platform
for European fixed income secunties

Multilateral Trading Facility {MTF)
Alternalive electromic trading systems as categonsed under MIFID

NOMAD
Momad or Nommated Adwiser 1s the primary regulator of an
AlM company

ORB
The Groups Order Book for Retall Bonds

oTC
Over-the-counter transactions executed away from an exchange or MTF

Proquote
The Group s financial market software and data services provider

Regulated Market

A multitateral system which brings together muitiple third party buying
and selling in financial instruments in accordance with rules authonsed
under provisions of MIFID

Repo
Repurchase Agreement — the process of borrowing money by combimng
the sale and subsequent repurchase of an asset

Retail Service Providers (RSP)
Broker network providing electrome pricing and execution services
for retait investors

RNS
Regulatory News Service the Group s Primary Information Provider
for dissermmnation of reguiatory and nen-regulatory news to the market

RPI
The Retail Price Index which measures inflation n the UK economy

SEDOL Masterfile (SMF)
The Group s securities \dentification service

SETS
The electromic order book operated by the Londen Stock Exchange
for the most liquid secunities

SOLA®
Derwatives trading platform used by Turquotse Derwatives and IDEM
supplied to the Group by TMX Group

Speclalist Fund Market (SFM)
The Group s requlated market for ighly specialised investment entities that
wish to target institutional professional and highty knowledgeable mvestors

TARGET2-Securlties (T25)

Imtiatwe led by the European Central Bank to prowde a platform for
setiternent of bonds and equities traded n the Eurozone expecied io
be launched in 2015

Transaction Reporting Service (TRS)
Approved Reporting Mechamism part of the Unavisia 1ange of services

Turquolse

Turquoise Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries the Groups 51 per cent
owned pan-European MTF trading subsichary a venture between the Group
and 12 global investrment bank cltents

UnaVista
The Group s web-based matching reconciliation and data inlegration engine
that provides matching of post trade data in asmple automated process

X-TRM
The Group s post trade router to manage the trade flows between
two competing CCPs and onward to settlement
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

(Provisional)

AGM

18 July 2013

01 Intennim Management Statement (revenues only)

18 July 2013

Ex-dindend date for final dividend

24 Juty 2013

Final dwidend record date

26 July 2013

Final dividend payment

19 August 2013

Half year end

30 September 2013

Interim Results

Movernber 2013

Q3 Interum Management Statement {revenues only)}

January 2014

Financial year end

31 Maich 2014

Preliminary Resuits

May 2014

The financial calendar 1s updated on a regular basis throughout the year

Please refer to our website wwwlseg com/investor-relations/
mvestor-relabions htm and click on the sharehelders services

section for up-to date details

The Groups AGM for the year ended 31 March 2013 wll be held on
18 July 2013 at Plaisterers Halt One London Wall London EC2Y 51U

starting at 11 00am
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Shareholder services Substantial Shareholders
Equiniti reqistrars shareview service Asat 14 May 2013 the Cornpany had been noufied of the following
Shareholders who hotd London Stock Exchange Group shares in Interests amounting te more than three per cent in the 1ssued share
certifcated farm or wathin Eqeinit Investrment Account or 15A can access capital of the Cormpany 1n accordance with DTR 5 of the FSAs Disclosure
Shareview Shareview is a free service provided by our registrars Equinitt and Transparency Rules
It may be accessed through the nternet at www shareview co uk
Borse Dubat Lumited 21 0%
By creating a Shareview portfolio you will gain online access to Qatan Investment Authority 1> 4%
FIL Lirmited 5 2%

information about your London Stock Exchange Group shares and
other investments including

— Durect access to information held for you on the share register
cluding share movements

- A dally indicative valuation of all Investrnents held in your portfoho

— A range of infermation and practical help for shareholders

To register at Shareview you will need your shareholder reference
{which can be found on your share certificate) and you will be asked
to select your own personal identification number A user 1D will
then be posted to you

If you have any problems 1n registering your portfolio for the Shareview
service contact Equiniti on 0871 384 2544 Calls to this number are
charged at eight pence per nunute from a BT landline Other telephone
providers costs rnay vary For calis from outside the UK contact
Equimtion ~44 121 415 7047 Please note that you should only use
etectromic addresses ncluded i this Annual Report for the purposes
expressly stated

Group’s share price service
To obtain share price information for London Stock Exchange Group plc
see our website at wwwlseg com

By clicking on the Investor Relations tab you will find the Company s
share price hustorical closing prices and volumes and an interactive
share price graph

Alerting service

Torecewe emall alerts when financial reports news releases and
webcasts are posted on our Investor Relations website reqister at
www lseg com and follow the iink 1n the section on financial
performance —reports and key docurnents
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INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACTS

Investor Relations

Attn Investor Relations

London Stock Exchange Group ple
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M TLS

Far enguines relating to shareholdings in London Stock Exchange
Group plc

Shareholder helpline «44 (0)20 7797 3322
email nnfo-1@lseg com

Visit the investor relations section of our website for up-to date
information ncluding the tatest share price announcements
financial reports and details of analysts and consensus forecasts
www lseg comAnvestor-relations/investor-relations htm

Registered office

London Stock Exchange Group plc
10 Patemoster Square

London EC4M TLS

Registered company number
London Stock Exchange Group plc 5369106

Registrar information
Equimti

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

T OB71 384 2544 or 44 (0)121 415 7047
www shareview co uk

Chartered accountants and independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

7 More London Riverside

London SE1 2RT

Principal legal adviser
Freshfields Bruckhaus Dennger LLP
65 Fleet Sireet

London

EC4Y IHS

T +44 (0)20 7936 4000

Corporate brokers
Barclays

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London El4 4BB

T +44 (0)20 7623 2323
www barcap com

Morgan Stanley & Co Limited
20 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 4AD

T +44 (0)20 7425 8000
www morganstanley com
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